
Cabinet 
5 February 2014 

 
 

 

 
Published 28 January 2014 

Agenda for meeting of the Cabinet to be held at 6.00 
pm on Wednesday, 5 February 2014 in the Town Hall, Grove 
Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4UG 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend and listen to the discussion of 

items in the “open” part of the meeting.  Please see notes at end of agenda 

concerning public rights to speak and ask questions. 

 

 

 

 

The Cabinet meets in the Court Room of the Town Hall which is located 

on the ground floor.  Entrance is via the main door or access ramp at 

the front of the Town Hall.  Parking bays for blue badge holders are 
available in front of the Town Hall and in the car park at the rear of 

the Town Hall. 

 

 

 

 

An induction loop operates to enhance sound for deaf people who use 
a hearing aid or loop listener. 

 
If you require further information or assistance please contact the 

Local Democracy team – contact details at end of this agenda. 

 

This agenda and accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in 

PDF format which means you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe 

Acrobat Reader. 

 
Please ask if you would like this agenda and/or any of the reports in an 

alternative format.  
 
 
Members of the Cabinet: 
 
Councillor David Tutt (Leader and Chairman of Cabinet): Responsibilities aligned 
with Chief Executive and including the Community Strategy, Local Strategic 
Partnership, the Corporate Plan and economic development. 
Councillor Gill Mattock (Deputy Leader and Deputy Chairman of Cabinet): Financial 
services including accountancy, audit, purchasing and payments. 
Councillor Margaret Bannister:  Direct assistance services including revenues and 
benefits, housing and community development, bereavement services and the Crime 
Reduction Partnership. 
Councillor Carolyn Heaps: Tourism and leisure services. 
Councillor Troy Tester: Core support and strategic services. 
Councillor Steve Wallis: Place services including cleansing and recycling, parks and 
downland, engineering, building and development control, planning policy and 
strategy, environmental health and licensing. 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 
 

 

 
 
[KD] against an item indicates that the matter involves a Key Decision and that 
the item has been listed in the Council’s Forward Plan for at least 28 clear days. 
 
[BPF] against an item indicates that the matter is part of the Council's Budget and 
Policy Framework and as such will require the approval of the Full Council.  
 
Publication of this agenda also constitutes notice (or confirmation that such notice 
has previously been given) to the Chairman of the Scrutiny Committee and 
members of the public as appropriate: 
 
(1) Under regulation 10(3) of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 in respect of any 
key decision not included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions within 28 
days of this meeting.  Such items (if any) are marked [KDGE] and the reasons 
why compliance with regulation 9 (publicity in connection with key decisions) was 
impracticable are given. 
 

(2) Under regulation 5(4) of the above mentioned regulations that certain matters 
listed on this agenda (if any) may need to be considered in private.  (This notice is 
given further to the earlier notice given under regulation 5(2).  The reasons for 
private consideration are given at the relevant item, together with details of 
representations received (if any) about why the meeting should be open to the 
public. 
 
 

1 Minutes of of the meeting held on 11 December 2013  (Pages 1 - 16) 
 

2 Apologies for absence.   
 

3 Declarations of Interests by Members   
 

 Declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests (DPIs) by members as 
required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as 
required by the Code of Conduct and regulation 12(2)(d) of the 2012 Access 
to Information Regulations.  (Please see note at end of agenda). 
 

4 Questions by members of the public.   
 

 On matters not already included on the agenda and for which prior notice 
has been given (total time allowed 15 minutes).   
 

5 Urgent items of business.   
 

 The Chairman to notify the Cabinet of any items of urgent business to be 
added to the agenda. 
 

6 Right to address the meeting/order of business.   
 



3 

 

Page 3 
 

 The Chairman to report any requests received to address the Cabinet from a 
member of the public or from a Councillor in respect of an item listed below 
and to invite the Cabinet to consider taking such items at the 
commencement of the meeting. 
 

7 Corporate Performance - Quarter 3 - 2013/14 [KD]  (Pages 17 - 70) 
 

 Report of Deputy Chief Executive. 
Cabinet lead members:  Councillors Troy Tester and Gill Mattock. 
 

8 Council Budget 2014/15 [BPF]  (Pages 71 - 94) 
 

 Report of Chief Finance Officer. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Gill Mattock. 
 

9 Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators 2014/15 [BPF]  
(Pages 95 - 118) 

 

 Report of Chief Finance Officer (to follow). 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Gill Mattock. 
 

10 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Revenue Budget and  Rent Setting 
2014/15 and HRA Capital Programme 2013/16 [BPF]  (Pages 119 - 
130) 

 

 Report of Senior Head of Community and Chief Finance Officer. 
Cabinet lead members:  Councillors Margaret Bannister and Gill Mattock. 
 

11 Sustainable Service Delivery Update [KD]  (Pages 131 - 138) 
 

 Report of Deputy Chief Executive. 
Cabinet lead members:  Councillors Troy Tester. 
 

12 Eastbourne Town Centre - Update on Use of Compulsory Purchase 
Powers [KD]  (Pages 139 - 150) 

 

 Report of Senior Head of Development. 
Cabinet lead member: Councillor Steve Wallis. 
 

13 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) - charging schedule [KD]  
(Pages 151 - 176) 

 

 Report of Senior Head of Development. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Steve Wallis. 
 

14 Impacts of Welfare Reform and the Council's Response  (Pages 177 - 
182) 

 

 Report of Senior Head of Community. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Margaret Bannister. 
 

15 Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults [KDGE]  (Pages 183 - 
204) 

 



Page 4 
 

 Report of Senior Head of Community. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Margaret Bannister. 
 

16 Write-off of Irrecoverable Debts [KD]  (Pages 205 - 206) 
 

 Report of Chief Finance Officer. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Gill Mattock. 
 

17 Exclusion of the Public   
 

 The Chief Executive considers that discussion of the following items are 
likely to disclose exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and may therefore need to take place in private 
session.  The exempt information reasons are shown beneath the items 
listed below.  Furthermore, in relation to paragraph 10 of Schedule 12A, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 
the public interest in disclosing the information. (The requisite notices 
having been given under regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012.) 
 
(Note: Exempt papers are printed on pink paper). 
 
 

18 Confidential Minutes of meeting held on 11 December 2013  (Pages 
207 - 208) 
 

19 Small Grants to Voluntary Organisations 2014/15 [KD]  (Pages 209 - 
214) 

 

 Report of Senior Head of Community. 
Cabinet lead member: Councillor Margaret Bannister. 
 
Exempt information reason 3.  Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information). 
 

20 Alternative Employment Procedure.  (Pages 215 - 218) 
 

 Report of Head of Corporate Development. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Troy Tester. 
 
Exempt information reasons 1 and 2.  Information relating to an individual 
or likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 

21 Write-off of Irrecoverable Debts [KD]  (Pages 219 - 220) 
 



5 

 

Page 5 
 

 Confidential addendum to report of Chief Finance Officer. 
Cabinet lead member:  Councillor Gill Mattock. 
 
Exempt information reason 3 - Information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information). 
 

22 Towner  (Pages 221 - 226) 
 

 Report of Chief Executive. 
Lead Cabinet member:  Councillor Carolyn Heaps 
 
Exempt information reasons 3 and 5.  Information relating to the financial 
or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding 
that information) and information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

 
Inspection of background papers – Please see contact details listed in each 
report. 
 
Public right of address – Requests by members of the public to speak on a 
matter which is listed in this agenda must be received in writing by no later than 
12 Noon, 2 working days before the meeting (e.g. if the meeting is on a 
Wednesday, received by 12 Noon on the Monday before).  The request should be 
made to Local Democracy at the address listed below.  The request may be made 
by, letter, fax, or electronic mail.  For further details on the rules about speaking 
at meetings or for asking a question on a matter not listed on the agenda please 
contact Local Democracy. 
 
Public questions – Members of the public may ask a question on a matter which 
is not on the agenda.  Questions should be made in writing and by the same 
deadline as for the right of address above.  There are rules on the matters on 
which questions can be asked. Please ask Local Democracy for further information  
 
Councillor right of address - Councillors wishing to address the meeting who 
are not members of the Cabinet must notify the Chairman in advance (and no 
later than the immediately prior to the start of the meeting). 
 
Disclosure of interests - Members should declare their interest in a matter at 
the beginning of the meeting, and again, at the point at which that agenda item is 
introduced.   
 
Members must declare the existence and nature of any interest. 
 
In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not 
registered (nor the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the 
interest must be reported to the meeting by the member and subsequently 
notified in writing to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days.  
 
If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room 
when the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation). 



Page 6 
 

 
Implementation of decisions - Implementation of any key decision will take 
place after 5 working days from the date notice is given of the Cabinet's decision 
(normally on the day following the meeting) unless subject to "call-in".  
Exceptions to this requirement are allowed when the decision is urgent. 
 
Further information – The Forward Plan of Key Decisions, Councillor contact 
details, committee membership lists and other related information are available 
from Local Democracy.  To receive regular e-mails alerting you to the publication 
of Cabinet agendas (or other meeting agendas) please send an e-mail to: 
localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
You can view the Forward Plan of Key Decisions at 
http://www.eastbourne.gov.uk/council/meetings/ 
 
Local Democracy, 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, BN21 4TW 
Tel (01323) 415022/415021/415023          Fax (01323) 410322  
Text Relay: 18001 01323 410000   E Mail: localdemocracy@eastbourne.gov.uk 
For general Council enquiries, please telephone (01323) 410000 
E-mail  enquiries@eastbourne.gov.uk   Website at  www.eastbourne.gov.uk 
 



1 

 

Cabinet 

 
 

 

Minutes of meeting held on Wednesday, 11 December 2013 at 6.00 pm 
 
Present:- 
Councillors David Tutt (Chairman and Leader of the Council), Gill Mattock (Deputy 
Chairman and Deputy Leader of the Council), Margaret Bannister, Troy Tester 
and Steve Wallis. 
 
(An apology for absence was reported from Councillor Carolyn Heaps) 
 

 
53 Minutes  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 23 October 2013 were submitted 
and approved and the Chairman was authorised to sign them as a 
correct record. 
 

54 Declarations of Interest by Members  
 

No declarations were made. 
 

55 Corporate Performance - Quarter 2 2013/14  
 

55.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and 
Chief Finance Officer reviewing the council’s performance against 
corporate plan priority indicators and action targets; financial 
performance of general fund revenue expenditure, housing revenue 
account and capital programme; and treasury management activities for 
the second quarter of 2013/14.  Throughout the year, performance 
against these key indicators and milestones was reported to Cabinet on a 
quarterly basis and to Scrutiny Committee members each month.   
 
55.2 Resolved (key decision) (1) That the performance against 
national and local performance indicators and actions from the 2010/15 
corporate plan (2013 refresh) be agreed. 
 
(2) That the general fund, housing revenue account and collection fund 
financial performance for the quarter ended September 2013, as set out 
in sections 3, 4 and 6 of the report be agreed. 
 
(3) That the virements and transfer to and from reserves as set out in 
appendix 3 to the report be approved. 

 
(4) That the amended capital programme as set out in appendix 4 to the 
report be approved.  
 
(5) That the treasury management performance as set out in section 7 of 
the report be agreed. 
 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



2 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 

 

56 Council Tax Base and Business Rate Income 2014/2015  
 

56.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer.  The 
Council was required to set its council tax base and the expected 
business rate income for the forthcoming year.  These calculations were 
used as the basis for the amount of income the Council will precept from 
the collection fund. 
 
56.2 The council tax base for Eastbourne was calculated by multiplying 
the ‘relevant amount’ by the ‘collection rate’.  The relevant amount was 
the estimated full year equivalent number of chargeable dwellings within 
the borough.  This was expressed as the equivalent number of ‘band D’ 
dwellings with 2 or more liable adults.  The relevant amount had 
decreased by 359 (1.1%) Band D equivalent dwellings from 2013/14.  
This reflected the higher take up of the council tax reduction scheme 
than the 2013/14 original model predicted pending the introduction of 
the scheme from 1 April 2013.  This had been offset by a reduction in the 
number of single person discounts awarded. The effect of these changes 
had resulted in the reduction to the total number of chargeable dwellings 
by 382. 
 
56.3 The collection rate was the Council's estimate of the proportion of 
the overall Council Tax collectable for 2014/2015 that would ultimately 
be collected. This was expressed as a percentage.  Given the current 
level of Council Tax collection and the forecast of a small deficit balance 
on the collection fund it was considered prudent to maintain the current 
collection rate of 97.5%.  Taking the relevant amount of 32,950.3 and 
applying the collection rate of 97.50% produced a council tax base for 
2014/15 of 32,126.5. 
 
The Local Government Finance Act 2012 had introduced a new system 
for the local retention of business rates. This meant that the Council was 
required to formally approve the expected business rate income for the 
forthcoming year. The estimate for the 2014/15 financial year must be 
approved by 31 January 2014. 
 
56.4 The report described how the net rate income for 2014/15 would be 
calculated.  The actual ‘NNDR1’ form for 2014/15 had not yet been 
received but the provisional figures based on the 2013/14 form plus 
known changes had been calculated and indicated a net yield of 
£35,225,000.  The allocation would be in the proportion of: 
 

• 50% to central government 
• 40% to the local billing authority (this council) 
• 10% to the other precepting authorities (9% to the county and 

1% to the fire authority) 
 
56.5 As some local authorities collected more business rates than they 
currently received in formula grant (which was based on relative need 
and resources), whilst others were lower the government would 
rebalance to ensure that no local authority was worse off as a result of it 
business rates at the outset of the scheme though a system of tariffs and 

Page 2



3 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 
top ups.  Tariff and top ups would be self funding and fixed in real terms 
(i.e. only up rated by RPI in future years) ensuring that changes in 
retained income were driven by business rate growth.  This authority had 
a business rate baseline higher than its baseline funding level and thus 
was due to make a tariff payment.  
 
56.6 The final amount of retained business rates to be credited to the 
general fund is calculated as follows: 
 

 
2014/15 Estimate £’000 

EBC Share of Business Rate Yield 14,094 
Minus Tariff  (9,664) 
Minus Levy  (612) 
Minus Estimated Deficit on Collection Fund 
as at 31.3.14 (283) 

Local Retained Business Rate Income 
2014/15 3,535 

 
2013/14 Amount  3,503 

 
56.7 The figures required to set the business rate income were not yet 
available as the final NNDR1 form and guidance notes had not yet been 
received from central government.   
 
56.8 As at 31 March 2013 the collection fund showed a surplus of 
£169,272.  £158,910 was being distributed across all preceptors during 
2013/14, leaving a balance of £10,362 to be distributed in 2014/15.  The 
Council had to estimate the overall surplus/deficit at 31 March 2014 and 
inform the precepting authorities in January 2014 of this estimate in 
order that the amount was included in the 2014/15 precept figures.   
 
56.9 Current monitoring figures indicated a deficit by 31 March 2014 of 
£40,000 for council tax, this would be revised in January and the results 
reported to members as part of the budget report to the February 
Cabinet.   
 
56.10 For the first time this year, a calculation on the business rate 
income element of the Collection Fund had to be prepared in January. 
Current indications showed a deficit balance of £708,000 due to the 
number of successful appeals that had been settled in the year and the 
lower than anticipated growth in rateable values.  The calculation would 
be revised for January and the results reported to members as part of 
the budget report to the February Cabinet. 
 
56.11 Resolved (key decision):  (1) That the provisional council tax 
base of 32,126.5 for 2014/15 be agreed. 
 
(2) That the provisional retained business rates income of £35.225m for 
2014/15 be agreed. 
 

Page 3



4 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 

 

(3) That that the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the lead 
Cabinet member for finance, determine the final amounts for the council 
tax base and retained business rates income for 2014/15. 
 

57 Corporate Plan - 2010-15 refresh including analysis of 
community evidence and proposals for the 2015-20 plan]  

 

57.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Head of Corporate 
Development presenting a summary picture of ongoing community 
evidence and a timeline for the final year refresh of the 2010-15 
corporate plan and setting out the intended high level proposals for the 
production of the next corporate plan.  
 
57.2 The proposed high level timetable for refreshing the corporate plan 
for 2014/15 was as follows: 
 

• During January - Senior heads of service in liaison with Cabinet 
portfolio holders to agree priority projects  

• End of January - Leadership Team to agree draft priorities  
• 11 February – Presentation of emerging year 5 plan content to 

Scrutiny committee seminar 
• February/March - Finalising of refreshed corporate plan chapters 

for 2014/15 
• 19 March - Cabinet to receive and approve refreshed corporate 

plan for recommendation onto Council 
• 7 May - Council final ratification of 2014/15 refreshed corporate 

plan 
 
57.3 Over the last five years, the Council had consulted widely both at a 
high strategic level and at a more operational level in order to build a 
picture of the needs of the town as a whole and of specific communities. 
Over this period, over 900 members of the Eastbourne resident and 
business communities had participated in various consultation activities 
and provided information on what should be prioritised for the future 
benefit of the town.  The Council’s appreciation for the time and effort 
given by participants was noted.  
 
57.4 The cumulative consultation and feedback over the last five years 
ensured that the Council could point to a robust and ongoing bank of 
community evidence as a guide to setting its priorities. Taken alongside 
local, regional and national data, government led initiatives and 
legislative changes, and the insight of local elected members, this 
provided a sound basis for the setting of high level goals backed up by 
priority projects for the future.  
 
57.5 Resolved (key decision) (1) That corporate priority theme lead 
Cabinet members and lead officers take into account the community 
evidence and trend analysis, summarised in the appendices, and in 
particular the key headlines set out in appendix 5 to the report, when 
formulating proposed priority projects and activity for inclusion in the 
2014/15 edition of the plan. 
 

Page 4



5 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 
(2) That the timetable and activity involved in producing the 2014/15 
edition of the current corporate plan, as set out in paragraph 4 of the 
report, be approved. 
 
(3) That the proposed actions and timelines relating to the review of the 
overall lifespan of the 2010-15 corporate plan and the production of the 
new 2015-20 corporate plan, as set in paragraph 5 of this report, be 
endorsed. 
 
 

58 Draft Budget Proposals 2014/15  
 

58.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Chief Finance Officer.  Each 
year the Council consulted a range of stakeholders on its detailed draft 
budget proposals for the following financial year.  This followed 
consultation on the corporate plan (see minute 57 above) and medium 
term financial strategy (MTFS), which had been carried out over the 
summer and autumn.  Cabinet was asked to give initial responses to the 
consultations at this meeting and finally on 5 February 2014 in order to 
recommend a final budget and additions to the existing capital 
programme for 2014/15 to the Council on 19 February 2014. 
 
58.2 The process of service and financial planning was an integral part of 
the corporate planning cycle that looked over a medium term horizon. 
The corporate change programmes under the Council’s DRIVE 
programme picked up the challenge of the MTFS. 
 
58.3 The MTFS agreed in July 2013 modelled the overall reduction in 
government support by 40% in cash terms over the whole 
comprehensive spending review (CSR) period (2013/17) which equated 
to around 50% in real terms at past and projected levels of inflation.  At 
the time of writing the report, the Chancellor’s autumn statement and 
the results of the CSR for 2013 were not known, however in June 2013, 
the Chancellor had made announcements that indicated further 
reductions in government support of between 10 and 20 percent (on top 
of the 28.4% covering the period 2011-2014). 
 
58.4 In addition to changes in the amount of funding for local 
government, there were two significant changes that came into force in 
2013/14 that gave a greater volatility to local government finance over 
the medium term.  These changes were the retention of a proportion 
business rates and the localisation of council tax support.  
 
58.5 The current strategy set out a rolling three year plan to: 
 

• Deal with the anticipated reduction in the government support of 
around 50% from the 2010/11 level. 

• Integrate fully the service and financial planning process with the 
main change programmes under DRIVE  

• Work with clearly defined medium term efficiency targets to the 
corporate transformation programmes and allow services to put 
forward savings proposals in addition. 

Page 5



6 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 

 

• Deal with the continued economic downturn and unavoidable 
growth in service demands 

• Maintain front line services to the public 
• Make further recurring savings of  £2.1m per annum by 2016/17 

(in addition to the £3.5m achieved in setting the 2011-2014 
budgets) 

• Maintain at least a minimum level of reserves of £2m 
• Use surplus reserves in the medium term for: 

-Invest to save projects 
-Smooth the requirement for savings over the cycle of the MTFS 
-Invest in one off service developments in line with the corporate 
plan 

• Benchmark fees and charges against the service standard 
• Reinvest in value adding priority services when headroom is 

created 
• Set council tax rises at or below the level of inflation  
• Maintain a strategic change fund to finance the DRIVE programme 

in order to increase efficiency 
• Maintain an economic regeneration reserve to finance external 

interventions that promote economic activity 
• Finance capital expenditure from identified resources 
• Use borrowing only on a business case basis   
• Continue the process of priority based budgeting to target 

investment and differential levels of savings targets at services 
according to priority 

• Zero base volatile grant budgets 
• Look for new income streams to supplement diminishing resources 

 
58.6 The final settlement in respect of revenue support grant (RSG) and 
retained business rates for 2014/15 were not yet known, together with 
numerous other grant announcements not yet made.  The following 
assumptions were made in the draft budget:- 
 

Year 2013/14 2014/15 

 £m actual £m  

RSG 
 

(3.4) (3.3) 

Retained 
business rates 

(3.5) (3.5) 

Council tax 
freeze grant 

(0.1) (0.1) 

New homes 
Bonus  

(0.5) (0.6) 

Council tax 
Benefit grant 

(1.2) (1.2) 

Council tax 
 

(7.3) (7.2) 

 
58.7 The service and financial planning process started in July and had 
culminated in the four service areas presenting their plans to the Cabinet 
and shadow cabinet in November.  In response the challenge set out in 
the MTFS, the service and financial planning process has identified 

Page 6



7 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 
proposed savings of £0.846m (5% of net spend) shown in appendix 1 to 
the report.  These were categorised as: 
 

 £m 
 

Efficiency savings (0.607) 
Increases in income (0.209) 
Other changes (0.030) 

Total (0.846) 
 
A total of £0.851m of service growth was proposed categorised as 
follows (appendix 2): 
 

 £m 
 

Corporate inflation 0.430 
Reduced income targets 0.059 
Other growth 0.362 

Total 0.851 
 
The proposals also included £447,000 of non-recurring service 
investment to be financed directly from reserves (shown in appendix 2 to 
the report). 
 
58.8 The draft budget assumed no rise in council tax for 2014/15 as the 
Council might take advantage a special grant available for Councils not 
increasing council tax (assumed to be 1% or £70,000).  However the 
scheme for 2014/15 had not yet been set out.  The MTFS allowed for a 
tax rise at the target rate of inflation (2%) There therefore remained a 
choice depending on the announcement of the tax freeze scheme.  A 
referendum would be required if any proposed tax rise were 2% or 
greater. 
 
58.9 The Council had been successful in attracting over £2.6m of 
additional grant for the retention of weekly waste collection and 
enhanced recycling (for 5 years) payable over 3 years. The final 
instalment of £1.3m would be paid in 2014/15. It was intended that 
contributions to reserves of this amount would be made in order to 
replenish the strategic change fund and general reserves. 
 
58.10 The following summarised the effect of the proposed changes:- 
 

 Proposal 
£m 
 

Base budget 2013/14 15.658 
Growth (outlined in para. 4.3 of report) 0.851 
Savings (outlined in para. 4.2 of report) (0.846) 
Savings to be identified (0.104) 

Net budget:                                             15.559 
Funded By: 
 

 

Page 7



8 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 

 

Government grants/Retained rates (8.357) 
Council tax (band D £224.19) (7.202) 

Total resources: (15.559) 
  

Forecast general reserve as at 31 March 2014: £4m 
 
It was recommended that should the resources allocated by way of 
retained business rates and RSG differ from the assumptions, the 
suggested strategy would be to make the additional resources available 
to the capital programme.  Should the resources be less than the 
assumptions then they should first reduce the addition to the capital 
programme resources, then reduce the contingency by up to £100,000 
and beyond that, a further review of the service and financial plans 
would be required to identify additional savings/reduced growth.  As a 
last resort the MTFS allowed for reserves to be used in the short term 
until further corrections could be made. 
 
58.11 Risks and action to mitigate them were given in paragraph 5.4 of 
the report.  These included the possibility of further reductions in 
government grant and the impact of inflation. 
 
58.12 The Council currently financed its capital programme from capital 
receipts and grants and contributions.  There was currently £0.5m of 
internal identifiable capital resources available for the next 3 years.  It 
was intended that any headroom created by the 2014/15 revenue 
budget would be reinvested in the capital programme.  An example of 
this was the “Solarbourne” project which was now contributing 
approximately £75,000 per annum to the net budget after repaying the 
cost of capital.  Additional individual schemes to be added to the capital 
programme linked to priorities would be developed as part of the 
development of the corporate plan in January and contained in the final 
budget and capital programme proposals to be agreed by the full Council 
in February.  It was also be noted that unlike the council tax, the capital 
programme could be varied at any time and that there were duties under 
certain schemes to consult with those affected before schemes were 
commenced.  As well as schemes financed from internal resources, the 
corporate plan would include schemes financed from external resources. 
 
58.13 Resolved (key decision): (1) That the draft budget proposals 
be agreed for the purposes of consultation. 
 
(2) That the approach to dealing with changes in the expected resources 
available for the 2014/15 budget as detailed in para. 5.3 of the report, 
including the closing of a currently forecast gap of £104,000 between the 
recurring resources and recurring proposed budget, be agreed. 
 
(3) That as details of the government’s proposed tax freeze grant for 
2014/15 were not yet available, it be agreed that the maximum potential 
council tax rise would be less than 2%. 
 
(4) That the main risks to the draft budget, as set out in para. 5.4 of the 
report, be agreed. 

Page 8



9 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 
 
 

59 Strategic  Asset Management  
 

59.1 Cabinet considered the report of the lead member for Corporate 
Development and Infrastructure which set out a series of 
recommendations in relation to the accompanying report of the Senior 
Head of Development.  The Council’s commitment to strategic asset 
management and the corporate plan objective of a sustainable asset 
base was supported by previous Cabinet recommendations in October 
2011 and October 2012.  
 
59.2 In May 2013, Cabinet authorised an asset challenge programme to 
assist in achieving the sustainable asset base.  Specifically, Cabinet 
authorised two scoping exercises to establish (a) the viability and 
programme for transfer of assets to trust and (b) the savings and 
improvements to quality of service by transferring the retained asset 
base into a Corporate Landlord model.  The asset transfer and the 
corporate landlord reviews had been undertaken by Locality and the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
respectively.  Additional input was provided by iESE (Improvement and 
Efficiency Social Enterprise) and the estates team.   
 
59.3 The key findings of the Locality report concerning asset transfer 
were summarised as follows:- 

 
1. The Council owned significant sites with considerable potential 
as well as numerous smaller holdings which could deliver 
increased revenue or capital returns if managed strategically.  
2. When decisions were taken to retain operational assets (that 
might be subject to substantial investment), the business cases 
should be independently ‘stress tested’ to fully understand the 
level of long term subsidy and its impact on the Council’s future 
revenue budget and its ability to achieve a sustainable asset base. 
3. The Council was not in a position to create a council wide trust 
or multiple trusts (e.g. community or leisure trusts) before 
detailed progress was made to restructure, improve efficiency and 
effectiveness and become more skilled at entrepreneurialism.  
4. There were potential efficiencies and savings through moving 
corporate property to an independent trust; either as a 
management agent or with an asset portfolio. However the Council 
was not yet in a position to undertake this without going through a 
process of strategic planning and internal restructuring. 

 
The key recommendations were as follows:- 
 

1. Every asset, operational or non operational should generate a 
surplus (or be cost neutral at worst) or capital receipt within 
agreed timescales with the possible exception of core service 
support/administration facilities (such as 1 Grove Road). 
2. Strategic assets must generate significant capital and/or 
revenue returns for the Council to reinvest in the retained 

Page 9



10 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 

 

operational portfolio to assist with achieving the best possible 
sustainable asset base. 
3. When assessing operational assets the Council should be aware 
and take account of the combined social, cultural, environmental 
and financial objectives; the Council needed to be clear on the 
relative weight attributed to these objectives and the potential 
long term subsidy required to support operational assets. 

 
59.4 The key findings from the CIPFA report supported the 
implementation of a full Corporate Landlord model.  The key 
recommendations were as follows:- 
 

1. The Council should move towards a full corporate landlord 
approach in respect of the key components (strategic asset 
management, statutory compliance, facilities management, repairs 
and maintenance, estates management and project 
management/delivery). 
2. In the medium to long term, with the exception of strategic 
asset management, the key components could be contracted out, 
with contract management retained in house.  Alternative options 
might be viable in respect of some of the components, dependent 
on the Council’s policy approach. Further detailed analysis was 
required of the key components to establish the optimum route to 
delivery, combined with policy direction 

 
59.5 As part of the due diligence process, iESE were instructed to 
undertake a review of both the Locality and CIPFA reports.  A summary 
of their review identified the following:- 
 

• Further policy direction and weighting was required into 
strategic objectives for asset management such as whether to 
maximise revenues, achieve capital receipts, reducing revenue 
costs and improving customer experience etc. 

• Moving to a corporate landlord model was supported; it was 
recommended that the Council consider a “commissioning 
model” approach particularly with regard to delivery of facilities 
management, repairs and maintenance and property 
management services.  

• The key principle that “every asset, operational or non 
operational should generate a surplus or capital receipt within 
agreed timescales” required policy direction and needed to 
incorporate a wider, more balanced approach including 
strategic drivers, the “custodian role” of the Council, service 
objectives etc. 

• The implementation plan for a corporate landlord needed to be 
linked to the ‘end state’ target operating model, with 
opportunities, risks, constraints, communications, resource 
capability and policy direction aligned with this objective. 

• There were short to medium term opportunities to create 
efficiencies in facilities management by consolidating on the 
current large number of suppliers.  In the medium to long term 
even greater opportunities existed in both ‘hard’ and ‘soft’ 

Page 10



11 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 
facilities management through a combined Eastbourne Borough 
Council and Eastbourne Homes procurement. 

 
59.6 The findings of a ‘headline’ review of each and every non 
operational asset undertaken by the estates team were as follows:- 
 

1. A significant proportion of non operational assets achieved a 
yield below 5% (5% being equivalent to the approximate cost of 
capital to EBC).  
2. That the preparation of a strategic programme of disposals of 
non operational assets could lead to significant capital receipts to 
assist in the funding of the backlog of repairs to core operational 
assets and support the MTFS. 
3. Alternatively, these capital receipts could be reinvested, to 
achieve a minimum target yield of say 5%, realising additional net 
income.  

 
It was suggested that the preparation of a disposal programme was 
aligned to the MTFS to allow funds to be released as necessary to meet 
the priorities of the Council. This was envisaged to be from 2015/16. 
 
59.8 The implementation of a corporate landlord model would involve 
substantial cultural change and additional resources.  Alignment with 
Future Model phase 2,  potential synergies with Eastbourne Homes and 
the potential for shared services with partnership authorities would need 
to be explored to ensure maximum efficiencies could be obtained.  The 
restructure of the estates team would need to be in place from April 
2015.  It was proposed that a detailed implementation plan including 
performance targets, governance and policy direction would be 
submitted to a future meeting of the Cabinet. 
 
59.9 From the original £90,000 authorised to be released from the 
strategic change fund for the asset challenge programme, approximately 
£45,000 remained.  It was proposed that the remaining funds be utilised 
to assist with the transition programme to a full corporate landlord 
model.  Further resources would be required and it was intended this be 
met from the savings and income growth generated from the 
programme. 
 
59.10 Resolved (key decision): (1) That the contents of the report of 
the Senior Head of Development and the report of Locality be noted. 
 
(2) That the recommendations in relation to the corporate landlord 
model laid out in the report of the Senior Head of Development be 
approved as follows: 

(i) Agree to implement measures necessary to progress towards a 
sustainable asset base: and 
(ii) authorise the implementation of a full corporate landlord model by 
April 2015, using the remaining £45,000 of the original budget for 
assistance with the implementation plan. 

 

Page 11



12 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 

 

(3) Agree to the general principle of the recommendations made by 
Locality and accept the strong financial business case that sits behind 
these recommendations but also accept that Eastbourne Borough Council 
has ambitions and concerns which are not entirely financial and so there 
will be a need to temper these principles in some cases. To this end, 
Cabinet accepts that: 

(a) There is a need to consider the value of the contribution of all 
assets on a case by case basis. The total value of an asset is the 
financial, social, community, environmental, cultural, health, and 
economic development value of the asset to the local community and 
the council. 
(b) Where a decision is taken to not achieve best financial value for 
the council in relation to any asset, it must be clear what other value 
is being placed upon that asset. 
(c) There is a limit as to how many times and to what extent the 
council will be able to make non financial led decisions if it is to 
achieve the stated ambition of a sustainable asset base. 

 
(4) That the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the Strategic 
Property Board, be delegated with the task of exploring means to make 
the process in resolution 3(b) above transparent within the Council's 
financial reporting arrangements. 
 

60 Employment Land Local Plan  
 

60.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Senior Head of Development.  
In May 2012, the Eastbourne core strategy local plan had been subject to 
public examination by a planning inspector.  The inspector had expressed 
concerns over the evidence that supported core strategy policy D2: 
economy, particularly relating to the employment land supply.  In order 
to address this issue without delaying the adoption of the core strategy, 
the Inspector recommended that this particular policy be the subject of 
an early review, leading to its replacement with an additional local plan 
to deal specifically with the employment land supply.  This review would 
be subject to public examination and should be adopted by the end of 
2014.  The core strategy was subsequently adopted in February 2013. 
 
60.2 In order to meet this requirement, an employment land local plan 
(ELLP) had been prepared for consultation.  The plan would guide job 
growth and economic development to 2027 as well as identifying an 
appropriate supply of land for future employment development. 
 
60.3 There was a requirement to provide 43,000 sq.m. of class B floor-
space over the plan period.  This amount was based on forecasting 
projections that assumed growth in key sectors in Eastbourne and 
increased participation rates as economic activity and working age 
population grew.  It was considered important that more jobs were 
created in more diverse areas to reduce reliance on tourism, and that 
space be provided for start-up businesses to encourage indigenous 
business growth.  The report commented that much of existing 
commercial space in the town did not meet occupier standards, which 
meant that employment land was being lost to other uses.  The plan 

Page 12



13 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 
aimed to encourage the supply of high quality space that met business 
needs and ensured key sites in employment locations were protected. 
 
60.4 Resolved (key decision): (1) That the proposed draft 
employment land local plan be approved for the purposes of consultation 
with the community and key stakeholders between December 2013 and 
March 2014. 
 
(2) That the Senior Head of Development, in consultation with the lead 
Cabinet member, be given delegated authority to make minor 
amendments to the draft plan before the commencement of the 12 week 
consultation period. 
 

61 Council Tax and Business Rates Collection and Enforcement 
Policy  

 

61.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Revenues and Benefits 
Manager presenting a policy for the collection of council tax and business 
rates.  A copy of the proposed policy and equality analysis were 
appended to the report.  In drafting the policy account had been taken of 
the Citizens Advice Bureau’s ‘Collection of Council Tax Arrears Good 
Practice Protocol’ and the Department for Communities and Local 
Government’s ‘Guidance to local councils on good practice in the 
collection of Council Tax arrears’. 
 
61.2 The aims of the policy were: 

• To bill customers accurately and in a timely manner. 
• To help customers get the discounts and exemptions they are 
entitled to. 
• To comply with relevant legislation. 
• To take into account guidance and best practice. 
• To collect taxes due in a fair and efficient manner. 
• To provide payment methods that are convenient to the 
taxpayer. 
• To discharge the Council’s duty in relation to the recovery of 
council tax and business rates. 
• To take recovery action taking into account individual’s 
circumstances as far as practicable. 
• To make use of distress or committal only as a last resort. 
• To treat individuals consistently and fairly, regardless of age, 
sex, gender, disability, race and sexual orientation. 
• To protect individuals rights under data protection and human 
rights legislation. 

 
61.3 Consultation had taken place with Citizens Advice Bureau, 
Eastbourne Disability Involvement Group, East Sussex Credit Union, 
Salvation Army, Eastbourne Cultural Communities Network, Crime 
Reduction Partnership, East Sussex County Council and Activating 
Eastbourne. 
 
61.4 Resolved (key decision): That the policy is adopted. 
 

Page 13



14 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 

 

62 Equal Pay Audit  
 

62.1 Cabinet considered the report of the Head of Corporate 
Development giving an update on the actions taken following the equal 
pay audit conducted in 2011 and further actions scheduled for the next 
12 to 18 months. 
 
62.2 Following the introduction of a revised pay and grading structure for 
the Council in 2008, a commitment had been made to test the model via 
an equal pay audit once the full suite of pay and reward processes had 
embedded.  The audit took place between April and July 2011 and the 
findings were reported to Cabinet in December 2011.  The Cabinet were 
told of the key findings and further work that was required to ensure the 
Council continued to improve equality in pay.  Most importantly, the 
audit found no evidence that the gender pay gap was attributable to 
direct or indirect unfair discrimination in the Council’s processes or 
decision making. 
 
62.3 Work on implementing the recommendations of the audit was 
deferred until the outcome of phase one of Future Model had bedded in.  
In the Spring of 2013, a working group officers from across a range of 
services and a representative of the Unison branch had been established.  
The group had met several times to consider the recommendations and 
actions arising from the audit.  The group determined that the gender 
pay gap remained similar to the original audit at about 15% and when 
the chief officer roles were excluded this reduced to 5.28%.  Although 
these figures could only be regarded as indicative, they demonstrated 
that the same issues remained in relation to the pay gap.  
 
62.4 The group had agreed an action plan (circulated separately in the 
confidential part of the agenda as it comprised exempt information - 
Exempt information reasons 1 and 2 - information relating to an 
individual or likely to reveal the identity of an individual) which identified 
actions already undertaken, as well as areas for further development and 
action.  The group would continue to meet to further develop the 
Council’s approach to ensuring equality of pay and address the key issue 
of how the Council would reduce or eliminate the gender pay gap.  Key 
work streams would continue to be: 

• Raising awareness of gender pay gap/imbalance at the top in 
future recruitment 

• Ensuring challenge for corporate change proposals which may 
compound pay gap, especially with part-timers 

• Reviewing support and development for females over age 40 who 
are part timers and/or post-maternity leave 

• Identifying options for making the workforce more representative 
of the local community in terms of ethnic make up and disability. 

 
62.5 Resolved: (1) That the actions taken to date and the work 
undertaken by the Equal Pay Working Party be noted. 
 
(2) That the action plan for the next 12 to 18 months be agreed. 
 

Page 14



15 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 11 December 2013 

 
(3) That a further equal pay audit in be undertaken in 2015/16 following 
the completion of Phase 2 of Future Model. 
 

63 Exclusion of the Public  
 

Resolved: That the public be excluded from the remainder of the 
meeting as otherwise there was a likelihood of disclosure to them of 
exempt information as defined in schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972.  The relevant paragraphs of schedule 12A and descriptions of 
the exempt information are shown in minute 62 above and in the items 
below.  (The requisite notices had been given under regulation 5 of the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012.). 
 

64 Summary of confidential proceedings for information.  
 

The full minutes of the under-mentioned items are set out in the 
confidential section of these minutes.  The reports remain confidential. 
 
 (a) Alternative Employment Procedure   

 

  64.1 Cabinet noted that 2 employees were subject to the 
procedure at present. They noted the actions taken to 
manage implications of change for displaced individuals. 
 
Exempt information reasons 1 and 2 – Information relating 
to an individual or likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual. 
 

 (b) Devonshire Park project – legal update   
 

  64.2 Cabinet considered legal advice in relation to the 
Council’s proposed financial support to the Devonshire Park 
project and agreed European Commission notification was 
not required in relation to the current proposals. 
 
Exempt information reasons 3 and 5 - information relating 
to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information) and 
information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 
 

 
The meeting closed at 6.22 pm 
 
 
 
 
 Councillor David Tutt 
 Chairman 
 
 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



BODY: CABINET 
 

DATE: 5th February 2014 
 

SUBJECT: Corporate Performance - Quarter 3 2013/14 
 

REPORT OF: Deputy Chief Executive 
 

Ward(s): All 
 

Purpose: To update Members on the Council’s performance against 
Corporate Plan priority actions, performance indicators, 
targets and the strategic risk register for Quarter 3 2013/14. 
 
To inform Cabinet of the Council’s provision financial outturn 
for Quarter 3 2013/14.  
 

Contact: William Tompsett, Strategic Performance Manager 
Tel 01323 415418 or internally on ext 5418  
 
Pauline Adams, Financial Services Manager 
Tel 01323 415979 or internally on ext 5979.  
 

Recommendations: Members are asked to: 
 

 i) Agree the performance against national and local 
Performance Indicators and Actions from the 2010/15 
Corporate Plan (2013 refresh). 

ii) Agree the General Fund, HRA and Collection Fund 
financial performance for the quarter ended December 
2013, as set out in sections 4,5 & 6. 

iii) Approve the virements and transfers to and from 
reserves as set out in Appendix 3 

iv) Approve the amended capital programme as set out in 
Appendix 4.  

v) Agree the Treasury Management Performance as set 
out in section 7.  

  
1.0 Introduction  

 
1.1 The 2010/15 Corporate Plan was refreshed for 2013 and sets out a number 

of key actions and indicators to deliver and measure progress against key 
priorities. Throughout the year, performance against these key indicators 
and milestones is reported to Cabinet and Scrutiny committees on a 
quarterly basis and to Scrutiny monthly. 
 

1.2 The information in these performance reports is collected and managed 
using the Covalent performance management system. Further detail behind 
the report and evidence providing a full and robust audit trail for the 
performance information presented is available to view within the online 

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



 

system.  Member training sessions dedicated to accessing and using 
Covalent have been carried out and Members are invited to contact the 
Strategic Performance Team at any time to arrange individual training 
support on using the system if required. 
 

1.3 In the absence of a National Performance Framework it is important that the 
authority continues to strengthen its own performance management 
procedures particularly in relation to the use of robust local indicators and 
meaningful reporting against actions and activities. The actions, milestones 
and performance indicators in the Corporate Plan refresh 2013 have been 
chosen to reflect this year’s priority activities and objectives with a view to 
realising the longer term vision set out in the Corporate Plan. 
 

2.0 Performance Overview 

2.1 Appendix 1 is a detailed report on the 2013/14 activities and outturns of 
the performance indicators listed within the Corporate Plan. This report 
shows the latest available outturns for the Local Performance Indicators 
featured in the 2010/15 Corporate Plan broken down into themed areas.   
 

2.2 Each project has been allocated a number of in-year actions and milestones 
to be completed in order to progress the project efficiently. Some projects 
may be fully completed within the year whereas larger scale priorities will be 
delivered over a longer period. The first section of Appendix 1 lists all 
the Corporate Plan priority actions whose in-year milestones have 
already been fully completed this year. Full details of the specific 
milestones and commentary for these actions is available on request or 
directly via the covalent Performance Management System. 
 

2.3 The second section of Appendix 1 lists the ongoing actions showing all 
milestones that were scheduled for completion in quarter 3 of 2013/4 and 
any incomplete milestones from earlier in the year along with commentary 
to explain the context behind them.  
 

2.4 Chapter summary text has been supplied by the relevant Heads of Service to 
provide added context for the performance reported in each section. This 
commentary highlights important achievements and challenges for the 
reporting period and can be found at the start of each chapter. 
 

2.5 The PI tables show which indicators related to the priority projects are 
performing on target (green tick icon), failing to reach target (red octagonal 
icon) or are “near misses” (amber triangle icon). Relative performance is 
based on quarterly targets as set by the managers of each area using past 
performance, available benchmarking and planned service developments. 
 

2.6 The current outturn for each PI is shown on the performance gauges in 
column 4 – “Year to date”. The gauges show visually how the level of 
performance compares to targets (green zones) and “near miss” levels 
(amber zones). Amber zones have been reviewed to reflect appropriate 
levels of performance expectation and any national targets which are lower 
than our own local aspirations. 
 

Page 18



 

2.7 The bar charts in column 6 show comparative performance against previous 
quarters/years as appropriate. This enables an “at a glance” indication of 
whether performance is improving or not and will help identify potential 
trends and seasonality of performance.  
 

2.8 Commentary has been included in the action and indicator outturn tables 
where supplied. This provides some contextual background to the 
performance and this function and is backed up by the online evidence 
collation facility of the Covalent system. 
 

2.9 Of the 37 Key Performance Indicators reported in the Corporate Plan this 
quarter, 8 are currently showing as “Red,” 17 are showing as “Green,” 4 are 
showing as “Amber” and 8 are “data only” or contextual PIs.  The off target 
PIs are... 
 

• TL_041 Number of visitors (day visitors and staying trips) 
• ECSP_004 Violent crime in a public place  
• TL_014 Towner visitors 
• CD_008 Decent Homes programme 
• CD_052 Number of homes where Category 1 hazards have been 

remedied 
• CD_055 Number of completed adaptations 
• CD_056 Average number of days for assistance with adaptations 
• CS_011 Telephone call abandonment rate 

 
2.10 We now have the capability within Covalent to analyse performance data via 

dashboard reporting. This allows us to look beyond green – amber – red 
performance reporting and drill down more into the data and what it is 
telling us. This showed that the following PIs were the best performing: 
 

 
 

2.11 Devolved Budget spend is reported at the end of the appended performance 
report. The table lists the projects supported and the overall spend per ward. 
Management of Devolved Budget projects is co-ordinated on Covalent and 
more detail on specific projects and activities is available on request or direct 
from the Covalent system. 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

3.0 Financial Performance – General Fund 

3.1 General Fund performance for the year to 31 December 2013 is shown in the 
table below: 
Department Full 

Year 

Budget 

Profiled 

Budget 

Actual to 

31 Dec 

13 

Variance 

to date 

Projected 

Outturn 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

SUMMARY          

Corporate Services 11,635 9,519 9,508 (11) (15) 

Community Services 151 35,216 35,130 (86) (34) 

Tourism & Leisure Services 2,892 2,412 2,650 238 261 

Total Service Expenditure 14,678 47,147 47,288 141 212 

Contingencies etc 428 319 138 (181) (242) 

Capital Financing and Interest 1,661 1,108 1,108 - - 

Contributions to/(from) 

Reserves 754 754 754 - - 

Net Expenditure 17,521 49,328 49,288 (40) (30) 

 
Service Details are shown at Appendix 2.  
 

3.2 The position to the end of December is a positive variance of (£40,000) on 
net expenditure which is a movement of (£118,000) compared to the 
position at the end of the second quarter in September.  
 

3.3 Service expenditure has a variance of £141,000 a positive movement from 
September of (£40,000). The main reasons for this improvement are: 
 

Main Variances over £50k 
To Sept 

13 
To Dec 

13 Movement 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Refuse Collection Contract Savings (80) (115) (35) 
Cremation and cemetery income over 
target (40) (67) (27) 
Cremation utilities savings from 
installation of new cremators (53) (53)  
Grounds maintenance additional costs 
from contract dispute 105 105  
Revenues and Benefits additional 
administration costs 71 71  
Shortfall in Catering income 100 128 28 
 
This service overspend is off set by the saving on the contingency fund.  
 

3.4 The projected outturn shows a favourable variance of (£30,000). This is 
within 0.17% of the net budget and is within an acceptable tolerance level. 
However management continues to manage this position to ensure that this 
is achieved.  
 

3.5 The contingency allowance currently stands at £241,529 and has been used 
to offset service expenditure. Therefore there is no further funding available 
for any future unforeseen one off areas of expenditure during the year.  

Page 20



 

3.6 Financial procedure rules require all virements requests over £10,000 for 
revenue expenditure to be approved by Cabinet. There is one request for 
this quarter as set out in Appendix 3 and related to the approved phased 
reduction in the grant payable to the Allotments Society.  
 

3.7 Member’s approval is also sought for the transfer from reserves as set out in 
Appendix 3. These transfers are in line with the approved financial 
strategy.  
 

4.0 Financial Performance – HRA  

4.1 HRA performance for the year to 31 December 2013 is as follows:  
 
  Current 

Budget 

Profiled 

Budget 

Actual to 

31 Dec 13 

Variance 

to date 

Projected 

Outturn 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

HRA 
       

  

Income  (14,994) (11,053) (10,987) 66 12 

Expenditure 15,097 6,032 5,722 (310) (430) 

Total HRA 103 (5,021) (5,265) (244) (418) 

 
 

4.2 The HRA surplus variance is due to a reduction in income from rents and 
services changes due to the delay in the expected completion of the 
sheltered accommodation remodelling schemes, off set by savings in the 
provision for Bad Debts.  
 

4.3 A prudent increase in the provision for Bad Debts was included in the 
2013/14 budget to offset any effect of the new benefits regime. Rent 
collection performance has continued at prior year levels, and therefore the 
expected increase in rent arrears has not materialised as expected. The bad 
debt provision has been decreased to reflect this situation.  
 

4.4 The projected outturn is showing a surplus of (£418,000) mainly due to the 
change in the bad debt provision and lower than anticipated interest rates on 
new and replacement debt taken during the year.  
 

5.0 Financial Performance – Capital Programme 

5.1 The detailed capital programme is shown at Appendix 4. Actual expenditure 
at 52% of the budget is lower than expected as a number of schemes have 
been delayed in starting or have not yet started in particular in the following 
areas but expenditure is expected in the next quarter: 
 

• Housing Major Works schemes  
• Support Housing in Eastbourne Programme  
• Coastal Defence Works 
• Play Equipment 
• IT software upgrades  
• Bandstand works.  

 
 

Page 21



 

5.2 The 2013/14 programme has now been re-profiled to reflect start dates and 
planned works.  
 

6.0 Financial Performance – Collection Fund  

6.1 The Collection Fund records all the income from Council Tax and National 
Non-Domestic Rates and its distribution to the major precepting authorities. 
With the introduction of the new system for the local retention of business 
rates, the performance of the Collection Funding is now included as part of 
the performance monitoring and results shared with major preceptors.  
 

6.2 The projected Collection Fund for the year is as follows:  
 

  
Council 

Tax 

Business 

Rates 

  £'000 £'000 

Balance B/fwd (169) - 

Debit due for year (52,110) (33,580) 

Payments to preceptors 52,212 33,699 

Allowance for cost of collection    127 

Provision for backdated appeals   140 

Write offs and provision for bad debts 168 329 

Estimated balance 31.3.14 101 715 

Allocated to:     

CLG     

East Sussex County Council  73 358 

Eastbourne Borough Council  14 286 

Sussex Police 9 64 

East Sussex Fire & Rescue 5 7 

  101 715 

   

. 
6.3 This represents a variance over the quarter two monitoring of £61,000 and 

£7,000 for Council Tax and Business Rates respectively.  
 

6.4 The Council Tax deficit is due to higher than budgeted take up of the Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme less a reduction in the number of Single Persons 
Discounts awarded. The deficit represents 0.19% of the gross debit due.  
 

6.5 Business Rate income is down on that expected due to the number of 
successful appeals having been settled in the year and lower than 
anticipated growth in rateable values. The deficit represents 2% of the gross 
debit due.  
 

6.6 The allocations to preceptors reflect the operation of the Collection Fund for 
Council Tax and retained Business Rates which are distributed on different 
bases under regulations. The Council is required to estimate the Collection 
Fund Balance as at 15 January each year and inform major preceptors for 
distribution in 2014/15. This has now been done for Council Tax based on 
the quarter three monitoring and major preceptors informed. There has 
however been a delay in receiving the necessary documentation from DCLG 
in regard the Business Rates calculation and the deadline for returning the 
information to preceptors is now 31 January.  

Page 22



 

6.7 Collection performance is as follows: 
 

Cash Collection Rates Council Tax 

Business 

Rates 

Q3 Actual  84.25% 87.58% 

Q3 Target 85.40% 88.30%  
7.0 Treasury Management  

7.1 The Annual Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators 2014/15 is 
being considered by Cabinet elsewhere on this agenda. Below is a summary 
of the main points from the current economic background and interest rate 
forecasts.  
 

7.2 Economic Background 
 
The World Bank announced that the global economy is at a “turning point” 
and this rosy outlook was reflected in a string of positive data releases for 
the UK and the US but not for the Eurozone. Encouraging inflation and retail 
sales figures from both the UK and US have been received, but the 
Eurozone’s inflation outlook is somewhat more troubling.  
 
For the first time in four years, UK inflation figures hit the Bank of England’s 
(BoE) target level. December’s Consumer Price Index (CPI) grew 2.0% 
according to the Office for National Statistics (ONS), a result that eases 
pressure on both the BoE and the Government. The fall in inflation reinforces 
the Bank’s strategy of maintaining interest rates at their record low of 0.5% 
whilst the economy continues to pick up speed.  
 
UK retail sales, are showing the fastest growth in 9 years. The 2.6% percent 
increase in sales in December contributed to a 5.3% annual rise which is the 
best growth figure seen since October 2004. This news was somewhat 
unexpected as economists had forecast growth to be similar to that seen in 
November at around 0.4%. 
 
Latest data release showed a hefty increase in the number of people 
employed within the UK workforce, whilst the ILO unemployment figure 
(calculated quarterly) fell from 7.6% to 7.4%. 
 

7.3 Interest Rate Forecast 
 
Capita have decided to maintain their central Bank Rate view, for the 
moment at least, that an apparently strong 2014 economic recovery built 
upon consumer spending will taper off somewhat in the medium term and 
that the clamour for interest rates to rise prior to 2015 may well be replaced 
by concerns that the economy is still too weak to be subject to any 
significant rise in interest rates. 
 
Interest rates are therefore expected to remain unchanged, but then 
increase in Quarter 2 2016 to 0.75% (previously Q3 2016) and then again in  
Quarter 3 2016 to 1%.  
 

7.4 Annual Investment Strategy 
 

Page 23



 

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2013/14, which 
includes the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 
20 February 2013. It sets out the Council’s investment priorities as being: 
 

• Security of Capita; 
• Liquidity; 
• Yield 

 
A full list of investment held as at 31 December 2013 is shown in the table 
below: 
 

Counterparty Amount Interest Rate Maturity 

  £ %   

Royal Bank of Scotland 3,900,000 0.70 Call 

Santander 1,075,000 0.40 Call 

Bank of Scotland 2,000,000 0.40 Call 

Royal Bank of Scotland 100,000 0.80 90 day Account 

Bank of Scotland 2,000,000 0.95 3.2.14 

  9,075,000     

 
Following the downgrading of the Co-op Bank to BB- in May, the advice from 
Capita was for the council to minimise exposure, in light of this a maximum 
operational balance of £500,000 is being dept in the Reserve account at any 
one time. This has had consequences on the ability to invest elsewhere due 
the limited number of counterparties available that met the criteria set out in 
the TMSS and the limit of £4m as a maximum amount to be held with any 
particular bank or building society. This limit was breached once over the 
quarter by £1m for 4 nights (15-18 November).  
 
Investment rates available in the market have continued at historically low 
levels. Funds are available on temporary basis for investment and arise 
mainly from the timing of the precept payments, receipts of grants and 
progress on the capital programme 
 

7.5 Investment Performance 
 
Investment performance for the quarter ending 31 December 2013 is as 
follows: 
 
 

Benchmark 
Benchmark 

Return 
Council 

Performance 
Interest 
Earning  

7 day 0.36% 0.68% £45,000 

 
As illustrated, the authority out performed the benchmark by 0.32. The 
Council’s budgeted investment return for 2013/14 is £50,000 and 
performance for the year is likely to exceed this.  
 
 

7.6 Borrowing  
 

Page 24



 

New borrowing during the quarter has been undertaken as follows: 
 

Start 
Date 

End 
Date Lender  Amount Interest Rate 

19.12.13 19.6.18 Neath Port Talbot Council  £4,000,000 2.20% 

 
Cash flow predictions indicated that further borrowing will be required during 
quarter four. The exact timing and nature of this borrowing will be 
considered at that time, however to maintain a sustainable maturity profile it 
is anticipated that new borrowing will be at maturity dates between 5 and 10 
years. 
 

7.7 Compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits 
 
It is a statutory duty for the Council to determine and keep under review the 
affordable borrowing limits. The Council’s approved Treasury and Prudential 
Indicators (affordability limits) are included in the approved TMSS.  

During the quarter to 31 December 2013 the Council, apart from that 
mentioned above at section 7.4, has operated within all the other treasury 
limits and Prudential Indicators set out in the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement and in compliance with the Council’s 
Treasury Management Practices. 
 

8.0 Consultation 
 

8.1 Not applicable 

9.0 Implications 
 

9.1 There are no significant implications of this report. 
 

10.0 Conclusions 

10.1 This report provides an overview of performance against the authority’s 
priority actions and indicators as at the end of Quarter 3 2013/14. Progress 
against the key projects and indicators is updated on the online Covalent 
system on a regular basis and provides a “live” view of the Council’s 
performance accessible at any time. 
 

10.2 The variances within both the General Fund and HRA budget are well within 
tolerance levels, however risks within the budget will continue to be careful 
monitored.  
 

10.3 Capital expenditure is low compared to the budget but this is expected as 
some major schemes have yet to commence.  

10.4 The Collection Fund forecast for Council Tax and Business Rates are showing 
deficits of £101,000 and £715,000 at the end of quarter 3. These balances 
represent 0.19% and 2% of the gross debits due and will be allocated to the 
major precepting authorities during 2014/15.  

10.5 Treasury Management performance is on target and apart from one occasion 
when the investment maximum allowed to any one counterparty was 

Page 25



 

breached all other activities were within the approved Treasury and 
Prudential Limits.  

 
 

William Tompsett 
Strategic Performance Manager 
 
Pauline Adams 
Financial Services Manager 
 
Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
Corporate Plan 2010/15 (2013 refresh) 
Covalent performance management system reports 
Budget monitoring working papers as at 31.12.13 
Capita Treasury Solution weekly newsletter 17.1.14 
 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer listed 
above. 

 

Page 26



 

 

���������	��
��
���	���	������	������� 
�
�

�

 
�
��
���	����� �
�����	 ������	 ������	

����������	
�
�������
����
�������	

�����������
���
�������������
�
�
���
��������
� �

�
���
���	
����������
��
�
�����������
����� ���!�"�

 
 

P
age 27



 

 

���
��
	�	���������	������� 
�
�

�

 
���
���#����� #������ �
��������� ��
����
� $��
� �����
�
��

�������� ��������%��&
�����
�����
�
����
���

�������� ����'��&�����	
�
�
������	�����������
�����
������(����
������
�
������
����������
�
����������&��
�

)����
���������
� ��(�
�( ����
������	����
�����
��
���������*
�����������
�����
�
���+��

,
�

�������� ��������%��&
�����
�����
�
����
���

�������� �����
�
�����	
�
������������
��������������
���&
��������������������+�

��
���
������������������&
���������
���
������������*��	��	
�%��&
�����-�����

��(.��( ����
#����
�������	
����������
/���
�
������
������
���
�0�
*	��	�*���������
��	�*���
�����	
�����
���
����
�
�������
��
���
�
���	����	��
�	������+��+
+��1���

,
�

�������� ��������%��&
�����
�����
�
����
���

�������� ��"�2
��
	��	
�

�����������
���3����������
*��	���	
������
��
�����
������
0�����0��
���
0�

������
�������	
���	�

�	
������������������	
�
4������
�������
����
���*�����
��
����
����������
���
�������*����������	
���������	
��
*�
������������

��(�
�( ����

���������
�*��&����*��	��	
�����������
�
����
���
�
�������
���
����5�������#������������
�
�
����
��������
��5��	
�
�����������
���*���������
���������	
��������������

,
�

�����������������
���(�
��*���
���
�%��
������

����������� �#���
�
�
����
���*��	���.���*
��

2
���
�����
���.���*
�+� ��(�
�( ����
�	
��*�
������	
�#�����
��
���
�	��
�������
����
�
��
�������������������������*��&�����	
���.�	��
�

���
���
��������
������
������
+��

$��

�����������������
���(�
��*���
���
�%��
������

������������������
������
�����	
�
�������
�����
������
�
�������
������
2��������
������
�
����� ��6�

�����
�
�����������������������
���+� �7(�
�( ���� �����������������
�
��������
����7��
�
��
�� ���+�� ,
�

��������
������*�
��������������*����
�	
�����
�����������
�
����
��+�

��($��( ����
�*�����������������������������
���������	�������
�
���
�������	
������*�
�������
����
�����
������
�
��	���
���
4������	
�1����������%���+��

,
�
��������"��������
���(�
���
�
����8�������9���
�
���&�

��������"�������
�
����
8�������9���
����&� ��������
������*�
�����������

��������������������������
��������
�
�
����
�����
+�

��($��( ����
�*�����������������������������
���������	�������
�
���
�������	
������*�
�������
����
�����
������
�
��	���
���
4������	
�1����������%���+��

,
�

�����
���
�������������
�
�������+� ��(.��( ����

���:
����
��������������
�
�����������
�
������

4�
���
��������
�
��+������
��������
�������
�����
������
������
��������������
4���������
��
������
*�����
�	������+��

,
�
��������7���������
�
;���������	
�
�

��������7����������	�
;���������	
�
�����
��������
�

�����
�
�������
�
�������
����

����
���:
����������
+�

��(.��( ���� ���:
�������
��
�+�� $��

��������<���������
�
���������	�������#�
��

��������<������-�=����������
����
���
�-����>�����������
�
*��	����
��������������

;
�������	����������������
��������
���!������
������������
�����
������
����
���
���������������*��������
+�

��(.��( ����
���&����
���������������-����������
�
�������������
��
���
�����
�$��6��
���
+��
�

,
�

P
age 28



 

 

���
���#����� #������ �
��������� ��
����
� $��
� �����
�
��


��������	���������
������
��

���
����	
���*���
���
�
*��	�����
�
���������

;
�����������
���
�����
��������
������

&����
�
���������
�������
���������
���������������*��
���������������
���
�����
������2����=$���
��
 �?����� �?>+��

����� ��6����������
����� ��6����1���
�
���
����
�2���
�

�����
�
��	�
� ����8��
���
*
������
�
����
+�

��(.��( ����
�	
�����
�����
�	���

�������
�
�������	
����������
�����	��������
������ 6�.����
�+��

,
�

����� ��<�����
�����������&�
����� ��<��"�$
*������

/����
�������9������
��
�
���

�
��
��������������������������+� ��($��( ����
���������������������������
��
�
����� "�.����
��
 ���+��

,
�

����� ��<�����
�����������&�
����� ��<��7�1�����
�
���
�����������������@��
�����
'����

�
��
��������������������������+� ��(.��( ����
���������������������������
��
�
����� "�.����
��
 ���+��

,
�

����������,���	�#�������
�
�������������1���
�
���
,���	������
���

%������������
��������#����������� ��(�
�( ����
�
�
��
�������
���������
������*�����+��	��*�����
�
����
������	
�����A������� ��"��

��������,���	�
�����
�	��+��

,
�

����������,���	�#�������
�
�����������"��
���
��
8
���	����������
����������

2
����
���
�����
��������������
�
�
����
������*
���
�

��(�
�( ����

1����
������������	
�*
���
�������
�����
��
�	����	����
������+�������
��	��	����������
��
���
���������	
��
������	���

����&
������&�
����	
����������(���������
��
����
�*��	�������B���
���&�(������&
��	����
������	
������	����	
��*����
�	
���
��������������
��	
��
���
���������
�������
������������	
�����������������	
�*
���
0�C��
���&�
���
������*���
�+��	��*�����
���������������	
�
�������+��
�����
������
�������;���
����*����	��
����*
��������������������B#����
��������8
���	�
�����
�
��������
�����*��&�*��	���������������������
�������������������������������
�	
���	�����
���
�
����	
�*����*��&����
���*��	��	
����������
���������������:
����
+��	
����������������
����������������������������	
�@���
��������9���	����
�����

���	�������	��������������
���������	�
�
��
��66D+��

,
�

�������� �1���������
$
��	����	�����
���
���

�������� �� �;����	�'����
'��&�

��������
����
�
������

��*��	�
�����
��!���&
	���
������ ��"�

 "(�
�( ����

.�����
���������	�������	��
��

��	��
��*��	�
�
��	����	�������
��������&
	���
������	
���������+�
#�����������	��
��

�����

��*��	�E����
�
!E����
���&���
�����
�+�#���

�����������
������	
�������*����
�
����
�����%������
�
��
�� �����������������
������
�
��������
�������	
������
�1��
���������
�
��	����	��������������
��0����
��*	��	�*��&�*����
�
����������������:�������
����
�
������ ��"+��

,
�

P
age 29



 

 

���
���#����� #������ �
��������� ��
����
� $��
� �����
�
��

;��&��
�
���
��*��	�������������
����������&���0��������������
������
���

����
�����������
���
�

��(�
�( ����
��
4���*������
�
�������	
�����������������
��
	��
����
��
���

�������� ���������

�����*��	�
����
������������������������
�����:�����*��&+��

,
�

�������� �1���������
$
��	����	�����
���
���

�������� ������������
�
�
����
����������	�
����
�
������������
�

,%�#�����	���������
��������
�� ��(�
�( ����

%

�����*��	�,%�#�������	�$��
��
���
��
*
��
�����
��������

����
���
�������������������
-�����������	������
���������� ��"+�#��

��������
A�������<�	�*��	����������
�
��,���	���������
�
����
��
��
*
������
������������&����
����
�
���
����	��
*��
���������������������
�����	�+��,��*����
���
�����

����������
����������	��	��
*��
������
8����
�����&����
����
�*��	�,������
���
��	
�
�����
,%�#�*�����

�������
��������
*��������
������*���
���
��������*��	��������
���
�����	
���
�+�,%�#�	��
�
�
�
���
���
*�C�������C��&��
�������;����
������
����
���	��
�����	
������
*�����	0������	�

�'�
�
@�������������������
���������7+��	

���
����������
��
���
��������������������������������������
���������
4����
�	
���	�����
���
�

�+������������
���	��,������,%�#�*�����

�����������	
�������
�
���
��	
����
�*��&����*��	�����*������*��&����
���
�	
�����
������������	
�+�;��
��,%�#�
������������
���������������
������*�����+�.�	
��
��������
�����	
�����/����
��������
���	
�,���	�C���0���
,���	�C�����	��������	
�,���	�2���������������
��������
��������
0�����	�����������0�������
����
�����������*��&����:
��������
��+��

,
�

�������� �1���������
$
��	����	�����
���
���

�������� ��"������
��������
��
���
��������

%����������/����
���� ��(�
�( ����

�	
�����������	���

���
��
	
�����������
������
 ���!"�������������
����
���*��	��	
��������������
�������������
��������*	����&

���������
�����
��������������
�������
+�����
���������	
��<�������0�
 ����
�����
�����	�*������

�������	��������
��	
�
��:����������������������*��	��	
�
4�
��������������
���
������������	
��������#�9!8��
�����
��
��������
��
��*	��	���������
��������������	�
� ���������
�
���
�������	
�F��

�����������������������G����	�
*	��	���
�����
�����	�*�������
�+��	
��
�����
�����
���
�����������
��
���������������
4���
��
���������
������
�	����
�
�����������
����
�
������	��	
���
�
���������*��	������������
�
�
�
��
�������
����B���
��
�����2
�������
2
���
�����+�8�����������	����������������
��������&�
����
�����������	
����
�
����
����
���
�����
��������
H���
���������
��������
�����
���
��
���

,
�

P
age 30



 

 

���
���#����� #������ �
��������� ��
����
� $��
� �����
�
��

����
��+��

�
�������

������2
���
�
���������
�
���
���������#��	
��������+�

��(.��( ����

1��	���

�����

������8;��	�����
������
�����*��&�
���
���&
�����#��	
����������������������������	���
�	
����:
���*���������
������������
�
��
���
���������
�	
�����������������*�����
�����

���
�
���8��
�
��������0�*��	���
������������*��&+��	

������
�
/��������8�*��&�	��
��

����
�����
�������	
�
�����������*��&�	��
��

������
���������

��
�
�*

���8;0��9������CC�0��	
��
�
����
�����
��+��

,
�

����������%�4�����������
8������#
��

�������������C���	��
�
���
8��
�����2
���
�
���������

����������
�����������������
�
��
��
����2
���
�
���������2
���
���������
#��	
���������

��($��( ����

#���
����������

�������
����
�������������
%��
���
0�#��	
������������������
���
����������
�
���
��
�������	
�
���
��������
��������:���
����������*��&������
��������
/�
����������
����������
��������������
/���
�+��	
��
��
������
�	
�I�
�
*������&���	
���������	������������
�����
���
������I�*��&�����
����
���&
�����#��	
���������
*
�
��
�
��
����� ��	�$��
��
�� ���+�#������������
�	
��
��
���
�����*�����
�*

&�����
������ 6�	�
$��
��
�� �����������
����
��������������������	
�
��������
�����
��
�����	���

�����
�
������*����
�����+��

,
�

����������%�4�����������
8������#
��

�����������6�8����������
����������
�
����
���
���:
���

��������
������
�������
�� ��(�
�( ����

�	
������C���������������������
�2
�����	���

��
�����
�
������	
�8�������:
���9������������
������
	���

����&
��������
�����	
��*��&�����	
��
	���
�
�������
��
�������	
�����������������	
����
�
��������
��
�
����
��+��	
������
����
�����	
�8����
*���������

������
������
�
������	
�����
4������	
�
�����
������������������=���>��
�����
�
���
������	
�
;��������
����
������
�	��0�*	��	�������
�������
��
���-��
���
������#����� ��"+��	
��������5�8������
�
����
��
���	������
�����
���������
�����
�
�������
�	
�����������������
�-����������������������	
�
	������
�
�
���������+��

,
�

1��������
��
*����	��	��
�
��������� ��(.��( ����

8��	��
�
���������	��
��

��	��
��*��	��	
����:
���
9��������������
������0�*��	�����	
��*��&���&��������
�
*��	���������
�8��
�;����
�����
4����
��	
�����������
�������������	
������
�	��
�����	
��������5����������
���
��������
��	
��������5�C����
�%��
�����:
��+��

,
�

����������%�4�����������
8������#
��

�����������7�2
��
*�
8������%����
�
����������

1�(�
��	��
��
*������
�
��
��������� ��(�
�( ����
��������	��
���&
������
��
�*

���	
�������������
�8;�������	�*��
��8�������
����
������
�
������
���	����	��	
������������������	
��������5�

,
�

P
age 31



 

 

���
���#����� #������ �
��������� ��
����
� $��
� �����
�
��

�����
���
����������
�+�#�����
����������������
�
����
��������	��
��

�����

�������
�����
�
���&������
�������0������*����	���*����
�	���
�

�����
����������	�	��������������	������
����
+�
�8;������	
���������	��
�����������
������	
�8������
;��
����
�'��&	���*	��	�*����������	
����������������
�	
�	������
�
�
��������	
�����
����
����������
��
�������	
������
��������
�������	��8;������	
�
�������5�8�������
����
+��	��*��&�*������������

���
������	
�������/����
����� ���!�"+��

��������"������������
B���
����
�8��
	����

��������"������������
�������
�	���
�='
����
�2
����>�

)����
�����
�����J�������������
�
������
��

��(�
�( ����

'
��������
����������
��	
�������
4�'
����
�
2
����������
����
+�#����(���������������	�*������
-���
�2�����
�
����������*
�*�����
���������������
���
����	
���������
+�'��&��������
�������	
����������
���	
�����
�������	
����
/�
��
0�������������	
�
�
�
�������������

�
�0����'
����
�2
����+�'
���
����
����&�����
��������������
������
��������8������
����
���C���+��	
�����������������
������
������
����
����.����
�+�#�A���
���
����������
��*�����
�
�
���
����������
�����
���������������	�*��	��*����
*��&�����������
+�#�&
����
�����*��&�*�����
����	
���
�
���
������������������������	
��������
��+��

,
�

��������"������������
B���
����
�8��
	����

��������"��"�8��
�
�
�
�����
���

#
�����
���	��
�
�
�����
	�������������
����
���������	
�
��;-�����&��+�

��($��( ����

#��
������	���

����&
�����
4�
����	
�
����
�
������������	
�-������������������� ��6(�7+�
�	�����������*��	
��
�
����
������C����
�%��
�����
�
��
����

���	����
���&
�������������	
�-����
���������
����
�
��+�1��*��������*�����C����
�
%��
��
����
�����	�
�*	����
�	��
�
�����
�
����
����������
�������
�
���������
��������������
���	��	
�-�����������������C����
�%��
�+��

,
�

��������6���*��8����
����������8���

��������6��������������
8���

1���
�
�������������
�/����
���� ��(�
�( ����

�.�����������������
���&��������
�*��	������
�����
�
�
��������������
�������+�#������
��	��*��&���
��&��������
���������
��	�*�������������
������
������
����
��*��	����	
�����
4�������	����������
����������+�

,
�

��������7����������
�
�
����
���=�>�

��������7��<������
��	
�
�����
�������*�
�����
���
�
��
������
�����
�
*��	����	
�����
4������	
�
�
���	��
����&��
�
����
���

2
�������	������������

� ��(.��( ����
�	�����������
��=�����������
��>+� �����	
������

�
�������
�����$��
��
�� ���+�

,
�

��������7����������
�
�
����
���=�>�

��������7��?���������
��������
�����
������

����
��	
�8
�����
��
���
���
���
�
*��	����	
��
�������	
����

���
�
�(�)��

��(�
�( ����
2
�������

�������
���&��������
�*��	��	
�8
�����
�
�
���
0������������������������
���
��
����

,
�

P
age 32



 

 

���
���#����� #������ �
��������� ��
����
� $��
� �����
�
��

������
��	
�8
�����
��
���
� �����

�������
*���
��������
�	��
��

��
����
�
��
���

��������<����������
�
�
����
���= >�(��
���	��
�
���&�

��������<�� �.�������������
�
�
����
������������
���
�����
��������������
�
���	��
����&�3�������������
��������
�����
����������
����
����
�

#
����������������
�
���������
�
���
�����
������������������
��
���������������
+�

��(.��( ����

1��
�����
�����*���
�
��
���������#������������
�����
����	
���
��������
�����	
�
����
�����
�������
�����
�	
��
���	��
����&���������0�*��	����������
�
��������������=����������>��������
������	
�+��	
�
�����������	������	
�����
���
��������
�����
�
�������*����

��
������	
����:
���9���������6�	�
.����
�+��

,
�

.��������
��
*�����
�	������
�(�/����
��
��

��(�
�( ���� 2
�������
�	��������
��
*�	��
��

���������+� ,
�

�����"����������
����=C����
�
%��
���	�
�1>�

�����"�������C����
�
.�
�������%��
���	�
�1� �
��������
���������	
�
����������


����
������
��
*
��(�/����
����
��(�
�( ����

�
��������
��������
����
�������*

&�����������	���
���+�'��&��������������������
��	
�/�����������
����
���������
�
����
����+�

,
�

�����"����#
��
�����"�������#
��
%����
�
��������

2
��
*����
4������#%��������������������
����1�C#��
����
��������3������������
�����%�����������

��(�
�( ����

�����
��������
���	
��1�#��
����
�����������
����
�
����	
���������
�;��������%��
������ �
�
�
��
�+��	�����	���������*������*������
���	
�*��&�
����	
�#%��*	��	�*�����
������
���� ��"+��

,
�

 
 

P
age 33



 

 

 !�
�
���"	�������
�	#	�
����
���	$�����	%	�� 
�
�

�
 
�����������������
�	���

�����
���������	
���:����
�
����
������:
��+�#��
��
����������������������������	
�#�����
��
���
�
4�
�����	���

��������
�0����*�����	
����
��
������
���KL6���	
�
�������������?���

�����
�������<��
�������+��	
�������������
���
����
����*
����
����������������������+��	
�����������������&
�������
������
���
��	
����������
�������

�����	
������+�%
��*	��
�*��&��������
�*��	��	
�������
����+�;M-��������
��������	�
�����
�������������
���
����*	��
��	
����&������.����
���������

�
�������*�
�����
�
�+��
��
�	
�����������������	
�������
�
�������
������2����	��
��

�������	
�������	
������������������
�
�+��������������������
��	����	
��
����	���

��*
����
�
��
�������	
��
����*����
�
������	
���
4��/����
�+��	
�������
�
���*��&���
�
4�
��
������
������
�
��������� ��6�����������
�*��	��	�
�����
���������	
��
*�#�����
�
4�
����+��
��
�	
��
*�;���������������	
���*���
���
�	����*��

�������
�������������������������������
��
�����
�
���
��������
����*����*��	��	
��������������	
�������������
�����	
���*���
���
+��
��
�	
���������������������������	
������
��1����������%����������
�
����8�������	���

��������
�+��	�����:
������������&���������
�
��	
�������������
����� ��6+�%
��*	��
��	
���������
	�������
�
��*��&�������
*��������
���;���������������������
���
������
*�:��+��	�������
�
����	
�1����������%����*��	����������������������� �0����/���
��
��
��������
����
�
������
�
����8����������	�������
�����������
������
�����
������
��+��	
��
*��������������������
������������������������+��
�
���
���	��	$!���	�
�
#���	
��������
�/����
�������������������
����*�B�����������
��
��	�  ������������
���
*����
����
�
��
��������""J�����
�
���������������������&���������	
��
��+��	
������
�
*
���
��
��	
����
��	���������������
���
*������	
��
��0���������
�
��
������
��	
�
�*
�
��������������������
�
����������0�<L�����
��
�
�����=����&(�	����	>��������
��� L"J�
����
�
���������
�����
��
/�
�������
�
��
�� ����=������
����� �� >+�'
���	�
�
��"+7��������6��������������������
*�C��
���&����������	����������
���
���*�����
������	
��
����
��
�
�����������
�����
������+��
�
�	
�*���
��
�������
�
����
����*��	��	
���������
�������
�����
�����������6�	�.����
��*��	�������
�������
��
������<�������
����
��
�����"�����0����������
������9�H�
�
���
�
��0������*
������	
�9

��C
������������	�(� �	�.����
�+�"  ������������
��
����
���	
������0�*��	���
���6���

�������
�������*��	����
�0��
���
0������
���

������*��
�������7�7�
���������
�����
�*
�
�����&���������	
��
�����+�#���	
�
�������	
�����	0����������
�����	
�9
��	��8
���%����	���*
������A
�������	������1�
�0�*��	�����	
���066<�����	
��+�	
�������������
����	
�9
��	��8
�����&����&�����
�*��	��L<�����	
�0��
������������	
�������������������*��	����
�������	
�
�
��+��	
��
����������
��������
������	������	�������
�
����������
�	
��
���
�
��������������������I%
���%����I����C��� ?�	�$��
��
�0�I;����
��	
�
�I����C���7�	��
�
��
������F8�������.�����*���	�����I���������"�	��
�
��
�+��
 
 

P
age 34



 

 

�
����
���	$�����	�&�	'���
���(	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

+��� ��

��,�
� ��

-
��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

�;��"��9

��
C
������(����&
��
����

$����
���
��
����)����
��

�

"����

�

�	
����&
����
!�������������	
�
 ����9

��C
������*
�
�"  L�
�
�
��������
�����&
���
�
��
����
K  0L<�+��

����
��%�$�����

�

�;��"��$���
�����
�������=�����������
���������������>�

$����
���
��
����)����
��

�

60�  0���+���

�

1����
������
���*
�	��
��������
����
�������������
�����������������
�����������0�*��	���	��	
���
���
�
��	
��������	
���
���
�
�������
��	

�*
�
�
��
����
+�
�	
��
��������	
�B��������������
����0�*	��	����&�����
���
���	
�
���
�� ���������
�������
���
���*�	������������
������������	
�
�
���0�*��	��������
����
�������
�����
������	
��
���+��	
��
*�
����
���*�����
�����������	
���
��������
���������
����	

����
��
����	�����+��
�
1�� �� ��	
�����
����������������
�����
����
�����	
�
4�
��
������
������A����*	��	�*�����	��
�����

����
��%�$�����

P
age 35



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

�
���
��������������
���������
��������
������*
������	
�
.�������*	��	�*�����	��
�����������
����
���
���������
������	
�����	
���
2�����
�*��&+�C���	
����
�������
��
����
���
����
�����	��
����*���	�
�	
�.������+��
�
'	��
��	
�
�	���

�����
��
�
����
��������0��
���	������
�
�����
6+"J����K��?0 ��0���+��	
�
�*��
�����������
�
����������������
=< ?0�������< �0��������	
���
�����
�
��>+��

�
�;��" ��������������
�
���

$����
���
��
����)����
��

�

K 6 0�?<0���+���

�

1�����
�*��	���	
���
��������0�
��������
�
���������
��
*
�������
�������
��	
���������	
�����������
�
���������
+�#������	
�*
��	
��
����
�������������	�0�*��	��
���
�
����
��������������������A������
����
�����*
��	
�������	
����&�����	
�
��������	
����
�*
��	
��*	
�����
�������������
�+��

����
��%�$�����

�
�;��"������������
��������
���

$����
���
��
����)����
��

�

K���07"�0���+���

�

�	�������
��
��

�����6+"J�
����
�
���� ���+��

����
��%�$�����

�

�;��""�������
��������������
�
���

$����
���
��
����)����
��

�

K�"L0"6"0���+���

�

�	
������
��
��

������+<J�
����
�
���� ���+��

����
��%�$�����

P
age 36



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

�

�;��7��.����
�
��������������
�
�
��������
�

?0�<L�

�

670�L"�

�

)����	�*�����������
�
�������
��
*��	�)�������	
���
������
��+��	
�
�
�����	
������
�*
���
�	��
����
�
��*��	�	���������������
��
�	���
��������
�
��
������
��*�
�������������������
�
����+��

����
��%�$�����

 
 

P
age 37



 

 

�
����
���	$�����	�&�	'���������	��	�����	������(	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

-
��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	

&�� 
����	.	���
�	

/���	 B���
	
0��
	��	�����

#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	

����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

�����"���*��
�
���
��������
����
����
�

?+L?J�

�

� J�

�

�	
���*���
���
������������
�
�������
�������&��	
����������
��
��+���������
������������
���
?+L?J������
�
��
�� ���0�*	��	���
"+ �J��
��*��	
������������
���
+��

A
�����������

�
�����6�A�#�
���������������

�0L�<�

�

 06���

�

�	
�����
�����A�#�������������
$��
��
�� ����*���0L�<+��	
�
���
����� ������
���*
���	��� �� �
����	�*�������������������
������
�
��+��

A
�����������

 
 

P
age 38



 

 

 !�
�
���"	�������
�	#	�������	$!�
����	%	�� 
�
�

�
 
2
�����������
�	��
��

�������
���������	����	��	
�����
�
������������	
��
*�*��
���������+�'��&���������������	����	�����	
��
������*��&�*��	��
��	����	���������
������������
���
��������0�*��	�66���
��
���������	���
��+��
�
�	
���������������������������
*�������
���*�����
�������
���������)"�������
�����	
��
��������	
�
����������������	
�������
���*���������
������
�
��������������� ��"0��������
����������
��������������
�+��
�
-���������
�	���

�����
�*��	��	
��������������	
������������
���������������	
�������������������
��������
�	���������������
�=����>����������=���	
���	������
>������
�
���
*�����
������
�
���	���
��+��
�
�	
�������
������
���������8����
�����&���&
�*�����
�������
���������)"������������#����� ��"�����*���������������
��0������

������������������	
������
����&������
�
������������-�

��
C���������������+�����������������	
�8����
�����&��&��
����&�	���
���
�����������
�������
��
�������
�0��
�
���������
��������
����0�*	��	�*�����
������
�
������

���������
���������������������������
�� ��"+�������������	
�
!
/����
�������9��������
�
�������@��
�����*�����
��
���
�
���������
�0���*�����	
�C��
�#��
���
���������
�
��0�*
��	
��
�
��������+��
�
�	
���������������������������	
��
����������:����
�
����
�����
�������
�
����8�������	���

��������
������	
�������*�
�+�#�
4�
��
���	
������������
��������*��	
�������
��
�����
�
��������������������
��+�=���>+�9
��
���������������������
������
��0��
���
����
�	��
�����	�����0�������������	
���
������	
����	��

�
��������������������
���	���
�	����
�H���������
�������
�����
����������	
������������
���
0�*	��	��
�������������������������
���
��+��
��
�	
��
4�����
��������
�
�������	
���������
��������������
���	�����
��������	
��������������	�
+���4�����
�	��
��

���
���
�������������
�

&���������������
�������	
�
�������+�%
��*	��
�����	
��
����������	�
� �����	
�8��
���
*
������
�����
�������	���	���
�2�������;��������
�����
�*����
�
����������	��/����
�+��
 
 

P
age 39



 

 

�������	$!�
����	�&�	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

-
��� ��

5���	 ��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	

�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

����? ��
��
����
�
���	��
	����*��
�

��������
�
0�
�
������������
����������

�

�

��+��J�

�

#��	���	��	
������
�
�/����
����
�����
���������
���
����)����
�� �
=

�����
������	���>��	
��
��������
���
�����
�
�����	�������.����
��
������	
���
�����/����
����
�����
���
���
������	
��
*�
����
��������
�������
���
����
�
���������*��	��	
�*��
�����
����
���
������	��������
��
����
�+��	
�
��
��
������
���������
������	�������
��*��
��
����
�����
���	
���(
�����
��
����
�	���
���������
������
���
�
������
�����������
����������*��	��	
��
�
����	�
�
��
������	
���
�����&
����
�����
��
�+��

8
����9������

�
����?"�%�
��
����
������

�0�"?� � �

�

�	
�����
�������
������
������
	����
������
���
�����	
��
*�
����
������
����
��
����+�#��������
*��&�	���

�����
�������������	
�
������*��
��
���������������������
*��	���������
�9�����	������������
�
���
��	
�����
�������
��
����
�����0��
������������
��
���
������
�����+��

8
����9������

 

P
age 40



 

 

 

P
age 41



 

 

 !�
�
���"	�������
�	#	��
�!�"	����������	%	�� 
�
�

�
 
���������
�
1���
�����������	
�����
�������������������40��	
��	���
�����*�����
���
����������
��� �����	0�������
�������
���������	0�*��	��	
���������
����
�������
����%���	����	
���	������
A������0�*����&
*�����
����
��������
+��	
�
���
����	���	�����
�����������	�����
	��������
�0���������������
���	����	
������
�*

������
��������������*�����
��
���
���
���
��	
�
�������	
�
�����������
��+�#�����
�*��	����
�����
��
������������
�������
�0��������
�
���
��
���������J�����
�
�����	
�����
������
����
��
�������*	
��������
������	
���
��
��������
� !��+�1����������0��������
��
������������2
��
*�������$
*�8��
�9����2
��
*�	��
����	��

�������
�������	������/����
�+��
�
�	
�����������-�������������
�	��K7"0 �������
��������
�����
������������������������
+��*
����������������������������
�
������
�����������������	
�����������-�����
��������
+��	
�������������	��
��

���
��
*
�������

�������?���
��
�����
����
��
������
�
��
��������������+��
�
�	
����
�����������
������
���������
��
��������	�*��	�����������
�	���
����
�����	
���*
�����
�������*
����
���	
������*���
���������
��*��	�������������������������
�
�
��������
���������
��
���0��������������+��	��������
������
���	�
�
�
��+�#����
�����������
�
���������
����
���������������������
��
����
������
�	�������������
���
��0�����
����
�
�	���	��
��
���
��������������������
�	���������N�����
��N�������:�����������
+��
�
#�:���������������������
�
��
������/����
���
�*

���	
�8����������������
������������
��C����	�����
�������&
������
��������������
��������
�����	
��
���
�����������
��
C�������
�-������������&�*��	����	
��������H�����
�����
�����
���
�������
��
��
���������
�����
��+��
�
#��	���	��	���
�����	�*��	���*
�	��
����J�����
�
�����	
�����
�����	��
������

������	
��
�
���	��
��������0��	�������
��
����������	
�*����	�����
����
�+��	
��
��
�����
�
�����
���
������	
��������H������������
�����������
�8��
�;����
��E
����
��

��
�
����������&��������	
��
���������������������������
��������	
�
���
����
������	������	
���������
�
��
��������
����
���
����
������
�+��	
��
����������
�����?�*���������A��������
���
�����	
��	������8������+��	
��	���
�������
������
����
�
���
���
�	���
�����	
��
�
�����
�
��������	
����&0�	�*
�
����
���	
��
4���
*�����	��	
��
�
���������
�*�������
����
��������J��
�
������������������
�
���*��&������
���&
������	
�
�����
�
�������
���
+��
�
�
���������	�������������
����
��������
�����
�	��	0�*��	��	
�8������.�������
���	����������
���*��	��������
������
����+��	
�	��	��
�
�������
���
�
��
��������
�������������
	��
�
�	��	
��
�������
��	
�����
�����	��
�
�
������������+�1��
�
������0�	��
�
�
���
�����������
����
����
�����
4��
�
�����*0�*��	��������
�����������������	�������
�
�	���
��+��
�
5�!����
�	��
6�
�
�
���	��
����&����:
����������
���������
+��	
��
�����������������	���������
���	
���������������	
����:
��������	
��
�����	�*����
���
���������������
�*	��
���������������	
�
������������
�
����
����������+�#�������
�������	
����:
���%����
�0���������������
������
�
��������������������
�
�������
���������&�����	
����:
������219#�����
��0���*
���������
��

P
age 42



 

 

*��	��	
��4��
�������1��
�
�����
������
�
�������	
�	������
���������
�����
����������������	
����
��
�+�%
��*	��
��	
���
�*��	����
�����	��
��

���
���
������*�����	
�
���:
���������
���
�������	
�����
����
�������
���
�����
�
�+��
��
�	�
�������	
����:
��0�*	��	����	
��
����
�
�������	
������
�C�O��
0�	�����
�����*����*��	��	
��������������
�������	
��
���*	����
�*��&��������	
��
�������
+�.�����������
�����
�����
����
�
���*�����
��
�
���
���������
���
���
���������������
�
��
�����������	���*�����	
���
���&
�����*����*��	��������
	
���
��
����������������
��
���������
��������������
��+�
�	
����:
������������&�����
������
�
�����C
������� ��6+��
�
���
���	��	*����
�	�
�
�	
�2
������
�:��
������
��*���
��
����������
0����������	
��
����������
�������
����
���	
�*���
������
�����������	
�P�*����	������H�*
�
��
����
������	
��
�
����	����.����
�0�
�����������	
��
��
������*��
������
��
+��	
��
���������*��&�����	
�����������*��	
��	����������
������
������	
���
��������	

�*
�
�����������������0�*��	��
�������
�&����
�����
���&��������	
����Q������
���+��	
�'���
��-���
�������*��	
��
*��������	����	��	
������������������	�����������
�������
�� 0������
��
�:��
��������
�������	
�
��������
���	���	����	�����
�
��
�+��	
��	
���
������
���������������
��
�*��	���
�����0�������
��

�
�:��������	�	�����	��������
�0��	
�;�������	��	�������������	
�9���
�����;���+�
.�
����������
������	���
��H������0�I#������I�����	
��
���	��
����&0��
���
���	
���������������	
��������
������������
�
�
�0����	�����
����������
��
�����
�����������
0�����
����	
�
�������
�
��
�����	������
��������
���	
����������
���&
����������������
0��������
4�
������0����������+��	
�2�����8��������
�	��
�:��
����	��
������
����
��������
0�*��	������&
��	��
�
�:������%�������8���H�*��������
��������
�����������
���������������
�����	�*��������������
*�����
��
+��
�
�	
�������
���
�����*������������*
�
�����*
������
��
�0����	���	�8����
�����&�	���

�����
��
������	
����&����/��	���������
����*���������
�����*
��*�����������
�����������������:��������������0��
�����������������������������	
��
���
+�����
�
����	
��������
�������
���
���*�	�� "��
��������	
�:�������
�����������������
�
������
���*����
���������������
�����+��	
��-�����	�����	
����������&��������
�����
�������������P����
����4
H�	�����
�� ����������������������	���������+�1�������R�����	
��������������������
��
*
�	��
���
�����
���	����	
�
�
�������������
��	���

��������0��
�������������6�J����������������
����������	��������������+��
�
��*�
�H�*���
����������
�*�������
�*��	����������������������
�����������������������0��
*�������������������������	
�����
�������������������
����
���
������1�B�%
�������
�����	
�-�������+�#����������K�60����������	
�BM#�	��
����
�����
*�����	�
������	
�����
�����0����@��
��.���*�����K�70����	���

����	�
�
�������#��*��&�����
�����������������
��	�
���:
��+�6 ��	����	��
����
�������
����������	
�#��������	�����4	����������� ��"0������
������
��H������
+�C���	
����
����
���
�*����	�
�
������	
��
*��	��������������
���
���

������
��	
��
*��	����������*�
��*	
����������
������	�������
������������	
������

���
�����	
�����
�����
�������
����+��
�
��
 
 

P
age 43



 

 

��
�!�"	����������	�&�	'��������(	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

+��� ��

-
��� ��

5���	 ��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

����7��$���
�����
�������
���
�

����
�����������
�
��������
�

�<�� � �

�

'������������

�(�������
����
������
����	�
��������L����
���C�������
C��&��
���0�7����
���'�
�@��
������=�
*���������>N�;����
��
B�����
�(� 6����
����
����������	�

��������6����
���C�������C��&��

����=�
*���������>07����
���
'�
�@��������=�
*���������>N�.���
��*��(�� ����
���,�����'��
�5�
-���������?����
������5�����0�L�
���
���'�
�@��������=�
*�
��������>N��
���	��
�(�� �����6�
���
���%�������������L����
���C���
����C��&��
����=�
*���������>N�
8����
�����&�(��L����
������������
���:
��N�C�

���
�-��������(�"��
�
�������������������

1���C��R������&�

�

����7��$���
�����
�
���
�
����
�����
�	
�,���	�C�����

��� � �

�

$���
������+��6��������
���
���
�
�
���
�
�����
��
������	
�,���	�
C�����(����
�����
����
�
������
�
�*

��L���������������
���
�

��	��������	�+��

1���C��R������&�

P
age 44



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

�

������� �
�	�������������
�
������
�����
 ���!� �

(7+�J�

�

(�J�

�

#����
�����������
�
��������
�
����
���������������	������
����
�
	���
���
��������������������
��
�������
�������
���

1���C��R������&�

�

�������"�B���
���
����
�������������
����
����
�������
��
��� ���!� �

(�+�J�

�

(�J�

�

�	����
����������
�������
�	��
	�*���
�����������) ������)������
��������
���������	������
��
�������
�����
����
����*�����
�
	�*������

�����
������)"+�1��
���������
��
��
*
������	
�
����
4�������:�������
���
�����������
�	
���
������
��������
��
�������
�	������
����
+��

1���C��R������&�

�

�������6�2��&����
�������%�����������
-�����=%�->����
�
������������������
�

 �

�

"�

�

��������
�	���
����
�����	
�
��*
�����
�������*
����
���	
�
�����*���
���������
��*��	�����
���������������������
�
������
��
���������
��
�����������������+�
#���
������
���	�
�
�
��+��

1���C��R������&�

�

�������7��
�����
#�/������
�����
�
=����
��0���������
�
�������������
�*
�����>����
�
������
�����
 ���!� �

( �+ J�

�

(�J�

�

1�������
�

���	������
����
�����
	��

����:���J��
��������������
�	���
��0�	��	���	��������
��
����
�
�����
�	��0�
��
����
������
�	���
���������
��
����
����������������
�
���
��+��

1���C��R������&�

�

�;��  �A������=��
�
ST�7>���������������
��������=����
�>�

<�0"�"�

�

 "707���

�

�*��������
�������	
����
�
����
����%������
��������
�����
�����
�����	
����
+�-�������0�8 .�����
�	
�.����
��	�������*
�
�*
���
���
��
�������	���
����+�#��
��������
����������&�A������
��������0��
����������	�
������
�*
���
���
��
�+�#���	��
*��
������
�
���
0�������������������
�����
��
��	������+�#��8����
�����&�

����
��%�$�����

P
age 45



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

C�������0�$
������������������������
:��������
���*������������
��+�#��
���
���	����

������
0��	

��
�
���������������
�&��&
������������
��
�*
������
��
�+�-
�
������������
������*
��+��

 
 

P
age 46



 

 

��
�!�"	����������	�&�	'�����
��	��!�������(	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

+��� ��

-
��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	

�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	
�;���"���*�
��(�
�������

L0"���

�

?60 ���

�

#��	���	���������
�����*
���	���

4�
��
�0�*
�&��*��	����	
�
�����
�����
��*��	��	
�
�
�������������
�0�
������
4�
��
��
������	
������
�
���
0�*	��	�	��������������
��
����6�J����������+��	
���������
	��
��������
���	
�����������*����
�
�������	������	+�#�����	
�������
�������&����
���
��
��
�������
�
�	��������������
��	��
��
����
��
�
���0�*��	��������&����������
�
�����������+��

����
��%�$�����

�

�;���<��2
������
�������(��������
�������

�07�6�

�

607���

�

1��	���

���������
���������
����
�
��������	
�2
�����������	
�
8
�����
��
����
�����
�
���+�8������
���
����
�*	���	������
������
�
���
4��
�
���*
����	���	������
�
�������
0������������
��������0�
������
���������
*������
�����
���&
�����������
�������������
�
���Q��	
�����������	����������������
�
�	���
��+�1�����
���*	
�
��������
8
�����
����
�����B������
#�������������	��������������������
	��
��
����
������������������0�

����
��%�$�����

P
age 47



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

�	
�2
������	��*
�������������
���&
���	�����
��+��	
��
����
���
���������� ���!�"�����������07 ?�
�������������0�	�*
�
������
���	
�
�
��������
�*
�	����������	
��0��?�
�
���
�*	������
��*	
��*
���
�
��
���%���	� ���0���������������
����
��07"L��������������+�'	
������
������
��	���������
��������
����
6677����� �� !�����������

��	���
�	
�����
������������	��
������
��
�	��
���+�'��	��	
�����
���

��������
�������
����	��
��	�
�
�
��������
�
�
�����
�
����������+��
�	
�2
���������
������	
�����������
$��
��
���<�	� �������	
�
���
�
������������������
����
������
�
�
��
�+��	
�2
�������
�����
���
��������#�������� ��"+��

�

�;�� 7�������
����
������	
���
�
�
��

���0�""�

�

���0����

�

'
�������
�����
�0�������*��	���
���
�����	
���
���������0�������
����
�
��
!
�
��������

�����
���
0���
�����	��	��
�
��������
+��

����
��%�$�����

 
 

P
age 48



 

 

��
�!�"	����������	�&�	'�����"(	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

+��� ��

-
��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	

�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

�����L� ����!��"�
�
�
���8��
�
��������
�(��
���
�
�	
�����
�����
	��
��	����������
�

���	
��
�
���
8��
�����
��

�+" J�

�

�J�

�

#��)����
�����	
�����������	�*���
�J�����
�
�	�*
�
�������
��*��&�
��
��������
������	�
�
��	
�
��������
����
������
������
���

��+��
�

1���C��R������&�

�

����6��������
������
����*�
��
	��
��
����
�����
���������������
�
�����������������
�9��

7?�

�

� ��

�

�	������	��	
���	������������
��
�����
�����/����
���	�

� ���!�"�����
���������������
���
���
�������	
�
�������5�������������
����
��	
�
�
	���������
���������
�
��
���������
�	�����������
����""�����	
�7?�
����
���
������	�����&�������
�
�������/����
���	�

� ���!�"+��	
�
�
��������*��&����
��
����
�������	�

��
����
�*��&�������	
�������
�
8�������
���������
����������
�����
�������
����������
��������
����
���
����������	
�
��
������
����������4���
�������*��
����
�	���
�����
���������
���
+��

1���C��R������&�

P
age 49



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

�

����6��$���
�����
���������������
��
����
���
��
�
��
��
!������	�����&������
�
�����	
�����������
����
����-�����

���

�

���

�

�	
���������������
���
�-�����	��
�
���
�����������
�
������
�
�
��
�������������)����
�������
 ���(�"+��

1���C��R������&�

�

����6 �$���
�����
	��
�*	
�
�
���
�������	�R����
=
�
�
���&����
	���>�	��
��

��
�
�
��
�����
������
�/����������
���
�����	��
	����

 6�

�

 ���

�

�	
�*��&�����
�
������
�����.�
�
8�R���������������
��
��

�
�
�
��
����������
��
����
�
����
������	
�8���������������
�
��+��	
�����
�������	���
�
*	��	�	��
��

���
������
�*��	���
�	
��	�

�����	��
�����	������
�

����	��	���
4�
��
�+�1��	�����
�
����
���	�������
(
�����
�
��������
���������	
�&����8���
	��	
��
��
�������
������������
��������������
�
��������
��
��������	����
/���
����
��������
�����������	
��������+��

1���C��R������&�

 
 

P
age 50



 

 

��
�!�"	����������	�&�	'!���
�,��	����������	%	,��)���������
�(	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

+��� ��

-
��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	

�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

����66�$���
�����
�����
�
��
�����������
=�����
��C�������
�
-����>�

 ��

�

��L�

�

C����*��������������)����
�� ����
������
��
��������
0��	������������
����*���������������
�����	
����	��
���
�����+��	
��
�����
�*��&����
�	����	���
�*��	��	
�.������������
�	
������
���������������������
��
�	������������*�����
��
�������
�����
�	
�
�������	
��
��+��

1���C��R������&�

�

����67�%
�����
��
���
�����
�����
��������������
�
*��	������������
=�����
��C�������
�
-����>�

� 7�����

�

��������

�

#�:���������������������
�
��
������
/����
���
�*

���	
�8������
����������
������������
��C����
	�����
�������&
������
����
����������
��������
�����	
�
�
���
�����������
��C�������
�-�����
�������&�*��	����	
��������H�����
��
���
0�*	��	�	���

��
�����
������
�������
��
��
���������
��
���
��+��

1���C��R������&�

�

����L�����
���&
��
�������
�8������
9
�
���!����������4�
9
�
�����
*�������
�����	���
�
�
���

<+"�����

�

��+6�����

�

1���	
�/����
���
*�������*
�
�
����

������<+<����������	���
�
���<+ �����*	��	���
����	��
��*�
�	
������������������
������L�����
����L������
�
����
��+�
�
��������
��
������	
������
����
�������
��
���	����	
����������

1���C��R������&�

P
age 51



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

��
���
+��
 
 

P
age 52



 

 

��
�!�"	����������	�&�	'!���
�,��	����������	%	
�!����(	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

��,�
� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	

&�� 
����	.	���
�	

/���	 B���
	
0��
	��	�����

#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	

����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

�����"�;�����
�
��
����
����
����������4�
����
��
������
���

L"+�J�

�

?<+ 6J�

�

#������
��
������������2
��
*�
������$
*�8��
�9����2
��
*�
	��
����	��

�������
�������	��
/����
�+��	
���
���
��������
����
�
�����K�6�0�������	
��������
�������������4��������
��+�'	�����	��
	��	���������
�
�������������(
�
�������
���������&�������*�������*����
�
����������������
�
��
�����	
�
�������+��	
���������������	���
���
���� �����	���������
��0�������
*��	��	���
����*
����
��
�
��������
������������
4
�������	��
�
��
��
�����	���
������
�������
���
�����	
�����
�������������������4+�
�
��������
������	�����
	��������
��
����*�������������������
����������
��
�	
��
�����
������	
��
���������
�
�	
������������������
+��

1���C��R������&�

�

�����7�$��������
���(���
�������
�
����
��
��

L<+7"J�

�

?L+<J�

�

'	�����	
������
�*

���	
�����
��
������������	���
���
�����	���0�
�	
�������������������
���������
����
����
��
������	���
�����+�
�	
��
�����
������
���������������
�	�
���������������
���������
�
����
���������	
��
�
���������������	
�
�
���
�������
+��

1���C��R������&�

P
age 53



 

 

 

 ��
�!�"	����������	�&�	'!���
�,��	����������	%	�����������(	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

-
��� ��

5���	 ��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	

&�� 
����	.	���
�	

/���	 B���
	
0��
	��	�����

#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

�����"�$���
�����
�����
������
	��
�
�
�
��
�
��
������
�
��
�
��

�6<�	��
	���� � �

�

1�� ���(�"��	
��
���������
���
�
�������	�����	
�������������	
���	��
����
�
���������
������
��+����
���
�*
�	��
��

�����
�������������
��	��	����
������
�
�����������	��
	���

���
�
������������	
�
�����������������	
�
����������������
��������
���
�������
�
��������������������
�����������
�
��������+�1����
������������� ��"(
�6��������������������������������
�
����
���������
�������&
���
��	���
�	
������
�������������������������
�
��
��
����
���	����	�����	
��
��+�
2
��
��*��&��������
�����
�
��
����
�
�����
��������	
�8�������
����
�
�
����
�
��������	
���&��������	

�
��
�+��

1���C��R������&�

�

�����7�$���
�����
	��
�
�
�
������������

"�� � �

�

�	
�	��	��
�
�������
�
������	��
	
��
�������������������������������
�	
�����
�����	��
�
�
�
�����������+��

1���C��R������&�

P
age 54



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

�

�����<�$���
�����
	��
�
�
�
���
�����
�

<� � �

�

8��
�
�
�#��
�����
�	��
�
�������
���������
�
��
���
��	
�

��
����
�
��������	��
�
�
�
��
�
������*��&+��	�������
�������
���
��������
�
�����
����������
	��
	����
��
��
�������	��	����
���	
��
�
�����������������
�
���
�������������	��
������&
�����
������
��������������	
��
������	
��
*������&
+�1����*���	���������	���
����
�����	��
�
�
���
����
�������
����
����
�����
4��
�
���
��*+��	�������	���
�����	
������
�
	��������
�
�����
�����
�
+��

1���C��R������&�

�

����67�$���
�����
	��
	��������������
�
��������
��������������

�6�

�

�6�

�

#������	��0�����	
����	�
�
��
��
�� ���0��	
������������
)����
�� 0��	
�
�*
�
�L�����
�
���
���9M9��������������+��	����	����
�	
�
����
����)����
�� ����
 ���! ��"��	
�
�	��
��

���L�
����
�
���*��	���9M9�
�������������+��

1���C��R������&�

 
 

P
age 55



 

 

 !�
�
���"	�������
�	#	�������,��	��
)�
����	%	�� 
�
�

�
 
#��
�����
4��
�
����	���
������) 0����������
���
��
��������
�	������
����
����
�������������
�
�+��
�
�	��
�����������
��
����
��������������
��������)������
����
��
��������
�
�
����
�����)���
�
�����	�����
�������������*
��������
������������������
������
+��������������
������
�*
�
��	
��
���������	���
��0�*��	�?7J���������	����
�+�#��	���	�*
�*
�
�
:���	��������	
�����
�������������*
��������
����)�0�*
�	��
���*�

���	�

����
�����
�����	���������������������������
���	
�����
������
�
��
�+��
��
'����������
����������
��

�����
�������
������-���
�2�����������
�����
����	��������
���	���*
�*�������&
���
����������������
�������&�
0�*	��	�	���

������

���	����	��	
�
�
������
�������	�

��
*������
��������+�'
���
�*��&�����������
��	�����)"��	����	�����������������������	
��
*
���
��
������	
��
������������������������
�*

���	
���
�����
�����&��*�
��
�����
4�
��
��
+��
��
'��&�����	
��
��������C����
�%��
���	�
�1�
����
�*	��	���
������
�����
��������
0�*��	����
��
������
����������
�
��	��*��&��
���
�%���	+��
��
C����
�%��
���	�
�11��������
�����������������*��	���������
�8��
�������������

����
����
�
�������	
����:
����������)�+�#������*��
����*��&	���	��
��

�������
�
������*
�
��
��
�
��������������
����
���������	�
�1+��	
�
�*�����
���������������
��
�������������
�����C
������+��
�
��
����������������
��
������������	�����
�����
�����
�+�C����*�����
������������
�������
������*������*���0������
��	��������
���	
���
�������������������
�;���������
�������
�
�������
����#����� ��6+��	
��
���*�����
��
����
������
���*��	���������
������	
������
�
�������	
��������H��
�+��	��*����������������
��
�������
��������	
������
�������
����
�����
���������
�*��&�����
����������
������������	
��
����������������	
���������������
�+��	
��
���*���0�����*0��������
��
������*��	���������
�����
�������
�
���*��&���	��������
��
������
�
��
��
*+�'��&�����������
������
�������
���&
������	
��
�������������
���
���	
�C�������
�%����
�
�����������+��
 
 

P
age 56



 

 

�������,��	��
)�
����	�&�	��	����	�	�� 
�
�
 
2�*���
����
��������
 
 

�
�))��	*�"�� 

+��� ��

-
��� ��

5���	 ��� ��
 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

	

����������&�
�
��
��
�(���
���
�
���������
��

�����

�

�+"6�����

�

6+L�����

�

���&�
�
��
�
�������	
��	����
/����
�������	������*������	
���
�
�
����������
���=�+"6�������
�����
�+66>0������
���
��������	
�����
/����
�+��	
�
�	��
��

���
����
��
��������
�����
���
��	
����
�
�
����������
��
������	����
�H��


�����	��
��
���
���������&
+�
'
��
������������&�����	�����
0�
������
���������)"���&�
�����
����	
��)����&�
����������
�

��
�
��*
������
�����������
����
�	
�6+L���������
���
��+�C���	
��
����������
�������
���&
�����
�
����������
��
+��

A������.���	���
�

�

���������������
"��������*
�
��
*��	����	
��
����
�
;
�
��#��

�
���

<�+ �J� � �

�

�	
��;#�*��
�����L�J���������
��*
�
��*��	������
�����������
����
�
��
�� ����*	
�����*��
�	���
�����L�J�����������*
�
��
*��	��� ��
����+�1�
�*��	�����
���&��������������	
�����
��*��
�

����
����������
��
��
��	��
������
������	
������
���������

8
����9������

P
age 57



 

 

)�� ���!�"	

�
�))��	*�"��	
&�� 

����	.	���
�	
/���	 B���
	

0��
	��	�����
#����������
��
 ���!�"	

�����
���	1���	
�
�!����	���
2�	
3��
��
	�	�
�!����	
���
2�	!����	�)	
����	�&4�

*�����	/���	 ��
�)����	 1�
	

�
�
��
�+��

�

��������
�
�	��
�
�������������
���
���
�

"+�?J�

�

<J�

�

�
��������
�	��������
��	��
���
�������)�+�#����	�

�����	�*
�
�
*��	�������
�0�*��	��	
���������
���
���
�:��� +�J�����
�
��
�+�
@���������
��0���
��	
�
4�
��������
��
�
4�
��
��
���������) 0����*����
�����
������
�����
���	
��������
�����
����&��������
�+��

8
����9������

�

����� ������
	����
����������
�����������������

<�+��J� � �

�

-�����
������
����������������	��


���������
�
����������
����
	����
������	
����������������������+��

8
����9������

 
 
 
  

P
age 58



 

 

 

5�!��!��	7��"���	��������
� �

 
 

���� ����	�
���������� �	
���������

���	����������� • ��

��������	���
�

• ��������	���������

• ��
���� 	���!�����������"���	�����
��

• ����������������� 	���

• ��	�
��#	��$���

• �	

	��������

• ������%����$������

• &��#�'���� 		#�

• ��������	���������

• (��
	�����
���

• ���')�%��	���
���������
��������
�

�

'����������*������ • ���������	�
��%���
�)����	��� �����
�	��!�	����

• ������+�	���������	�����
��!�����

• ��	�
��#	��$���

• &���#�������		��

• �	��������+�������	�����
��

• ���*�����"�#��
���		��

• ��*��	#�%������+�)����$���������
���

• ��	����*� 	����	�����
�����
���

• �
���
��,�������

�

P
age 59



 

 

���� ����	�
���������� �	
���������

&��+��������� • ��	�
��#	��$���

• ������
������*�

• ����#	���������

• ������
������*���������������

�

����������� � • (���	��#	��%��
�	�����

• ����
����&�+
��

�

)����	�������� • ���������	�
��%���
�)����	��� �����
�	��!�	����

• �������������	
�	����!�������

• �
������������$���$�+����

• ��	�
��#	��$���

• (��
	����������

• �*�
��'	�*���

• �	��	���$������

• (��
	������������

�

 �

	������� • ��������
���
��������

• ��������
���
��������

• �������������
	�� 	����

• ������ 	����$������

• ����
���������������+�	�� 	�����	�
�

• ��������
#������������
�

�
�

P
age 60



 

 

���� ����	�
���������� �	
���������

�
�$�
	��-������� • ��	�
�!�	���$������.	�
����
����

• ���������	�		��$������

�

�	�����+��'���	�������� • '����������	#�%�+�����������
	���
�����������		��

• /��+�������	�����
��$��	���
�	��

• �	�
���
��	����

• /��+�����*��	�����
��'����

�

0����
	������� • %���������!�	���

�

 

P
age 61



P
age 62

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Current 

Budget

Profiled 

Budget

Actual to 

31st Dec

Variance Outturn Comments 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Corporate Management 255 277 280 3 3

Service Management 150 120 95 (25) (32) Outturn includes additional income anticipated from EHL and 

New Burdens grant

Performance and Risk Managemet 123 111 111 - - 

Civil Contingencies 26 19 19 - - 

Finance Management and Operational Costs 524 553 555 2 5

Corporate Finance Costs 426 384 392 8 5

Payroll and Information 106 82 66 (16) (15)

Pensions 357 253 249 (4) (7)

Financial Services 1,712 1,522 1,487 (35) (44)

Service Management 237 201 197 (4) (8)

Civic Services (including Printing) 443 375 362 (13) (8)

Elections and Local Land Charges 24 12 15 3 3

Strategic Performance 94 77 79 2 - 

Legal Services 220 188 199 11 29 Outturn includes additional resources for priority work in Legal 

Services

Human Resources Management and Admin 98 67 65 (2) 1

Employee Relations 64 53 54 1 1

Member Development 53 40 35 (5) (4)

HR Resourcing and Development 100 81 82 1 1

Corporate Development 1,333 1,094 1,088 (6) 15

Service Management 85 64 65 1 2

IT & E-Government 1,631 1,511 1,503 (8) (10)

Facilities Management 379 308 316 8 8

Customer First 6,829 5,150 5,176 26 11 Includes additional Parks and Gardens contract costs off set by 

Cleansing contract savings

Estates / Asset Management (589) (407) (407) - - 

Corporate Infrastructure and Customer First 8,335 6,626 6,653 27 11

Total Corporate Services 11,635 9,519 9,508 (11) (15)

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Service Management (38) 68 72 4 - 

Housing Services Management 103 124 104 (20) (15)

Revenues and Benefits 32 34,720 34,738 18 34

P
age 63



Appendix 2

Current 

Budget

Profiled 

Budget

Actual to 

31st Dec

Variance Outturn Comments 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Housing Needs 159 159 178 19 37 Outturn includes agency cover for maternity leave and property 

repair costs

Homelessness 167 167 147 (20) (7)

EH Private Sector Housing 238 169 185 16 12

Bereavement (915) (604) (720) (116) (124) Cremation income and other related income/savings within 

Bereavement Services

Direct Assistance (216) 34,735 34,632 (103) (63)

Community Development 123 98 109 11 14

Community Involvement 71 54 54 - - 

Community Grants 408 408 408 - - 

Community Activity 602 560 571 11 14

Housing / Homelessness Strategy 80 100 103 3 15

Solarbourne (277) (247) (255) (8) - 

Energy Efficiency - - 7 7 (7)

Crime Reduction Partnership - - - - 7

Strategic Partnership (197) (147) (145) 2 15

Total Community Services 151 35,216 35,130 (86) (34)

TOURISM AND LEISURE

Service Management 99 76 74 (2) - 

Sport & Leisure 306 348 333 (15) - 

Theatres 749 698 752 54 19 Current variance includes £24k for show accounts.

Tourism 488 345 534 189 247 Current variance includes £126k for Catering (£188k for 

outturn)

Events & Devonshire Park 577 476 484 8 (5)

Towner 673 469 473 4 - 

Total Tourism & Leisure Services 2,892 2,412 2,650 238 261

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE 14,678 47,147 47,288 141 212

P
age 64



Appendix 3

Transfers (to) and from reserves to be approved by cabinet

Item 

No.

Amount Reserve 

Code

Reserve Reason

1 £10,000 z10125 Strategic Change Reserve Insurance Valuation for CIPFA final accounts compliance

2 £13,274 z10127 Capital Programme Reserve Pavilion Tea Rooms - R & M

3 (£29,871) z10190 General Fund Revenue Account County Elections 

(£6,597)

Virements over £10k for approval

Item 

No.

Amount Service Area Reason for virement

From To

1 £26,000 Allotments Phased Allotments Management Grant Redution

1 -£15,000 MRP Loan Repayment Phased Allotments Management Grant Redution

1 -£11,000 General Fund Reserve Phased Allotments Management Grant Redution

P
age 65



P
age 66

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Capital Programme 2013/14 Monitoring Appendix 4

Scheme

Total Cost of 

Scheme

Total spend to 

31.3.13

Approved 

Budget  2013-

14

Revised 

Budget 2013-

14

Spend as at 

31.12.13

Variance to 

Revised Budget

Funding of 

Budget 2013-14 Comments 

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

Decent Homes Works 1,921,310 284,000 567,900 245,783 -322,117 RCCO/Borrow Riverbourne/Upwick & New Derby works completed

Sheltered Remodelling: 2,451,908 2,400,000 2,054,800 1,259,748 -795,052 RCCO/Borrow

Roxborough/Sutherland/Tyrone completed. Archery 

works started Jan 14 completion due May 14. 

Winchester started Sept 13 completion expected 

Aug 14.

Major Works 2,495,119 4,350,300 3,699,600 1,295,695 -2,403,905 RCCO/Borrow

Some delays experienced and re-profiled 

accordingly

Environmental Improvements 17,779 80,800 80,000 11,967 -68,033 RCCO/Borrow On target to complete in 13/14

Langney Villas 494,000 460,919 10,000 0 0 0 S106 Complete

Ratton Road 1,625,000 1,382,826 13,300 0 0 0 S106 Complete

Upper Avenue (38) 1,382,000 1,221,017 10,000 0 0 0 S106 Complete

LA New Build 2013-15  (new affordable 

homes in Seaside) Coventry Ct & 

Belmont Rd 2,930,000 0 2,930,000 0 0 0 S016/EBC Preparatory work underway. Re-profile to 14/15

Supporting Housing & Economic Progress 

Initiative (SHEP) 2,279,000 0 2,279,000 1,170,000 0 -1,170,000 Grant/Borrow

One property planned to be purchased 13/14. 

Remaining properties due in 14/15

46 Upperton Gardens 240,000 0 240,000 40,000 0 -40,000 EBC

Architects fees & planning permission in 13/14. 

Majority of works planned for 14/15

Homelessness Change Programme 275,000 0 275,000 200,000 0 -200,000 Grant/EBC Property identified planned for purchase 13/14

Total HRA 9,950,879 12,872,400 7,812,300 2,813,192 -4,999,108 

COMMUNITY SERVICES

Cremator Replacement 1,935,100 1,391,080 36,650 36,650 32,227 -4,423 Borrow Complete

Memorial Safety Cems 40,000 0 34,000 0 0 0 EBC Re-profile to 14/15

Digitalise Burial Records 10,000 0 10,000 0 0 0 EBC Re-profile to 14/15

Ocklynge Cemetery 46,000 0 46,000 0 0 0 EBC Replacement bid to make chapel safe

Crematorium - Main Chapel 21,000 0 21,000 0 0 0 EBC Re-profile to 14/15

Disabled Facilities Grants (external 

funding) Ongoing 638,800 388,800 248,655 -140,145 Grant

Slow start to year, but increasing as new processes 

embedded.

Disabled Facilities Grants (EBC Funded) Ongoing 144,150 0 0 0 EBC Re-profile to 14/15

BEST Grant (housing initiatives) Ongoing 141,100 106,100 89,064 -17,036 Grant Planned works to be completed 13/14

3-17 Jevington Gardens - GF 435,000 0 575,000 435,000 304,500 -130,500 S106 Complete awaiting final invoice

St Elizabeth's Church - GF 52,000 0 52,000 0 0 0

Housing Regeneration - Block Allocation 18,081,000 0 5,081,000 0 0 0 External Re-profile to 14/15

Willingdon Trees Multi Gym 20,000 0 20,000 0 0 0 EBC

Trustees have not yet appointed an architect. Re-

profile to 2014/15 

Solar Panels 3,400,000 3,228,031 172,000 172,000 0 -172,000 Borrow On target to complete 13/14

Total Community Services 4,619,111 6,971,700 1,138,550 674,446 -464,104 

CUSTOMER FIRST

Contaminated Land 185,000 82,966 102,000 5,000 0 -5,000 Grant

Investigations complete. £5k spend expected 13-

14.

Coast Defences Beach Management 

Strategy Ongoing 295,150 495,150 251,828 -243,322 Grant Works anticipated to be completed 2013/14

P
age 67



Capital Programme 2013/14 Monitoring Appendix 4

Scheme

Total Cost of 

Scheme

Total spend to 

31.3.13

Approved 

Budget  2013-

14

Revised 

Budget 2013-

14

Spend as at 

31.12.13

Variance to 

Revised Budget

Funding of 

Budget 2013-14 Comments 

Cycling Strategy 45,000 4,400 40,600 0 0 0 EBC

Consultation due Jan 2014 and results due to be 

reported to Cabinet march 2014

Park and Ride 50,000 0 50,000 0 0 0 EBC

Review of car parks being currently being 

completed

Princes Park (schemes to be decided) 210,000 27,000 183,000 0 0 0 S106 Initial planning work carried out

Play Area Sovereign Harbour 27,000 0 27,000 0 0 0 S106

Re-profile to 14/15 pending developments and new 

areas of open space

Allotment Upgrade 114,000 99,908 14,100 14,100 0 -14,100 EBC/Borrow On target to complete 2013/14

Hampden Park Skate Park 150,000 0 150,000 0 0 0 S106/EBC

Planning permission expected July 2014 with 

completion Sept 2014

Planning Software 50,000 42,070 7,950 7,950 0 -7,950 Borrow On target to complete in 2013/14

Inward Investment Project (Location 

Service for E Sussex) 60,000 0 60,000 0 0 0 Revenue Included in Revenue

Five Acre Field - Improvements 55,000 2,510 52,500 52,500 16,498 -36,002 S106/EBC

On target to complete 2013/14, but dependent on 

weather

Upperton - Play Equipment 60,000 0 60,000 60,000 0 -60,000 EBC On target to complete 2013/14

RoSPA Play Equipment 15,000 0 15,000 15,000 0 -15,000 EBC On target to complete 2013/14

Churchdale Road Allotments 38,000 0 38,000 0 0 0 S106

Planning application due Feb 2014. Completion due 

Oct 2014

Play Equipment - Bodium Cres 80,000 0 80,000 80,000 0 -80,000 EBC On target to complete 2013/14

Software - Grounds Maintenance 24,000 0 24,000 24,000 8,685 -15,316 EBC On target to complete 2013/14

Sovereign Harbour - Legal Advice 20,000 0 20,000 0 0 0 EBC Re-profile to 2014/15

Terminus Road Improvements 500,000 0 500,000 0 0 0 EBC Re-profile to 2014/15

Total Customer First 258,854 1,719,300 753,700 277,011 -476,689 

TOURISM & LEISURE

Redoubt Fortress Gates 20,000 14,568 5,400 5,400 0 -5,400 EBC On target to complete 2013/14

Redoubt Fortress Gates (2013) 22,300 0 22,300 22,300 22,315 15 Borrow On target to complete 2013/14

Volleyball Court 25,000 0 25,000 0 0 0 EBC

Proposal progressing. Planning application due. Re-

profile to 2014/15

Signage 40,000 23,917 16,100 0 0 0 EBC Re-profile to 2014/15

Bandstand Resurface Walkways 100,000 92,928 6,600 0 0 0 EBC Complete

Sports Park Flood Lights 30,000 0 30,000 0 0 0 EBC/Grant Re-profile to 2014/15

ILTC Seat replacement 5,000 0 5,000 5,000 4,902 -98 EBC Complete

Re-surface Tennis Courts 170,000 0 170,000 0 0 0 EBC/Grant Re-profile to 2014/15

Towner - Works of Art 185,879 0 0 0 0 Grant N/a

Wish Tower - Catering Outlet 40,000 36,000 4,000 4,000 0 -4,000 EBC On target to complete 2013/14

Bandstand Seating 15,000 0 15,000 0 0 0 EBC Re-profile to 2014/15

Total Tourism & Leisure 353,292 299,400 36,700 27,217 -9,483 

CORPORATE SERVICES

Carbon Reduction Works 467,500 0 467,500 0 0 0 EBC On target for completion 2014/15

Agile phase 2 555,000 402,705 153,000 153,000 16,215 -136,785 EBC On target to complete 2013/14

6 Saffrons Road Renovations 117,000 82,142 34,850 34,850 24,979 -9,871 EBC Complete

Town Hall Roof 511,000 154,566 356,450 356,450 513,551 157,101 Borrow Complete. Current spend includes revenue

Invest to Save 80,000 0 80,000 80,000 0 -80,000 Borrow Budget available for allocation

Redesign of CCC at 1 Grove Road 300,000 35,877 264,100 16,100 15,970 -130 Borrow

Project progressing. Remaining spend expected in 

2014/15

P
age 68



Capital Programme 2013/14 Monitoring Appendix 4

Scheme

Total Cost of 

Scheme

Total spend to 

31.3.13

Approved 

Budget  2013-

14

Revised 

Budget 2013-

14

Spend as at 

31.12.13

Variance to 

Revised Budget

Funding of 

Budget 2013-14 Comments 

IT Replacement - Icon 42,500 33,288 9,200 9,200 342 -8,858 EBC Complete

Future Model Phase 1 1,250,000 891,411 358,600 358,600 347,339 -11,261 Borrow On target to complete 2013/14

Future Model Phase 2 2,990,000 0 1,000,000 1,000,000 931,989 -68,011 EBC/Borrow On target to complete 2013/14

Capital Contingencies Ongoing 0 0 96,542 96,542 EBC Subject to legal action

Demolition, Infrastructure and Site 

Security 153,000 143,920 9,100 0 0 Borrow Complete

Investment Capital 7,150,000 0 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,150,000 0 EBC Complete

IT - Block Allocation Ongoing 268,000 268,000 48,428 -219,572 EBC On target to complete 2013/14

Total Corporate Services 1,743,909 4,150,800 3,426,200 3,145,353 -280,847 

ASSET MANAGEMENT 

Devonshire Park Review 700,000 0 700,000 43,000 37,692 -5,308 Borrow Procurement of delivery team in progress

Congress Theatre redesign & restoration 850,000 0 850,000 15,000 -15,000 EBC

Specialist team appointed and surveys commenced. 

Majority of spend expected in 2014/15.

Wish Tower Groundworks and site 

Preparation (from block allocation) 140,000 0 140,000 140,000 140,000 0 Borrow Complete

Wish Tower Catering Temporary 

Provision (Invest to Save) 160,000 0 160,000 160,000 135,141 -24,859 Borrow Complete

Downland Water (Valve insertions) 25,000 0 25,000 25,000 -25,000 Borrow Complete

Bandstand Restoration 245,000 0 245,000 245,000 -245,000 Borrow On target to complete 2013/14

8 Saffrons Rd - Boiler replacement 4,000 0 4,000 4,000 3,550 -450 Borrow Complete

Town Hall Boilers 85,000 0 85,000 85,000 2,661 -82,339 Borrow On target to complete 2013/14

Asset Management - Block Allocation 1,743,000 0 0 Borrow Allocated to various schemes

Total Asset Management 0 2,209,000 717,000 319,044 -397,956 

% completed

General Fund 6,975,166 15,350,200 6,072,150 4,443,072 -1,629,078 73%

HRA 9,950,879 12,872,400 7,812,300 2,813,192 -4,999,108 36%

Total 16,926,045 28,222,600 13,884,450 7,256,264 -6,628,186 52%

P
age 69



P
age 70

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 10 

 

Body: Cabinet 
 

Date: 5 February 2014 
 

Subject: General Fund Revenue Budget 2014/15 and Capital 
Programme 2013/17 
 

Report Of: Chief Finance Officer 
 

Ward(s) All 
 

Purpose To agree the detailed General Fund budget proposals for 
2014/2015 and Capital Programme 2013/2017. 
 

Decision Type: Key Decisions requiring approval of Full Council 
 

Recommendation: Members are asked to recommend the following proposals to 
Full Council: 
 
(i) General Fund budget for 2013/14 (Revised) and 2014/15 

(original) (Appendix 1) including growth and savings 
proposals for 2014/15 as set out in Appendix 2.   
 

(ii) No increase in the Council Tax for Eastbourne Borough 
Council resulting in an unaltered Band D charge of 
£224.19 for 2014/15. 
 

(iii) General Fund capital programme and financing 2013/17 
as set out in Appendix 3. 

 
(iv) Note that the business rates base for 2014/15 will not be 

finalised until after this report is published, members will 
be updated verbally. 

 
Contact: Alan Osborne, Chief Finance Officer, Telephone 01323 415149 

or internally on extension 5149. 
E-mail address: alan.osborne@eastbourne.gov.uk  

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 This report sets out the general fund revenue budget proposals for 2014/15 

and a rolling three year capital programme 2013/17. 
 

1.2 The Housing Revenue Account 2014/15 and associated capital programme, 
together with rent setting for 2014/15 is subject of a separate report 
elsewhere on this agenda. 
 

1.3 The Council revised its medium term financial strategy (MTFS) in July 2013 
and the Cabinet recommended a resulting draft 2014/15 budget proposal in 
December 2013 following the service and financial planning process in the 
autumn. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 71



Page 2 of 10 

 
1.4 The MTFS and the draft budget have been subject to consultation as 

reported to Cabinet and Scrutiny in December. 
 

1.5 The budget is the product of various plans and strategies as part of an 
integrated and corporate planning process and is linked principally to: 
 

• The MTFS 
• Asset Management Plans 
• The Corporate Plan 
• Workforce Strategy  
• Treasury Management Strategy 
• Service Plans 
• HRA business plan  
• DRIVE corporate transformation programme 
• Sustainable Service Delivery Strategy 
 

1.6 The Chief Finance Officer has a specific legal responsibility to give positive 
assurances on: 
 

• The robustness of the estimates used in the budget 
• The level of reserves 

 
If the recommendations of this report are agreed then these assurances will 
prevail. 
 

2.0 Summary of recommended budget proposals 
 

2.1 The budget proposals include: 
 

• No increase in the Council Tax in 2014 / 15 
• Overall savings/new income totalling £0.808m (5% of the net budget) 
• Efficiency savings of £0.608m (3.8% of the net budget) 
• Inflation of £0.430m (2.6% of the net budget) 
• Other recurring service growth of £0.421m 
• Non recurring service investments £0.446m 
• General Reserves averaging in excess of £3.8m (against a minimum 

recommended of £2m)  
• Capital resources of £0.8m invested in new capital schemes 

 
Available earmarked reserves in addition to the budget: 
• Strategic change fund £0.7m 
• Economic Regeneration reserve £0.5m 
 

2.2 The budget represents continued management of financial risks by: 
 

• Building on a balanced outturn position 
• Balancing the base budget requirement without needing to use 

reserves for recurring expenditure 
• Identifiable and deliverable savings with accountability and no general 

unidentified targets 
• Reserves well above the minimum level 
• Zero basing of minor reward grants 

Page 72



Page 3 of 10 

• Providing the funding required for the DRIVE change programme to 
deliver the future savings required by the MTFS via the strategic 
change fund. 

 
 

3.0 2014/15 Resources 
 

3.1 Government Funding 
 

3.2 The underlying methods of Local Government financing were changed 
significantly from 2013/14 and further revisions for 2014/15 include the 
wrapping up of grants in the base “Start Up Funding” notably: 
 

• The Localisation of Council Tax grant (previously £1.2m) 
• The Council Tax Freeze grant 2013/14  
• New burdens grants 
 

 
3.3 The Most notable change therefore is to apply the Localisation of Council Tax 

grant to the same method of distribution as the Formula Grant (previously it 
was a quid pro quo for the erosion of the tax base) this has meant a further 
loss of resources for Eastbourne in excess of £150,000. 
 

3.4 For Eastbourne the Headline figures of the two year Government settlement 
are: 
 

• A reduction in revenue grants of £0.9m (19%)  
• A further cut in baseline funding of £1m (20%) for 2015/16 
• Partially offset by New Homes Bonus (additional £0.350m in 2014/15 

rising by a further £0.4m in 2015/16)   
  

3.5 The NNDR business rate base has reduced slightly (£50,000) largely as a 
result of additional appeals, this is a provisional figure that will not be 
finalised until 31.1.14 as the Government had only just released the “NNDR 
1” form that is used to calculate the base at the time of writing the report. 
 

3.6 In addition to the formula grant the Government is financing the cost of a 
1% increase in council tax (£81,000) which it has confirmed will be put in 
the base for 2015/16 and beyond.  
 

3.7 The Government has announced that Eastbourne will receive £897,000 in 
total of new homes bonus due to the growth in housing in the area and the 
further reduction in empty properties. Of this £500,000 is to be transferred 
to the Regeneration Reserve to fund economic initiatives in line with the 
MTFS. The grant is paid in tranches for six years. The 2014/15 figure 
includes 4 tranches. The funding is not guaranteed beyond a 6 year horizon 
for each tranche. The projected award for 2015/15 is £1.3m. The 
Government is financing the additional NHB from reductions in RSG, 
therefore, whilst volatile, it is becoming the preferred method of distribution 
of resources. 
 

3.8 Council Tax 
 

Page 73



Page 4 of 10 

3.9 The proposal for no increase in council tax for 2014/15 results in an 
unchanged Band D rate of £224.19 for the Council (14% of the total bill). 
 

3.10 The Council has to give an indication of likely future council tax rises, it is 
still expected that council tax will rise by no more than 2% per annum for 
each of the next three years. This is the Governments target for inflation and 
also the current ceiling on rises that would otherwise require a referendum in 
order to exceed. 
 

3.11 Within this context, for 2014/15, the Council will raise £7.2m from its share 
of the council tax.  This is determined by multiplying the council tax base of 
Band D equivalent dwellings by the Band D tax rate of £224.19. This is 
unchanged from the December tax base setting report. 
 

3.12 In addition, there is a negative distribution of £14,000 payable by EBC to the 
collection fund due to a minor collection fund deficit. 
 

3.13 Summary – 2014/15 Resources 
 

 A summary of the resources available is shown below: 
 

Source: 
 

£’m 

Government formula grant (3.735) 
Retained business rates (3.464) 
New Homes Bonus  (0.897) 
Council tax freeze grant (0.081) 
Grant for weekly household collection (1.300) 
Council Tax (7.202) 
Collection Fund Deficit               14 
Total Resources Available (Rounded) (16.665) 
   

  
3.14 In order to achieve a balanced budget without using reserves, the Council 

will need to set a net expenditure budget for 2014/15 of £16.665. 
 

  
4.0 Specific Grants 

 
4.1 In addition to the general grant distributed through the new formula grant 

system, which is given towards financing the Council’s net expenditure, the 
Government also provides some specific grants.  These specific grants will 
fund in part or in full, service costs. 
 
Grant 2014/ 15 

£’m 
 

Housing Benefit Subsidy  (48)* 
Housing Benefit Administration (0.8) 
Household collection grant (1.3) 
* Approximate   

4.2 Housing Benefit Subsidy: 
 

Page 74



Page 5 of 10 

 As part of a national scheme delivered locally, this grant is intended to 
reimburse the Council for the awards of benefit it makes to eligible tenants in 
both the private and public rented sector.  Not only is this by far the largest 
single specific grant that the Council receives, but it is performance related.  
The Council has improved its performance in recent years. 
 
 A new system of universal credits is due to be completed in October 2017 
which will see the caseload moved to the Department for Work and Pensions. 
Responsibility for council tax benefit has now devolved to a local level. 
 

4.3 Housing Benefit Administration: 
 

 This is to fund the cost to Eastbourne of administering the national Housing 
Benefit and local Council Tax Support schemes.  This represents a reduction 
of 10% from the 2013/14 funding. 
 

4.4 Homelessness: 
 

 This is intended to assist with prevention and to find alternative 
accommodation other than bed and breakfast. This grant has now been 
subsumed into the main grant system. 
 

4.5. New Homes Bonus: 
 

 This began in 2011/12 (£187,000) and is guaranteed for six years.  A further 
£190,000 was been awarded for 2012/13 and £180,000 in 2013/14 making 
a total payable of £557,000 in 2013/14. Further increases will take this 
source of funding to approximately £1.3m per annum by 2015/16. The 
Council’s policy as outlined in the MTFS is to utilise surplus grant for 
economic regeneration initiatives.  A separate reserve has been set aside for 
that purpose. 
 

5.0 Budget movement 2013/14 to 2014/15 
 

5.1 The detailed budget proposals are set out in (Appendix 1) show in detail 
the movement from the 2013/14 budget to the 2014/15 proposed budget.  
The movements are summarised below:- 
 

5.2 Movement from 2013/14 
 Base Budget 

£m £m 
 

Change in resources:   
RSG and New Homes Bonus  0.6  
Retained business rates  0.1  
Council tax – decrease in tax base/collection  0.1  
Cost increases:   
Inflation  0.4  
Other unavoidable costs increases and 
changes in income 

 0.4 1.6 

Savings: 
Efficiency savings 

 
(0.6) 

 

Increased Income (0.2)  
Reduced contributions to reserves (0.8) (1.6) 
 

Page 75



Page 6 of 10 

 
5.3 If Cabinet approves the proposals set out in the report it will be able to 

recommend to Council on 19th February a balanced budget in line with 
available resources without the need to use reserves. 
 

5.4 The Council now follows a rolling three year financial planning cycle and the 
service and financial plans have been set out in detail for 2014/15. The next 
MTFS due in July will project forward a further three years and continue to 
provide the basis of service and financial planning for the medium term. It 
should be noted that at a significant level the savings required for the next 
MTFS have already been identified, further reports to Cabinet will detail the 
business plans under the transformation programme (DRIVE) 
 

5.5 The Government has set out a revised four year programme of reductions in 
funding and the Council’s current MTFS already takes account of this.   
 
The change programmes in place such as Agile and the SSDS and the rest of 
the DRIVE programme are projected to deliver savings over and above the 
minimum in order to create headroom for investment in priority services.   
 

6.0 Risks, Contingencies and Reserves 
 

6.1 All budgets contain an element of financial risk.  The Council sets an 
operational budget with careful consideration of known risks, but accepts 
that this cannot cover every eventuality.  As a consequence the Council sets 
a contingency budget and holds a minimum level of general reserve as a 
hedge against additional and significant financial turbulence. 
 

6.2. Principal Risks 
 

 The key areas of financial risk that the Council faces in the operation of its 
2014/15 budget are:- 
 

• Housing Benefit Performance  
• Inflation on goods and services 
• Income from services linked to customer choice (theatres, tourism; 

sports centres, car parking) 
• Demand led services (e.g. bed and breakfast) 
• Legal challenges 

 
On an exception basis, information on each of the risk areas identified 
above, together with any new and significant risks that may emerge over the 
course of the year, will be included in each financial performance report to 
Cabinet and Scrutiny during the 2014/15 financial year. 
 

6.3 Contingencies 
 

 The 2014/15 budget includes a corporate contingency budget of £178,000 to 
allow for unbudgeted expenditure or reductions in income.  This is in addition 
to the known inflation that has been built into the service budgets. The 
Government has announced a 1% cap on pay rises in 2014/15 therefore 
£120,000 has been included as a further contingency in service budgets for 
this purpose. 

Page 76



Page 7 of 10 

 
6.4 Reserves 

 
 Part 2 of the 2003 Local Government Act requires the Chief Finance Officer 

to report on the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, and determine 
the minimum level required.  There is no statutory minimum requirement, 
but reserves must be set at a prudent level given the activities of individual 
Councils and potential liabilities that they face or may face in the future i.e. a 
risk based approach.  The Council’s earmarked reserves are reviewed at 
least annually for adequacy.  If at any time the adequacy is in doubt the 
Chief Finance Officer is required to report on the reasons, and the action, if 
any, that he considers appropriate. 
 

 The Council will always seek to contain any unforeseen additional costs 
within allocated annual budgets, including the contingency budget.  
However, it is proposed that in addition the minimum level of general 
reserves be set at £2m based on the following: 
 

6.5 Risk 
 

£m 

Unexpected Events e.g. flooding, major storm in excess of Bellwin 
Scheme provision 
 

0.5 

Significant financial overruns e.g. prior year negative Housing 
Benefits subsidy adjustments and costs of welfare reform 

 
0.5 
 

Exceptional fluctuations in income that have a major corporate 
impact e.g. loss of major sponsor close to an event (2% of income) 

 
0.3 
 

Cost of providing priority services during an incident or emergency in 
excess of insurance cover 

 
0.3 
 

Exceptional fluctuations in costs or demand that have a major 
corporate impact e.g. fuel costs 

 
0.2 
 

Cost of significant breach of legislation e.g. health and safety, human 
rights 

 
0.2 
 

TOTAL 2.0 
  

 
 

 
The overall proposed minimum level of £2 million is the same as the current 
year and in line with the risk assessment outlined above.  It is the view of 
the Chief Finance Officer that this level of reserves remains adequate to 
meet the current commitments and proposals detailed within this report and 
any unforeseen expenditure that cannot be met by external resources. 
 

 Should the budget recommendations be followed, the level of general fund 
reserve is projected at £3.8m by March 2015 (Appendix 1).  In addition to 
acting as a potential buffer against future risks, this should create further 
opportunities for one off investments in the future. 
 

6.6 Earmarked Reserves: 

Page 77



Page 8 of 10 

 
 The following revenue reserves have been set aside in addition to the 

general reserve in order to facilitate projects under the DRIVE programme.  
The available balances at 31.3.15 are projected to be (Appendix 1): 
 
Reserve Purpose Amount 

£’m 
   
Strategic Change To fund internal transformation 

projects under DRIVE 
 

0.7 

Economic Regeneration To promote economic growth 0.5 
    

 
6.7 

 
Other earmarked revenue reserves: 
 

 The Council has been following a process of consolidating its reserves into 
the corporate reserves above.  This better facilitates corporate priority 
planning.  The only further reserves that the Council holds have other 
obligations attached (e.g. Section 106/partnership contributions). 
 

6.8 The Chief Finance Officer is satisfied that the integrated budget and 
corporate planning process provides a robust basis for identifying 
appropriate budget estimates and appropriate level of reserves. 
 

7.0 Capital Programme 2013-2017 
 

7.1 The principles for formulating the capital programme were set out in the 
draft budget report submitted to Cabinet on 11th December 2013.  The 
proposed new schemes to be financed are shown in bold in at (Appendix 
3). 
 

7.2 The Council has a policy of only using borrowing for schemes that are invest 
to save and can generate enough savings or additional income to service the 
financing costs. 
 

7.3 In addition to schemes that qualify for borrowing the Council had a further 
£0.8m of capital resources to apply to the programme. 
 

7.4 The Housing Revenue Account capital programme is set out in another report 
on the agenda and is financed entirely from HRA resources.  Once approved 
it will be amalgamated with the general fund programme. 
 

7.5 No uncertain future capital receipts have been factored into the available 
resource so there will be opportunities to supplement the programme as the 
three year period progresses.  Potential disposals will be identified by the 
asset management plans. 
 

8.0 Consultation 
 

8.1 The Council’s medium term financial strategy and the resulting draft budget 
proposal for 2014/15 as reported to Cabinet in December have been subject 
to wide and varied consultation. The outcome of which was reported to the 

Page 78



Page 9 of 10 

Cabinet in December.  The Scrutiny Committee held a finance event in 
October and has been invited to comment on the budget proposals. 
 

9.0 Implications 
 

9.1 Financial 
 

 The financial implications of all budget proposals are set out throughout the 
report and/or within its Appendices. 
 

  
9.2 Human Resources 

 
 Implications have been discussed with Members through the detailed service 

and financial planning process, and where appropriate with the local Branch 
of Unison.  Specific staff briefings have taken place as necessary. 
 

9.3 Environmental 
 

 Both capital and revenue budget proposals include improvements to the 
maintenance of Council buildings and open spaces across the town.  These 
include a number of energy efficiency initiatives to reduce usage, cost and 
emissions.  Consultation with residents demonstrates that these types of 
initiatives are well supported and are seen as high priority areas for new 
investment. 
 

10.0 Conclusions 
 

10.1 The Council is well placed financially to meet the demands on its services as 
well as the reductions in Government support over the medium term. 
 

10.2 The new method of distributing Government funding for local government 
gives incentives for new development both domestic and business. 

  
Alan Osborne 
Chief Finance Officer 
 

 

Page 79



Page 10 of 10 

Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
Cabinet reports: 
December 2013 

- Council Tax Base for 2014/15 
- Draft Budget Proposals 2014/15 
- Consultations on Council priorities 

 
 
July 2013 – Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer 
listed above. 
 
 

 

Page 80



���������	�
������	��	
����������� �����
����

������� ������� �������

���������

	
���

������
�

	
���

	
���

����� ����� �����

� �� �����!����"��

����������	�
�����
� �� �� ��

������������������ ����� ���� ����

������������
�
������������� ����� ����� �����

�������������������
� ����� ����� �����

�����������
 �����!��!����
"��!������������ ���# ����� ����#

��#�$� ��#%�� ��#���

� &&	���'�!����"��

��������	�
�����
� $��% $��% $��%

�������&������
�� $��% $��% $���%

����!
��'�&������' ��� �� ���

����������(�� ����
�� $��% $��#% $��%

(��)* ��� (�*

+ 	���&�,�-���	���!����"��

��������	�
�����
� �� �� ��

������)�*���!�� �� ��� ���

+,������ #�� #�� #�

+�!���� �� ��� ���

-��
���)�����
�,����(��. �#� �## ���

+�/
�� ��� �#� ���

�#$�� �#$.� �#$��

/���!����"��0����
��	�� �)#�)% �)#%)% �)#�%�

��
���0!���
����1$ ���%�2
������.�"�3������� $��% �� $��%

��
���0!���
����1$ ���%�-�����.�"�3������� 4�* 4�* 4�*

��
���0!���
����1$ ���%������������,�
����!
" ����� ��� 4�*

��
���0!���
����1$ ���%���������(���������3������ 4�* $��% 4�*

��
���0!���
����1$ ���%�3���
������
�3������ �� $�% ���

��
���0!���
����1$ ���%�3���
!��5��
��� 4�* $�% 4�*

0���1 	���� � 	�2�� 	�"���	
������3	���&��� �%#��� �%#�%� �)#))�

�����"�
�1'

5����
��
������!���5��
� $�����% $��#��% $��#��%

*����������
�� ���!
����+�6�0�
� ����!���������
�����
 $��% $��% 4�*

5��
������!������/��.�'����������
�� �"��������/���� $����% $����% $�����%

4�/�7�����8�
!� $��#% $��#% $��#%

3����
�"�8!��
����3���� $�����% $�����% $�����%

��!
����+�6�5��
� $��% $��% $��%

��
���0!���
������!
����+�6��� ����1$�!���!�% $% $% ��

��!
����+�6����������
��!
"�(������ $#���% $#���% $#��%

+ ���������"��� (�%#���* (�%#�%�* (�)#))�*

Page 81



���������	�
������	��	
����������� �����
����

������� ������� �������

���������

	
���

������
�

	
���

	
���

����� ����� �����

���������	�
��������

������������	��
��� ������� ������� �������

����	���������������������	���� ��� ��� ���

����	���� �������!"���#"���"	 �$��� ��� ���

!���%������������%"�����&'�����"�� ��� ��$� (��

)�����*��+�
������� ��� ���� �$�$�


���%���������!"�"���,	� ��� $- ���

�������������	��.��%� �� �!�" �� #!$" �� $�%"

&�������'�()������	�
�����'�

������������	��
��� ��� ��-�� ��--�

����	�������/� �������&��/��0�����	����	 ��� ��� ���

)�����*��+�
������� ���---� �1(�� ���


���%�����!���!"�"���,	� ��� (�� ���

�������������	��.��%� �� ���" �$��" �$��"

(�������*�+���,,���������

������������	��
��� �$$�� ��(�� �1��

����	�������/� �������!"�� ��� ��� ���

)�����*��+�
������� ��� �� ���


���%�����!���!"�"���,	� ��� �(� ���

�������������	��.��%� ���$" �%�" �%�"

����������+���������

������������	��
��� �$��� ����� ���1�

����	�������/� �������!"�����	���� ��� ��� ���

)�����*��+�
������� �(�$� �$ ��--�


���%�����!���!"�"���,	� 1- �(� ��-

�������������	��.��%� ��%$" ���%" ��%%"

Page 82



����������	��
������������������ �������������

������� ������� �������

���������

������

��
����

������

������

� ��� � ��� � ���

����������!�����"��� ��� ��� �#$

����������	�	
�	� ���� ���� ����

��	��	��	
��� ��� ��� ���

����������	��
��� �%$&� �%��# �%$�$

�����
����	�����	� ��� ��� ���

��������	
���	 �!��"���	�����	� �� ��# ��

��������	��	��	
��� �� �� ��

��	�	
����	�����	�$%�������	�������� ��� ��� ���

�������������	�	
������� #�# #�� ���

��&������	 �'	��������	 ��� ��� ��

��	���	� #�� #�� ���

����������'���������	��
��� �%�$� �%##� �%$�&

�����
����	�����	� ��# �#� �#�

����
������
����	
�( �	�����	��	� �#� ��# ���

)��
�������	 �*�
���*�	 ��+����� �# �� ��

��������
���������	
� �# �� ��

*����������
�� ��� ��� ���

,(��	�!���(�
�����	�����	���	 �- ��	 �� �� ���

)����&���!������	� �� �� ��

���.���/��������	� �� �# ��

,!�!���(�
�	���	 �/��������	� ��� ��� ���

����������(�
����"��� �%�$� �%��� �%���

�����
����	�����	� �# �� ��

'0�1�)23����	��	� ���� ��#� ����

��
����������	�����	� #�� #�� #�#

�(������������ ���� ���� ����

)�������$�-�������	�����	� 4���5 4���5 4�#�5

����������)�*�������������������"���'��� $%�+� $%��� $%�&+

,���������������	��
��� ��%�$� ��%+�� ��%���

Page 83



���������	
������	������	������� ��������	�

������� ������� �������

��������	

������

 �����	

������

������

!"��� !"��� !"���

���������	
	����
 �� �� ��

��	��������������
��	����
� ����� ����� �����


�����	#��������� $�%& $�%& $�%&

�����
������������	
	����
 ��� ��� ��

 ���
����	
��!�
�"�� ��� �� ��

�����
��#���� �$� �$� �$�

��������
��� #%& ��' ��'

(���	�������������
� ��� ��) ��'

!���	����
 ���$� ���$� ��$*�

'�����	���������� $���& $��(& $��)&

�����
�+�,�����-��
 ��� ��� ���

�����
�+�%
�������
 '� '� '�

�����
�+���	
� �$� *�) �'*

���������	������� ��� (�� ���

�����
��.���������
������	��+ �� )� �'

���	�/���
� ��'�� ��''� ��''�


��������	*�������+�� $���& $�),& $���&

-����	���������	
������ $��(& ��� $�&

Page 84



��������	
����
��
���
������
��������� ���
������

������� ������� �������

����������	
����
��
���
�

������� �

����
�

!
���
��

����
�

����
�

"#��� "#��� "#���

���������	
	����
 �� �� ��

�������������� ��� ��� ���

���	��� ��� ��� ���

������� ��� ��� ���

 ��
����!���
������"	�# ��� ��� ���

��$
�� ��� ��� ���

���� �����������	
����
��
���
� �$%�� �$%&� �$%��

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



���������	


�������������

���� ������� 
������ 	������ 	������

����������� �����������

����� �����

 !!������"�������

����� ���	
����
������ ����
�������
�����
�	���
�� ����� �����

����� ���������
������� ���
 ���!
"
#�!
��	�$�
�$%�����&
����������
%����� ��'� ��'�

����� ���������
������� ���	
����������
��������
������ ��� ���

����� ���������
������� ���������
�������
 ����������
"
(����	���$���
�)
*���+�,
�����������
������ �*�� �*��

����� ���������
������$��� �����
��%���������
��
�����
�������
����
������ �'� �'� -

����� ./
���
0
1����$��� ./
��������
������ ���� ����

������ ����������
2������
/��$ 3����
��������
������
"
����������
��$�
���
��4����� ��5�� ��5��

��$� 6�����$���
�������  ������
1��
�����$�����
 ���� ����

��$� ������� ������$���
�	�����
"
�����
���� �,�� �,,�

��$� ������� �	����
����������
����
��
������
��
��������� ���� ����

/� 0���� ����	���
�)
��!
���7���
�����$
��������
	���
�����
)��
�	�
6���
������� �*� �*�

 !!������"��������#���� $%�&' $%�('

)���*��+���������

����� ���	
����
������ 3�"��
���8��� �*'� �*'�

��$� 6�����$���
�������  �.
���
.�������
%���
���$�����
 ��9� ��9�

��$� 6�����$���
�������  �.
���
.�������
��	��
�������
 ��� ���

��$� 6�����$���
�������  �.
���
.�������
$�$�����
 �'� �'�

��$� 6�����$���
�������  �.
���
.�������
%����� ��'� ��:�

��$�  ������
;
6���)��� �������
6���)��
(�����$���
.���$�
"
.��������
�������
��
�����������
��%�
"
%����


��
�������
���)��$����


�:�� �:��

��$�  ������
;
6���)��� ������
������
��������
 ���!
����������
��������%��
�������
/�<&
(�	��
����������
����


������
%���)���


�,�� �

/� 0���� .�������
��
�������������
��
6���	�
����
�����	�� �,� �,�

/� 0���� .��������
����$�
)��
������
0���&
 ��*� ��*� ,

/� 0���� 2���������
����$�+�����
)��$
6������ �:� �:� -

)���*��+����������#���� $	�-' $�&�'

.�/����/����

����� ���������
������� =�)�����
��������
"
 ��������
��
���
����������
)��
��+�,
���
)���
���
�)
���������� �*�� �*��

��$� ������� 6���	���
�������
/����
1����

 �'� �'�

��$� ��$$�����
������$���  ��������
��
 ���
�������
1���� �*� �*�

.�/����/�����#���� $0�' $0�'

#.#�1���2)3+� $(�%' $(�('

3���4��5������������

��$�  ������
;
6���)��� #�!
��$��
6����
����
)��
:
�����
)��$
�������
����$&
(�	��
����������
����
������
%���)��


"
�������
���������
������
��
���
�)) $���' $���'

-
���7��
������
;
���!�	
���$�

/	��
���$
��
��)������
��
�	�


�/2>
%���

/	��
���$
��
��)������
��
#�!


��$��
6����



P
age 87



���������	


�������������

���� ������ ���� 	������ 	������

������ ���� !� ��� ����

"#��� "#���

����������$%�����

��������� ��	
�����
�����������
����������
��
�������
����
��������� ��� ���

��������� ���������
��
��������
���������
��
�����
��������� ��� ���

����������$%������&���% �'� �'�

������(����������������(

������  ��!�"������
�����
#��� $������%�"��
&	�
'�����
���(��!
������
���!��
 �) �)

������  ��!�"������
�����
#��� $������%�"��
����
������	
������
������
���!�� � �

���* +����%�����
*��%����

,�������
��
"�����
������
��
��
-�(�	�!�
��
.��!��	
����������
�����
�����������


�/ �/

������(�����������&���% �) �)

*���������

����* ���������
*��%���� .������
��
�������
�����
��%��!
��
�����
��������
���
��- 
�	����
 0 0

����* ���������
*��%���� 1��������
�����

��
����	
���
������
��(���
��%���
��
���
���2�������
�������
�������!


&�����!�
������ ) )

����* *�����!��
3�%�������� *�"���������
��
4*3
����(��
���
��������
"���
��� � �

����* �#
��
4
'�%������� 5�
��
$�!���
2
4������!
3�%�������
���(
����
��
��
���!��
���
���
�������6
#���
����
�������


�
��"����
���
���
�������
���������
��"���
����
��������
����
�������
��������!
���
��!��


����������6

) )

����* �#
��
4
'�%������� '�%�������
�������
2
#�
���
��������
�������	
�%����
��
����������
�������	


����������	
��
����
��!���!
'�%�������
�������
��7���������6

�� ��

����* *	�����
�������������


��
*������

������
8���
�����
�
�	�����
������
�������
��
�����������
2
���������
��
��������


�	�����
����
�������
���
����
9����
��
���!����
"�������
����:6

0� 0�

������ *���������
�%����	
#��� 4%�����
��
"��(!����
������
���%��
"	
��������
�����������
��
������
���������


��
���
.����
�����
��
���������
����
���
.����
3�%��������
*�����

�� ��

������ *���������
�%����	
#��� 8��(����!
"�!��
���
�4�4
��
��!�!�
��
����%��
������	
��
���
���"��
������	��� �� ��

������ *��%���
�����%�����
��


3�%��������


8�����
��"���
*��%���
2
�����%�
����
��
�������
.����
�������
9������
��
��%��!
����


���������
*��%����:
��
���%��
������
���!������
���
��
������
���%���


�����%�����
���(
��
�%�����
"���
��
��
�������%�
��
�����"��6


) ) ;

���* +����%�����
*��%���� ��������
��
����
��
"�����
�����������
<���%����!
��
�����������
��
����
������
����


�	����


) )

���* ,�%�����
=
+������� 35�<.�#
����
'����
��������
 /� /�

#* 4%���� ����
��
���
���
5��(��!
�����%��
�����
��������
�
���(
��
�����
���
���
����	
(����
��


������
��
�������
��
!��
�������6




� � ;

#* #������ �������
�������
2
#��
�������!
���%���
���
"���!��
"��(
��
�����
�������
���
��������
��


�������
������
����
����
"���
����
��7��������
"��(
����
���
���%���6



�) �)

#* #������ #�����
�������!
��������
2
#��
��������
���
���%���!
�������!
��
���
�4'- 
�������������


���
���
����
��
���
��������
��
��
�����
���%�����

/� /�

*����������&���% '+	 '+	

&*&�,�-
*-*�.��
.�/

�0���
*1&2 3�� 3��

P
age 88



���������	

0���
������������������(�����(

���� ������ -���(�%

����* 4������
8���!����� ������
	����
��">���
��
��2���������
��
���������
.�����
���� ��� ���

������ *���������
�%����	
#��� ,�%���
4+
���(
����
*����!�
*����� �) �)

������ *���������
�%����	
#��� '����
���!
���(�
����!�����
����� �) �)

������ *���������
�%����	
#��� ����%����!
4���"�����
2
#�
���"��
���
+�!
���(
��
5��(
��
)�?
�����	����
���(����


��
��(�
�����

) )

������ *���������
�%����	
#��� ,��(
����������
��
4���"�����@�
%������"�������
��
�
����!��!
�������
2
�����������
������


��
��������
������
��
����!��!
�������
��
���
����

�) �)

������ *���������
�%����	
#��� 4�%����������
������������
���
���%�����
��
����
��
��������
����������!
������


��"����

�) �)

������  ��!�"������
�����
#��� ���%������
����%�����
��
���
�����������
"�����!�
����������
����������
��
���"��
���


 ��!�"������
�����
#���
��
"���
�����!��
���(�
����
������������
��!�!��!
����


��������
!�����
��
��������
���"����

� �

���* &�����! ������"�����
��
�������%�
�����	
�����%������
���>���
 �� ��

���* ,�%�����
=
+������� +������
��������
2
*���������
�%���
��
���
��
��������
������������� ) )

���* ,�%�����
=
+�������

��������
��
������
���������
��������
�����
2
�����
�
��������������
����
�����
����

A� A�

���* ,�%�����
=
+�������  ��
&����
+����
2
��%���
��
��������
������
2
��
���
��%���
��
����	
����������
��


������
�������
����(�
��
 ��
&����
+����


A) A)

���* ,�%�����
=
+������� .�"�����
�%����	����
��������
2
��%���
��
��������
������
2
��
���
��������
��


��������
�%����	����
����%��	


� �

���* ��������	
3�%�������� �����!
��
��������
����
����
��������	
����
���
����
	���
�����!
��������������
��


������
8���
�����
�


�� ��

#* 4%���� ��������
�������
�������
��"���
��
�����
�������
��
�������
"��(��
����(
��
�����%�
"��


�������!
�����

� �

#* 4%���� *��������
�����!
�����
��
�������
������!<
"��(��
����(
���
���
����!
������


�����������
��
�%����

) )

#* 4%���� &��
���
����� � �

#* 4%���� ���������
*���	�� ) )

#* 4%���� .�������
"�����
�%�������!
2
��%���
��
��%� � � ;

#* *����
��
.������ #�����
3�%�����������
�������
���
�������!
�������
��
���
�������
�%��������
"�
��


���
#�����
���������
2
�����
����
���%��
������������
�%���
��
!�������
"��(��!


��������
��
�����
�����%������6

� �

#* #������ +����
&����
�����
�����������
��
���%��
�����
���
�����
�����	
���"���!
����
��
����


��
���
������6
5�
�����%�
��
������
����
�����
�����6

B B

#* #������ 4�!���
���
���
.���!����
"���
2
��!���
��
���
���
	����
��
��
������!
��!��
��
�������6 A A

#* #������ ��������
�������
��
���
��������
��
�����%�
���
%������
�����
2
��
��������	
�����
>���


���
"���������
�������

) )

&*&�,�0*0�
.�/

�0���04.�&5.0&� ��6 ��+

;
.��(�
��%��!�
=
!�����
�����

P
age 89



P
age 90

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

���������	�
���������������������������

���������

����� ����� ����� �����

������� ������� ������ ��� ���


��������������� !��� !��� !��� !���

���������	
������ �����														 �����														 �����														 �����														

��������	����� ���																	 �����														 �����														 ���																	

�������	�	������� ��																			 ���																	 �																		 �																		

������ ��	�	����	
������ ���!�														 �����														 �����														 ��																			

"����	# � $����� ���																	 �����														 ���																	 ���																	

��������������  "����������������� ��"��#������������ ��"��#������������  "##���������������

$��������%�&'

� ��� %	&�������	'� ���																	 �����														 ���																	 �																		

'� ���	 �(	������)������ ���																	 �����														 �����														 �����														

&�����	������)�����	��	� ��� % ���																	 ����!														 ���																	 �																		


������	���	������)������ ���																	 ���																	 �																		 �																		

*����+��$ �����														 ����!														 �����														 ���																	

�����$��������  "����������������� ��"��#������������ ��"��#������������  "##���������������

P
age 91



Cabinet Appendix

������

���	
��������

������

�������	������

�	���������

��������������������

�������

�����������������

� ��� ��! ���!��"

�#$$%&'�(��)�*'�)�

���������	�
������� ���������� ������ ������ �

�������������������� ������� ������ � ������

������������������	���� � ������� ������ � ������

������������!������"�
�� #������ #����� � #�����

����$�� �%����������&����� '���� ��(�(�� �((�(�� (�)���� ������� �$�

�*�+�&����,"�������������-��. '���� ������� ������� #������ �)(����

����	
�+�������)�	�
���

�!�)�/�-�����&�� ���!�&% �������� �)����� ������� �

0������	����������!�����1�2�������� �(��(������ ���(����� � ���(����� )�������� ���������

3����� ��+�����������&�� #������ #����� � #�����

������4���� ���������� �)#���� �)#���� �

#�,
-�����������-���	�
 � �.���� � � �.���

�	����	��$�����	
�������  .���� �  .���

$	�����	�
���/������0�	���� �!.���� � �!.���

���	
���������-��������� !."�1.  � �.��2.  � !.�!".! � ".2��.��� !.���.���

�%��#$)��3'���

��������� �5� �(������ ��#���� ����� �)����

������������������"������������������ '���� #������ ������� ������� ������� �������

��������������� ������� ������ � ������

4��1�� �	� � ������� ������ � ������

4������4��1�,��"��������$�� ��� � . #������� �(����� � �(�����

4����2������-������0��$��� #)����� #)���� � #)����

2��������6
��� � �������� ������ ������ �

0��
 ��4��1��1����4��1 �������� ������� � �������

4���������7��� ������� )���� )���� �

%�-��2����%��� �!�8�
��-����� ������� �#���� �#���� �

6

�����!�4����*9��
��� ������� ������ ������ �

	��42�4����*9��
��� ������� ������ ������ �

�"���" ����	�� �2�������� �(����� �(���� � �(����

4����*9��
����!��� �������� (������ (����� (����� �

����7����!�&��� ���������� #������ #����� #����� �

��-������0��$����!�5�����2 -��� #������ #����� � #�����

+�������	�� �8�
��-����� �������� ������� � �������

�������	��4���� � .���� � � .���

�'4�����/�5	�� ��.���� � ��.���

3���������3��
�����	�
���� ��.���� � ��.���

��	��-�+�	��*��������������6� ��.���� � ��.���

����+	��������������-������� �.!��.���� � �.!��.���

+���/��
���

������� � .���� � � .���

+-���7	������6� ��.���� � ��.���

������4���
��6	-��$8���	�, �!.���� � � �!.���

���	
����������3���� �.! 1.��� " �."�� �. !1.!�� �.1�!.��� ���.���

�#%�'�$�9�4)'�%�)

	� ��$��%��������&���� #������ ����� ����� �

	� ��$��%��������&�����,#���. ##����� ##���� ##���� �

:�����$��������� #������ #����� � #�����

P:\083 Budget 2014-15 App 3 Capital Programme 2014-17 GF.xls

P
age 92



Cabinet Appendix

������

���	
��������

������

�������	������

�	���������

��������������������

�������

�����������������

� ��� ��! ���!��"

������ ������� ������ � ������

�
�����4��1�%��� �5��"�� ������� ������ � ������

85+���������
������� ������ ����� ����� �

	�!��������+���������� �)������ �)����� � �)�����

3��"�+�7���!���������'����� ������� ����� ����� �

�� ��� ������� ������� ������ � ������

'4��������������������� !�.���� � !�.���

'4�����0��
������������-���� ��.���� � ��.���

'4�����)
������	
��-���� ��.���� � ��.���

'4�����3�����
	�� ��.���� � ��.���

'4�������
	���������	���� ���.���� � ���.���

'4�������
	����������5��� � .���� � � .���

���	
���������9�4������ �1�.2�� �!."�� �2�.��� � �

�#�0#���)��)�*'�)�

���$��	� ������3��1� ��)����� ��)���� � ��)����

2�����
"����# �������� ������� ������� �

����������	�� �	��-����� ��)����� ���(�� ���(�� �

+�7�0����	��� �������� ������� ������� �

8-���������-� (������ (����� (����� (����� (����� (�����

	� �����������������&��-��	�� �������� #������ ������ #�(����

8+�	�
��������!�8�� �#����� ��#�� ��#�� �

%�������� ���4"����� ��#������� ��(���� ��(���� �

%�������� ���4"����# #��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� �������

8-���������
���� )��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������

8+�!�����1�2�������� '���� #�(���� #�(���� �������

���	
������	����������� �.���."�� �.��!.��� �.1� . �� �.�"�.��� 2�.���

������$	�	������

��-��"����4��1�	�-��7 )������� )������ ������ ��)����

��������+"�������� �����;����������� (������� (������ ������ (������

3��"�+�7���&��� 7��1��� ������4��
�������,�����

$���1����������. �������� ������� ������� �

3��"�+�7�����������+��
������4��-�����,8-�������

��-�. �������� ������� ������� �

��7�� �3�����,:��-����������. #������ #����� #����� �

�� ��� �	��������� #������� #������ #������ �

(���������	 �!����������
������� ������ ����� ����� �

+�7�0����������� (������ (����� (����� �

2��������������!�����1�2�������� ��)������� � � ��#���� �(����� �������

���	
�������$	�	������ �.��1.��� "�".��� �.12�.���  2�.���  ��.���

7)&)��4�3%&:��#��4 � .���.� � !.�"�.� � � .��2.� � ��.��2.��� !.22�.���

P:\083 Budget 2014-15 App 3 Capital Programme 2014-17 GF.xls

P
age 93



P
age 94

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 

BODY: CABINET 

 

DATE: 5 February 2014 

 

SUBJECT: Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators 

2014/15 

 

REPORT OF: Chief Finance Officer  

 

Ward(s): All 

 

Purpose: To approve the Council’s Annual Treasury Management 

Strategy together with the Treasury and Prudential 

Indicators for the next financial year. 

 

Decision Type Key decision 

 

Contact: Alan Osborne, Chief Finance Officer, Financial Services 

Telephone Number 01323 415149.  

 

Recommendations: Members are asked recommend to Council; 

 

i) The Treasury Management Strategy and Annual 

Investment Strategy as set out in this report. 

ii) The methodology for calculating the Minimum 

Revenue Provision set out at paragraph 2.3. 

iii) The Prudential and Treasury Indicators as set out 

in this report.  

 

iv) The Specified and Non-specified Investment 

categories listed in Appendix 3. 

 

 

1.0 Introduction 

 

1.1 The Council is required to receive and approve, the Prudential and 

Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy as part of the budget setting 

process each year. This covers: 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a Minimum Revenue Provision Policy (how residual capital 

expenditure is charged to revenue over time); 

• the Treasury Management Strategy (how the investments and 

borrowings are to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to 

be managed). 

 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 95



 2 

1.2 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 

2003, the CIFPA Prudential Code, the CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA 

Treasury Management Code and the CLG Investment Guidance. 

1.3 The Council adopted CIPFA’s Treasury Management code of Practice on 18 

May 2010. This code is supported by treasury management practices 

(TMPs) that set out the manner in with the council seeks to achieve the 

treasury management strategy and prescribes how it manages and 

controls those activities.  

2.0 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS  2012/13 – 2016/17 

2.1 Capital Expenditure 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 

management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is 

reflected in prudential indicators, which are designed to assist member 

overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

The table below summarises the Council’s capital expenditure plans and 

how these plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources.  Any 

shortfall of resources results in a funding need (borrowing).  

The capital expenditure forecasts for the Council are: 

 

 

 

Capital Expenditure 2012/1

3 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

£m Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Non-HRA 4.9 6.1 15.7 14.4 6.9 

HRA 7.4 7.8 9.8 4.3 4.2 

LAMS   1.0       

Total 12.3 14.9 25.4 18.7 11.1 

Financed by:           

Capital receipts 2.5 0.9 3.7 0.4   

Capital grants 4.6 1.4 6.7 9.3 6.3 

Capital reserves 2.0 6.4 6.2 4.3 4.2 

Revenue 0.2 1.0 1.5 0.5   

Loans to third party 

LAMS 

  1.0       

Net borrowing  need 

for the year 

3.0 4.2 7.3 4.2 0.6 

 

 

2.2 The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR). The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital 

expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 

resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing 

need. Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid 

for, will increase the CFR.   

Following accounting changes the CFR includes other long term liabilities 

(e.g. Serco, PFI schemes, finance leases) brought onto the balance sheet. 

Page 96



 

 3 

Whilst this increases the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing 

requirement, these types of scheme already include a borrowing facility 

and the Council is not required to separately borrow for them. There are 

currently £1.2m of such schemes within the CFR. 

The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below: 

 2012/1

3 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

£m 
Actual Estimat

e 

Estimat

e 

Estimat

e 

Estimat

e 

Capital Financing Requirement   

CFR – non housing 19.2 22.5 27.5 30.6 29.9 

CFR - housing 36.7 37.7 38.8 38.8 38.8 

Total CFR 55.9 60.2 66.4 69.4 68.7 

Movement in CFR 2.2 4.3 6.2 3.0 (0.7) 

            

Movement in CFR represented by   

Net financing need for 

the year 

2.9 4.2 7.3 4.1 0.5 

Less MRP and other 

financing movements 

(0.7) 0.1 (1.1) (1.1) (1.2) 

Movement in CFR 2.2 4.3 6.2 3.0 (0.7) 

 

Note the MRP includes Serco repayments. 
 

2.3 MRP Policy Statement 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General 

Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the 

minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to 

undertake additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue 

provision - VRP).   

Regulations require the Council to approve an MRP Statement in advance 

of each financial year.  A variety of options are provided to councils, so 

long as there is a prudent provision.  It is recommended that the following 

methodology, as used in previous years, be continued: 

• For capital expenditure incurred before 1.4.2008 MRP is provided 

for at 4% of the CFR. 

• For capital expenditure incurred since 1.4.2008 MRP be charged 

using the most appropriate of the following two methods for the 

individual schemes as determined by the Chief Finance Officer 

under delegate powers 

� Asset Life method – based on the estimated life of the asset, 

� Depreciation method – based on standard depreciation 

accounting procedures.  

No revenue charge is currently required for the HRA. However under HRA 

reform the HRA is required to charge depreciation on its assets, which will 

have a revenue effect. In order to address any possible adverse impact, 

regulations allow the Major Repairs Allowance to be used as a proxy for 

Page 97



 4 

depreciation for the first five years. 

Repayments included in annual Serco payments and any finance leases are 

applied as MRP. 

 The Council has agreed to participate in LAMS (Local Authority Mortgage 

Scheme) using the cash backed option. The mortgage lenders require a 

five year deposit from the local authority to match the five year life of the 

indemnity. The deposit placed with the mortgage lender provides an 

integral part of the mortgage lending, and is treated as capital expenditure 

and a loan to a third party. The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) will 

increase by the amount of the total indemnity. The deposit is due to be 

returned in full at maturity, with interest paid either annually or on 

maturity. Once the deposit matures and funds are returned to the local 

authority, the returned funds are classed as a capital receipt, and the CFR 

will reduce accordingly. As this is a temporary (five years) arrangement 

and the funds will be returned in full, there is no need to set aside prudent 

provision to repay the debt liability in the interim period, so there is no 

MRP application. 

2.4 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 

prudential indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are 

required to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans. These 

provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the 

Council’s overall finances. Note that indicators are required to be prepared 

on the gross capital spend and do not include any resulting income 

contributions expected from the implementation of the capital scheme.  

The Council is asked to approve the following indicators: 

 

2.4.1 Actual and estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue 

stream.  This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital 
(borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of investment income) 

against the net revenue stream. 
  

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
% 

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Non-HRA 4.9 5.3 6.9 8.5 9.6 

HRA  12.4 10.9 11.7 10.6 9.9 
 

 The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 

proposals in the budget reports. 

 

2.4.2 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D 

council tax -This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with 

proposed changes to the three year capital programme recommended in 

the budget reports compared to the Council’s existing approved 

commitments and current plans. The assumptions are based on the 

budget estimates as well as other assumptions based on the Council’s 

Medium Term Financial Strategy.  

 

Page 98



 

 5 

 
  

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
£ 

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Council Tax - Band D (25.60) 4.50 7.35 4.79 6.19 

 

The increase in 2013/14 is attributable to the Local Council Tax Support 

Scheme which has reduced the Council Tax Base by more than 4,500 band 

D properties. 

 

2.4.3 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing 

rent levels - Similar to the council tax calculation, this indicator identifies 

the trend in the cost of proposed changes in the housing capital 

programme compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current 

plans, expressed as a discrete impact on weekly rent levels. 

  
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

£ 
Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Weekly housing rent 

levels 

(3.90) 0.05 (0.51) (1.72) (0.39) 

 
 

This indicator shows the revenue impact on any newly proposed changes, 

although any discrete impact will be constrained by rent controls. 

The reason for the negative figures in 2012/13 are due to the indictor 

representing the reduction to the interest costs resulting from the HRA 

debt settlement in March 2012, and then the fall out of early debt 

repayment premia.  

 

3.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the 

service activity of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures 

that the Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the relevant 

professional codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service 

activity. This will involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where 

capital plans require, the organisation of approporiate borrowing facilities. 

The strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, the 

current and projected debt positions and the annual investment strategy. 

3.1 Current Portfolio Position 

The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2013, with forward 

projections, are summarised below. The table shows the actual external 

borrowing (the treasury management operations), against the capital 

borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting 

any under borrowing (ie the use of revenue cash balances referred to as 

internal balances). 

Page 99



 6 

 
  

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 
£m 

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate 

External borrowing   

Borrowing at 1 April  34.2 39.2 40.7 47.9 52.0 

Expected change in 

borrowing 

5.0 1.5 7.2 4.2 0.6 

Other long-term liabilities 

(OLTL) 

1.7 1.5 1.2 1.3 1.0 

Expected change in OLTL (0.2) (0.3) 0.1 (0.3) (0.3) 

Actual gross  

borrowing at 31 March  

40.7 41.9 49.1 53.0 53.3 

CFR – the borrowing 

need 

55.9 60.2 66.4 69.4 68.7 

Use of internal balances  15.2 18.3 17.2 16.4 15.5 

Investments 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

 
Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to 

ensure that the Council operates its activities within well defined limits.  

One of these is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross borrowing 

does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the 

preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2013/14 and the 

following two financial years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early 

borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken 

for revenue purposes. 

 
Whilst investment interest rates continue to be below that for borrowing, 

value for money can be best achieved by avoiding new borrowing and 

using internal cash balances to temporarily finance new capital expenditure 

or to replace maturing external debt, thus maximising short term savings. 

However this needs to be carefully considered to ensure borrowing is 

taken at advantageous rates, but not taken too long before the need to 

borrow to avoid the cost of carrying the debt. 

3.2 Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity 

3.2.1 The Operational Boundary. This is the limit beyond which external 

borrowing is not normally expected to exceed.   

 The Council is asked to approve the following operational boundary limits:  

Operational boundary 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

£m Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Borrowing 58.7 65.1 68.3 67.6 

Other long term liabilities 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.1 

Total 60.2 66.4 69.4 68.7  
  

Page 100



 

 7 

 
3.2.2 The Authorised Limit for external borrowing -  This represents a limit 

beyond which external borrowing is prohibited: 

 The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit:  

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 Authorised limit £m 

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate 

Borrowing 73.7 80.1 83.3 82.6 

Other long term liabilities 1.5 1.3 1.1 1.1 

Total 75.2 81.4 84.4 83.7  
 Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the 

HRA self-financing regime of £42.96m.  This limit, included in the 

authorised limits above, is currently: 

 

HRA Debt Limit £m 2013/14 

Estimate 

2014/15 

Estimate 

2015/16 

Estimate 

2016/17 

Estimate 

Total 37.7 38.8 38.8 38.8 

3.2.3  The Council has complied with these prudential indicators in the current 

year and does not envisage difficulties for the future. This view takes into 

account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this 

budget report. 

3.3 Prospects for Interest Rates 

The Council has appointed Capita Asset Servcies (Capita) as its treasury 

advisor and part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view 

on interest rates.  Appendix 1 draws together Capita’s view plus a number 

of current City forecasts for short term (Bank Rate) and longer fixed 

interest rates.  

 Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the 

worst and slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth has 

rebounded during 2013 to surpass all expectations, propelled by recovery 

in consumer spending and the housing market.  Forward surveys are also 

currently very positive in indicating that growth prospects are strong for 

2014, not only in the UK economy as a whole, but in all three main 

sectors, services, manufacturing and construction.  This is very 

encouraging as there does need to be a significant rebalancing of the 

economy away from consumer spending to construction, manufacturing, 

business investment and exporting in order for this start to recovery to 

become more firmly established. One drag on the economy  is that wage 

inflation continues to remain significantly below CPI inflation so disposable 

income and living standards are under pressure, although income tax cuts 

have ameliorated this to some extent. This therefore means that labour 

productivity must improve significantly for this situation to be corrected by 

the warranting of increases in pay rates. The US, the main world economy, 

faces similar debt problems to the UK, but thanks to reasonable growth, 

cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the annual government 

deficit has been halved from its peak without appearing to do too much 

damage to growth.    

 

Page 101



 8 

The current economic outlook and structure of market interest rates and 

government debt yields have several key treasury management 

implications: 

� As for the Eurozone, concerns have subsided considerably in 2013.  
However, sovereign debt difficulties have not gone away and major 

concerns could return in respect of any countries that do not 

dynamically address fundamental issues of low growth, international 

uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the economy 

(as Ireland has done).  It is, therefore, possible over the next few 

years that levels of government debt to GDP ratios could continue to 

rise to levels that could result in a loss of investor confidence in the 

financial viability of such countries.  This could mean that sovereign 

debt concerns have not disappeared but, rather, have only been 

postponed. Counterparty risks therefore remain elevated.  This 

continues to suggest the use of higher quality counterparties for 

shorter time periods; 

� Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2014/15 and 
beyond; 

� Borrowing interest rates have risen significantly during 2013 and are on a 
rising trend.  The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare 

cash balances  has served well over the last few years.  However, this 

needs to be carefully reviewed to avoid incurring even higher borrowing 

costs, which are now looming ever closer, where authorities will not be 

able to avoid new borrowing to finance new capital expenditure and/or to 

refinance maturing debt, in the near future; 

� There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an 
increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between 

borrowing costs and investment returns. 

 

A detailed view of the Econcomic forecast is set out at Appendix 2.  

3.4 Borrowing Strategy  

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position. This 

means that the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing 

Requirement), has not been fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting 

the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow has been used as a 

temporary measure. This strategy is prudent as investment returns are 

low and counterparty risk is high and will be maintained. 

There is an underlying need to borrow in the future to support capital 

expenditure and new external borrowing will be required by the end of this 

year. Rates are currently being monitored and new borrowing will be taken 

when the rates are advantageous either as long term debt or temporary 

borrowing. Against the current econcomic  background and the risks within 

the economic forecast, caution will be adopted with the 2014/15 treasury 

operations. The Chief Finance Officer will monitor interest rates in financial 

markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances. 

 

Page 102



 

 9 

The Council will maintain a balanced, affordable and sustainable maturity 

profile as set out below and all new borrowing will be undertaken in line 

with this policy.  

3.5 Treasury Management Limits on Activity 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these 

are to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, 

thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement 

in interest rates.  

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and 

limits: 

  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

Interest rate Exposures 

 Upper Upper Upper 

Limits on fixed interest 

rates based on net debt 

100% 100% 100% 

Limits on variable interest 

rates based on net debt 

25% 25% 25% 

Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2014/15 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 25% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 50% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 75% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 100% 

10 years and above 0% 100%  
  

3.6 Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need  

The Council will not borrow more than, or in advance of, its needs, purely 

in order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any 

decision to borrow in advance will be within forward approved Capital 

Financing Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to 

ensure that value for money can be demonstrated and that the Council 

can ensure the security of such funds. 

 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to 

prior appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual 

reporting mechanism. 

3.7 Debt Rescheduling 

As short term borrowing rates are currently considerably cheaper than 

longer term fixed interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to 

generate savings by switching from long term debt to short term debt.  

 

Debt scheduling will only be considered under the following circumstances: 

• the generation of cash savings and /or discounted cash flow produce 

sufficent savings to cover the costs; 

• it helps to fulfil the treasury strategy; and  

• the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 

balance of volatility) is maintained.  

Page 103



 10 

 

 Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential 

for making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt 

prematurely as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than 

rates paid on current debt. 

 All rescheduling will be reported to Cabinet, at the earliest meeting 

following its action. 

 

3.8 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 

3.8.1 Investment Policy 

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 

Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA 

Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross 

Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”). The Council’s investment 

main priorities will be security first, liquidity second, then return. 

 

 After this main principle the Council will ensure: 

� It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment 

types it will invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties 

with adequate security, and monitoring their security. This is set out 

in the Specified and Non-Specified investment at appendix 3 and 

� It has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it will 
set out procedures for determining the maximum periods for which 
funds may prudently be committed. These procedures also apply to 
the Council’s prudential indicators covering the maximum principal 
sums invested. 

 
3.8.2 Creditworthiness Policy  

 In order to minimise the risk to investments, the Council has clearly 

stipulated the minimum acceptable credit quality of counterparties for 

inclusion on the lending list as set out in at Appendix 4 . The aim is to 

generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which will also enable 

diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. 

 Credit rating information is supplied by Capita, the Council’s treasury 

consultants, on all active counterparties that comply with the criteria at 

Appendix 4. Any counterparty failing to meet the criteria would be omitted 

from the counterparty (dealing) list. Any rating changes, rating watches 

(notification of likely change), rating outlooks (notification of a possible 

longer term change) are provided to officers almost immediately after they 

occur and this information is considered before dealing. 

 The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties 

from countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AAA from Fitch, 

as well as UK, which is currently rated AA+.  

 The Chief Finance Officer will maintain a counterparty list in compliance 

with the criteria set out in Appendix 4 and will revise the criteria and 

submit them to Council for approval as necessary. These criteria are 

Page 104



 

 11 

separate to that which determines which types of investment instrument 

are either Specified or Non-Specified as it provides an overall pool of 

counterparties considered high quality which the Council may use, rather 

than defining what types of investment instruments are to be used. 

 The Local Authority Mortgage Scheme (LAMS) –  

The Council is planning to particpate in the cash backed mortgage scheme 

which requires the Council to place a matching five year deposit to the life 

of the indemnity.  This investment is an integral part of the policy initiative 

and is outside the criteria above. 

 Time and monetary limits applying to investments.  

The time and monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s counterparty 

list are as follows (these will cover both Specified and Non-Specified 

Investments): 

   Money Limit Time Limit 

Banks 1 category high quality £5.0m 1 yr 

Banks 2 category – part nationalised £5.0m 1 yr 

Limit 3 category – Council’s banker 

(not meeting Banks 1)* 

£10.0m 1 day 

Other institutions limit £5.0m 1 yr 

DMADF Unlimited 6 months 

Local authorities £5.0m 1 yr 

Money market Funds £10.0m Liquid  
 

* Whilst the Council is banking with the Co-operative Bank PLC the 

overnight cash flow will be kept at an operational minimal balance. 

The proposed criteria for Specified and Non-Specified investments are 

shown in Appendix 3 for approval. 

3.8.3 Investment Strategy 

Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 

requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 

investments up to 12 months). 

3.8.4 Investment returns expectations.  Bank Rate is forecast to remain 

unchanged at 0.5% before starting to rise from quarter 2 of 2016. Bank 

Rate forecasts for financial year ends (March) are:  

• 2013/ 2014  0.50% 

• 2014/ 2015  0.50% 

• 2015/ 2016  0.50% 

• 2016/2017   1.25% 

There are upside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of increases in Bank 

Rate starts sooner) if economic growth remains strong and unemployment 

falls faster than expected. However, should the pace of growth fall back, 

Page 105



 12 

there could be a downside risk, particularly if Bank of England inflation 

forecasts for the rate of fall of unemployment were to prove to be too 

optimistic. 

 The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on 

investments placed for periods up to three months during each financial 

year for the next three years are as follows:  

2014/15  0.50% 

2015/16  0.50% 

2016/17  1.00% 

2017/18  2.00% 

 

3.8.5 Investment treasury indicator and limit - Total principal funds 

invested for greater than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to the 

Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an 

investment, and are based on the availability of funds after each year-end. 

The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: 

 Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days 

£m 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

Principal sums invested 

> 364 days 

£2.0m £2.0m £2.0m 

 
  

 
For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its 

business reserve accounts and short-dated deposits (overnight to three 

months) in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.   

3.8.6 End of year investment report 

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment 

activity as part of its Annual Treasury Report. 

3.9 Policy on the use of external service providers 

The Council uses Capita as its external treasury management advisors. 

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management 

decisions remains with the organisation at all times. 

 It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of 

treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills 

and resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment 

and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed 

and documented, and subjected to regular review. 

4.0 Resource Implications  

 

All implications have been factored into the 2014/15 budget setting 

process.  

 

Alan Osborne 

Chief Finance Officer 

 

 

Page 106



 

 13 

Background Papers: 

 

The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 

 

CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services code of Practice (the Code) 

Cross-sectorial Guidance Notes 

CIPFA Prudential Code 

Treasury Management Strategy and Treasury Management Practices adopted by the 

Council on 18 May 2010.  

Council Budget 5 February 2014 

Finance Matters and Performance Monitoring Reports 2013. 

 

To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer 

listed above. 

 

 

 

Page 107



 

14   

APPENDIX 1 Interest rate Forecast 2014/17 

 

 
 
Please note – The current PWLB rates and forecast shown above have taken into account the 20 basis point 

certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012  

 

Bank Rate

NOW Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17

Capita Asset Services 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% 1.00% 1.25%

UBS 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.75% 1.00% - - - - -

Capital Economics 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% 0.50% - - - - -

5yr PWLB Rate

NOW Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17

Capita Asset Services 2.73% 2.50% 2.60% 2.70% 2.70% 2.80% 2.80% 2.90% 3.00% 3.10% 3.20% 3.30% 3.40% 3.40%

UBS 2.73% - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Capital Economics 2.73% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.50% 2.90% 3.30% - - - - -

10yr PWLB Rate

NOW Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17

Capita Asset Services 3.82% 3.60% 3.70% 3.80% 3.80% 3.90% 3.90% 4.00% 4.10% 4.20% 4.30% 4.30% 4.40% 4.50%

UBS 3.82% 3.70% 3.80% 3.90% 4.05% 4.05% 4.30% 4.55% 4.55% - - - - -

Capital Economics 3.82% 3.55% 3.55% 3.55% 3.55% 3.55% 3.55% 3.55% 3.80% - - - - -

25yr PWLB Rate

NOW Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17

Capita Asset Services 4.41% 4.40% 4.50% 4.50% 4.60% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00% 5.10% 5.10% 5.10% 5.10%

UBS 4.41% 4.55% 4.55% 4.80% 4.80% 5.05% 5.05% 5.30% 5.30% - - - - -

Capital Economics 4.41% 4.25% 4.25% 4.25% 4.25% 4.25% 4.25% 4.25% 4.35% - - - - -

50yr PWLB Rate

NOW Mar-14 Jun-14 Sep-14 Dec-14 Mar-15 Jun-15 Sep-15 Dec-15 Mar-16 Jun-16 Sep-16 Dec-16 Mar-17

Capita Asset Services 4.36% 4.40% 4.50% 4.50% 4.60% 4.70% 4.80% 4.90% 5.00% 5.10% 5.20% 5.20% 5.20% 5.20%

UBS 4.36% 4.45% 4.45% 4.70% 4.70% 4.90% 4.90% 5.05% 5.05% - - - - -

Capital Economics 4.36% 4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.40% 4.50% - - - - -

P
age 108



 

 15 

APPENDIX 2 Economic Background 

 

The UK economy 

Economic growth.  Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 
2008 had been the worst and slowest recovery in recent history. However, 
growth strongly rebounded in 2013 - quarter 1 (+0.3%), 2 (+0.7%) and 3 
(+0.8%), to surpass all expectations as all three main sectors, services, 
manufacturing and construction contributed to this strong upturn.  The 
Bank of England has, therefore, upgraded growth forecasts in the August 
and November quarterly Inflation Reports for 2013 from 1.2% to 1.6% and 
for 2014 from 1.7% to 2.8%, (2015 unchanged at 2.3%).  The November 
Report stated that: -  
 
In the United Kingdom, recovery has finally taken hold. The economy is 

growing robustly as lifting uncertainty and thawing credit conditions 

start to unlock pent-up demand. But significant headwinds — both at 

home and abroad — remain, and there is a long way to go before the 

aftermath of the financial crisis has cleared and economic conditions 

normalise. That underpins the MPC’s intention to maintain the 

exceptionally stimulative stance of monetary policy until there has 

been a substantial reduction in the degree of economic slack. The pace 

at which that slack is eroded, and the durability of the recovery, will 

depend on the extent to which productivity picks up alongside demand. 

Productivity growth has risen in recent quarters, although 

unemployment has fallen by slightly more than expected on the back 

of strong output growth. 

 

Forward surveys are currently very positive in indicating that growth 
prospects are also strong for 2014, not only in the UK economy as a whole, 
but in all three main sectors, services, manufacturing and construction.  
This is very encouraging as there does need to be a significant rebalancing 
of the economy away from consumer spending to construction, 
manufacturing, business investment and exporting in order for this start to 
recovery to become more firmly established. One drag on the economy is 
that wage inflation continues to remain significantly below CPI inflation so 
disposable income and living standards are under pressure, although 
income tax cuts have ameliorated this to some extent. This therefore 
means that labour productivity must improve significantly for this situation 
to be corrected by the warranting of increases in pay rates.   
 
Forward guidance.  The Bank of England issued forward guidance in August 
which stated that the Bank will not start to consider raising interest rates until 
the jobless rate (Labour Force Survey / ILO i.e. not the claimant count 
measure) has fallen to 7% or below.  This would require the creation of about 
750,000 jobs and was forecast to take three years in August, but revised to 
possibly quarter 4 2014 in November. The UK unemployment rate has already 
fallen to 7.4% on the three month rate to October 2013 (although the rate in 
October alone was actually 7.0%).  The Bank's guidance is subject to three 
provisos, mainly around inflation; breaching any of them would sever the link 
between interest rates and unemployment levels. This actually makes 

Page 109



 

16   

forecasting Bank Rate much more complex given the lack of available reliable 
forecasts by economists over a three year plus horizon. The recession since 
2007 was notable for how unemployment did NOT rise to the levels that would 
normally be expected in a major recession and the August Inflation Report 
noted that productivity had sunk to 2005 levels.  There has, therefore, been a 
significant level of retention of labour, which will mean that there is potential 
for a significant amount of GDP growth to be accommodated without a major 
reduction in unemployment.  However, it has been particularly encouraging 
that the strong economic growth in 2013 has also been accompanied by a 
rapid increase in employment and forward hiring indicators are also currently 
very positive.  It is therefore increasingly likely that early in 2014, the MPC will 
need to amend its forward guidance by reducing its 7.0% threshold rate 
and/or by adding further wording similar to the Fed’s move in December (see 
below).  
 
Credit conditions.  While Bank Rate has remained unchanged at 0.5% 
and quantitative easing has remained unchanged at £375bn in 2013, the 
Funding for Lending Scheme (FLS) was extended to encourage banks to 
expand lending to small and medium size enterprises.  The second phase 
of Help to Buy aimed at supporting the purchase of second hand 
properties, will also start in earnest in January 2014.  These measures 
have been so successful in boosting the supply of credit for mortgages, and 
so of increasing house purchases, (though levels are still far below the pre-
crisis level), that the Bank of England announced at the end of November 
that the FLS for mortgages would end in February 2014. While there have 
been concerns that these schemes are creating a bubble in the housing 
market, house price increases outside of London and the south-east have 
been much weaker.  However, bank lending to small and medium 
enterprises continues to remain weak and inhibited by banks still repairing 
their balance sheets and anticipating tightening of regulatory requirements. 
 
Inflation.  Inflation has fallen from a peak of 3.1% in June 2013 to 2.1% 
in November. It is expected to remain near to the 2% target level over the 
MPC’s two year time horizon. 
 
AAA rating. The UK has lost its AAA rating from Fitch and Moody’s but 
that caused little market reaction.   

 

THE GLOBAL ECONOMY 

 

The Eurozone (EZ). The sovereign debt crisis has eased considerably 
during 2013 which has been a year of comparative calm after the hiatus of 
the Cyprus bailout in the spring.  In December, Ireland escaped from its 
three year EZ bailout programme as it had dynamically addressed the need 
to substantially cut the growth in government debt, reduce internal price 
and wage levels and promote economic growth.  The EZ finally escaped 
from seven quarters of recession in quarter 2 of 2013 but growth is likely 
to remain weak and so will dampen UK growth.  The ECB’s pledge to buy 
unlimited amounts of bonds of countries which ask for a bail out has 
provided heavily indebted countries with a strong defence against market 
forces.  This has bought them time to make progress with their economies 

Page 110



 

 17 

to return to growth or to reduce the degree of recession.  However, debt to 
GDP ratios (2012 figures) of Greece 176%, Italy 131%, Portugal 124%, 
Ireland 123% and Cyprus 110%, remain a cause of concern, especially as 
many of these countries are experiencing continuing rates of increase in 
debt in excess of their rate of economic growth i.e. these debt ratios are 
continuing to deteriorate.  Any sharp downturn in economic growth would 
make these countries particularly vulnerable to a new bout of sovereign 
debt crisis.  It should also be noted that Italy has the third biggest debt 
mountain in the world behind Japan and the US.  Greece remains 
particularly vulnerable and continues to struggle to meet EZ targets for 
fiscal correction.  Whilst a Greek exit from the Euro is now improbable in 
the short term, as Greece has made considerable progress in reducing its 
annual government deficit and a return towards some economic growth, 
some commentators still view an eventual exit as being likely. There are 
also concerns that austerity measures in Cyprus could also end up in 
forcing an exit.  The question remains as to how much damage an exit by 
one country would do and whether contagion would spread to other 
countries.  However, the longer a Greek exit is delayed, the less are likely 
to be the repercussions beyond Greece on other countries and on EU 
banks.   
 
Sentiment in financial markets has improved considerably during 2013 as a 
result of firm Eurozone commitment to support struggling countries and to 
keep the Eurozone intact.  However, the foundations to this current 
“solution” to the Eurozone debt crisis are still weak and events could easily 
conspire to put this into reverse.  There are particular concerns as to 
whether democratically elected governments will lose the support of 
electorates suffering under EZ imposed austerity programmes, especially in 
countries like Greece and Spain which have unemployment rates of over 
26% and unemployment among younger people of over 50%.  The Italian 
political situation is also fraught with difficulties in maintaining a viable 
coalition which will implement an EZ imposed austerity programme and 
undertake overdue reforms to government and the economy. There are 
also concerns over the lack of political will in France to address issues of 
poor international competitiveness.  
 
USA.  The economy has managed to return to robust growth in Q2 2013 of 
2.5% y/y and 4.1% y/y in Q3, in spite of the fiscal cliff induced sharp cuts 
in federal expenditure that kicked in on 1 March, and increases in taxation.  
The Federal Reserve therefore decided in December to reduce its $85bn 
per month asset purchases programme of quantitative easing by $10bn.  It 
also amended its forward guidance on its pledge not to increase the central 
rate until unemployment falls to 6.5% by adding that there would be no 
increases in the central rate until ‘well past the time that the 
unemployment rate declines below 6.5%, especially if projected inflation 
continues to run below the 2% longer run goal’. Consumer, investor and 
business confidence levels have all improved markedly in 2013.  The 
housing market has turned a corner and house sales and increases in 
house prices have returned to healthy levels.  Many house owners have, 
therefore, been helped to escape from negative equity and banks have also 
largely repaired their damaged balance sheets so that they can resume 

Page 111



 

18   

healthy levels of lending. All this portends well for a reasonable growth rate 
looking forward. 
 
China.  There are concerns that Chinese growth could be on an overall 
marginal downward annual trend. There are also concerns that the new 
Chinese leadership have only started to address an unbalanced economy 
which is heavily dependent on new investment expenditure, and for a 
potential bubble in the property sector to burst, as it did in Japan in the 
1990s, with its consequent impact on the financial health of the banking 
sector. There are also concerns around the potential size, and dubious 
creditworthiness, of some bank lending to local government organisations 
and major corporates. This primarily occurred during the government 
promoted expansion of credit, which was aimed at protecting the overall 
rate of growth in the economy after the Lehmans crisis. 
 
Japan.  The initial euphoria generated by “Abenomics”, the huge QE 
operation instituted by the Japanese government to buy Japanese debt, 
has tempered as the follow through of measures to reform the financial 
system and the introduction of other economic reforms, appears to have 
stalled.  However, at long last, Japan has seen a return to reasonable 
growth and positive inflation during 2013 which augurs well for the hopes 
that Japan can escape from the bog of stagnation and deflation and so help 
to support world growth.  The fiscal challenges though are huge; the gross 
debt to GDP ratio is about 245% in 2013 while the government is currently 
running an annual fiscal deficit of around 50% of total government 
expenditure.  Within two years, the central bank will end up purchasing 
about Y190 trillion (£1,200 billion) of government debt. In addition, the 
population is ageing due to a low birth rate and, on current trends, will fall 
from 128m to 100m by 2050. 
 
CAPITA ASSET SERVICES FORWARD VIEW  

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences 
weighing on the UK. Major volatility in bond yields is likely to endure as 
investor fears and confidence ebb and flow between favouring more risky 
assets i.e. equities, and safer bonds.  
 
There could well be volatility in gilt yields over the next year as financial 
markets anticipate further tapering of asset purchases by the Fed.  The timing 
and degree of tapering could have a significant effect on both Treasury and gilt 
yields.  Equally, while the political deadlock and infighting between Democrats 
and Republicans over the budget has almost been resolved the raising of the 
debt limit, has only been kicked down the road. A final resolution of these 
issues could have a significant effect on gilt yields during 2014. 
 
The longer run trend is for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise, due to the 
high volume of gilt issuance in the UK, and of bond issuance in other major 
western countries.  Increasing investor confidence in economic recovery is 
also likely to compound this effect as a continuation of recovery will further 
encourage investors to switch back from bonds to equities.   
 

Page 112



 

 19 

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently 
evenly weighted. However, only time will tell just how long this period of 
strong economic growth will last; it also remains exposed to vulnerabilities 
in a number of key areas. 
 
The interest rate forecasts in this report are based on an initial assumption 
that there will not be a major resurgence of the EZ debt crisis, or a break-
up of the EZ, but rather that there will be a managed, albeit painful and 
tortuous, resolution of the debt crisis where EZ institutions and 
governments eventually do what is necessary - but only when all else has 
been tried and failed. Under this assumed scenario, growth within the EZ 
will be tepid for the next couple of years and some EZ countries 
experiencing low or negative growth, will, over that time period, see a 
significant increase in total government debt to GDP ratios.  There is a 
significant danger that these ratios could rise to the point where markets 
lose confidence in the financial viability of one, or more, countries. 
However, it is impossible to forecast whether any individual country will 
lose such confidence, or when, and so precipitate a resurgence of the EZ 
debt crisis.  While the ECB has adequate resources to manage a debt crisis 
in a small EZ country, if one, or more, of the large countries were to 
experience a major crisis of market confidence, this would present a 
serious challenge to the ECB and to EZ politicians. 
 
Downside risks currently include:  
• UK strong economic growth is currently very dependent on consumer 

spending and recovery in the housing market.  This is unlikely to endure 
much beyond 2014 as most consumers are maxed out on borrowing and 
wage inflation is less than CPI inflation, so disposable income is being 
eroded. 

• A weak rebalancing of UK growth to exporting and business investment 
causing a major weakening of overall economic growth beyond 2014 

• Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU and 
US, depressing economic recovery in the UK. 

• Prolonged political disagreement over the raising of the US debt ceiling. 
• A return to weak economic growth in the US, UK and China causing 

major disappointment in investor and market expectations. 
• A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis caused by ongoing 

deterioration in government debt to GDP ratios to the point where 
financial markets lose confidence in the financial viability of one or more 
countries and in the ability of the ECB and Eurozone governments to 
deal with the potential size of the crisis. 

• The potential for a significant increase in negative reactions of populaces 
in Eurozone countries against austerity programmes, especially in 
countries with very high unemployment rates e.g. Greece and Spain, 
which face huge challenges in engineering economic growth to correct 
their budget deficits on a sustainable basis. 

• The Italian political situation is frail and unstable; this will cause major 
difficulties in implementing austerity measures and a programme of 
overdue reforms.  Italy has the third highest government debt mountain 
in the world. 

Page 113



 

20   

• Problems in other Eurozone heavily indebted countries (e.g. Cyprus and 
Portugal) which could also generate safe haven flows into UK gilts, 
especially if it looks likely that one, or more countries, will need to leave 
the Eurozone. 

• A lack of political will in France, (the second largest economy in the EZ), 
to dynamically address fundamental issues of low growth, poor 
international uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the 
economy. 

• Monetary policy action failing to stimulate sustainable growth in western 
economies, especially the Eurozone and Japan. 

• Geopolitical risks e.g. Syria, Iran, North Korea, which could trigger safe 
haven flows back into bonds. 

 
The potential for upside risks to UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, especially 
for longer term PWLB rates include: - 
• A sharp upturn in investor confidence that sustainable robust world 

economic growth is firmly expected, causing a surge in the flow of funds 
out of bonds into equities. 

• A reversal of Sterling’s safe-haven status on a sustainable improvement 
in financial stresses in the Eurozone. 

• UK inflation being significantly higher than in the wider EU and US, 
causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields. 

• In the longer term – an earlier than currently expected reversal of QE in 
the UK; this could initially be implemented by allowing gilts held by the 
Bank to mature without reinvesting in new purchases, followed later by 
outright sale of gilts currently held. 

 

 

 

Page 114



 

 21 

APPENDIX 3 - Specified and Non-Specified Investments and Limits 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling 
denominated, with maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the 
minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 

 
* Minimum ‘High’ 

Credit Criteria 

Debt Management Agency Deposit Facility -- 

Term deposits – local authorities   -- 

Term deposits – banks and building societies (See 

appendix 5 for approved Counties) 
Green - See note below 

Collateralised deposit  UK sovereign rating 

Certificates of deposit issued by banks and building 

societies covered by UK Government (explicit) 

guarantee 

UK sovereign rating 

Certificates of deposit issued by banks and building 

societies covered by UK Government (explicit) 

guarantee 

UK sovereign rating 

UK Government Gilts UK sovereign rating  

Bonds issued by multilateral development banks  AAA 

Bond issuance issued by a financial institution 

which is explicitly guaranteed by  the UK 

Government  (refers solely to GEFCO – Guaranteed 

Export Finance Corporation) 

UK sovereign rating  

Sovereign bond issues (other than the UK govt) AAA  

Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating 

 

Term deposits with nationalised banks and banks and building 

societies  

 

 
Minimum Credit 

Criteria 

Max % of total 

investments 

Max. 

maturity 

period 

UK  part nationalised banks Blue - See note below £4.0m 1 year 

 
Eastbourne Borough Council uses Capita’s credit worthiness service which 
overlays colour bandings to determine the maximum length of any 
investment.  See Appendix 4 for further detail.  
 

Accounting treatment of investments.  The accounting treatment may 
differ from the underlying cash transactions arising from investment 
decisions made by this Council. To ensure that the Council is protected 
from any adverse revenue impact, which may arise from these differences, 
we will review the accounting implications of new transactions before they 
are undertaken. 
 

Page 115



 

22   

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do 
not meet the Specified Investment criteria. A maximum of 25% will be held 
in aggregate in non-specified investment. 
 
Maturities in excess of 1 year 

 
Minimum Credit 

Criteria 

Max % of total 

investments 

Max. 

maturity 

period 

Term deposits – local authorities  -- 
£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

Term deposits – banks and 

building societies  
Green 

£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

Certificates of deposit issued by 

banks and building societies 

covered by UK  Government  

(explicit) guarantee 

UK sovereign rating 
£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

Certificates of deposit issued by 

banks and building societies  
Green 

£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

UK Government Gilts  UK sovereign rating  
£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

Bonds issued by multilateral 

development banks  
AAA 

£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

Sovereign bond issues (other than 

the UK govt)  
AAA 

£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 

(OEICs) 

   1. Bond Funds 
Long-term AA- 

volatility rating       

£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

   2. Gilt Funds 
Long-term AA- 

volatility rating       

£2m with any 

institution 
2 years 

 

Local Authority Mortgage Scheme.  
Under this scheme the Council is required to place funds of £1,000,000, 
with the Lender for a period of 5 years.  This is classified as being a service 
investment, rather than a treasury management investment, and is 
therefore outside of the specified / non specified categories. 
 

 

Page 116



 

 23 

APPENDIX 4 – Creditworthiness Policy 

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita. This service 
employs a sophisticated modelling approach utlilising credit ratings from the three 
main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moodys and Standard and Poors. The credit 
ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 
countries. 

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks in 
a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads for 
which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 
creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are used by the Council to 
determine the duration for investments. The Council will therefore use counterparties 
within the following durational bands:  
 

• Blue  1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks) 
• Orange 1 year 
• Red  6 months 
• Green  3 months  
• No Colour  not to be used. 

This methodology does not apply the approach suggested by CIPFA of using the 
lowest rating from all three rating agencies to determine creditworthy counterparties. 
The Capita creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just 
primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give undue 
preponderance to just one agency’s ratings. 
 
Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short term 
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of Short Term rating F1, Long Term rating A-, Individual 
of Viability ratings of C- (or BB+), and a Support rating of 3. There may be occasions 
when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower than 
these ratings but may still be used. In these instances consideration will be given to 
the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to support 
their use. 
 
All credit ratings will be monitored weekly. The Council is alerted to changes to 
ratings of all three agencies through its use of the Capita creditworthiness service. If 
a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer meeting the 
Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will be withdrawn 
immediately. In addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of 
information in movements in Credit Default Swap against the iTraxx benchmark and 
other market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 
 
Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition this 
Council will also use market data and market information, information on government 
support for banks and the credit ratings of that government support 
 

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



BODY: CABINET 
 

DATE: 5 February 2014 
 

SUBJECT: HRA Revenue Budget and  Rent Setting 2014/15  and 
HRA Capital Programme 2013/16 
 

REPORT OF: Senior Head of Community and Chief Finance Officer 
 

Ward(s): All 
 

Purpose: To agree the detailed HRA budget proposals, rent levels, 
service charges and heating costs for 2014/15, and the HRA 
Capital Programme 2013/17. 
 

Contact: Pauline Adams, Financial Services Manager  
Tel 01323 415979 or internally on ext 5979 
 

Recommendations: Members are asked to recommend the following proposals to 
full Council: 
 

 i) The HRA budget for 2014/15 and revised 2013/14 as 
set out in Appendix 1. 

ii) That rents are set in line with the rent convergence 
target of 2016 set by Government resulting in an 
average increase of 4.68%. 

iii) That void HRA properties which are due for re-let are 
moved to target rent automatically, 

iv) That service charges for general needs properties are 
increased by 2.75%, slightly below the RPI index,  

v) That the service charges for the Older Persons 
Sheltered Accommodation currently available for let 
are increased by 4.83%.  

vi) That heating costs are set at a level designed to 
recover the estimated actual cost.  

vii) That water charges are set at a level designed to 
recover the estimated cost of metered consumption.  

viii) That garage rents are set to increase by 4.68% in line 
with the average increase in housing rent. 

ix) To give delegated authority to the Senior Head of 
Community, in consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio 
holders for Community Services and Financial Services 
and the Financial Services Manager to finalise 
Eastbourne Homes’ Management Fee and Delivery 
Plan.  

x) The HRA Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 2.  

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 119



2 

1.0 Introduction  
 

1.1 As from the 1 April 2012 the way that council social housing is financed was 
changed and the HRA became self financing. This means that expenditure 
has to be entirely supported from rental and other income. The main tool for 
the future financial management of the HRA is the 30 year Business Plan 
which was approved by Cabinet on 8 February 2012.  
 

1.2 The introduction of HRA self financing does not end the requirement to 
maintain a statutory ring fenced HRA and the council is still required to 
maintain a separate account for the income and expenditure on council 
housing.  
 

1.3 This report reflects the recommendations made by Eastbourne Homes in 
relation to the increases in rent levels, service and other charges.  
 

2.0 2014/15 HRA Revenue Budget 
 

2.1 The 2014/15 budget has been prepared following the principles adopted 
within the HRA 30 year Business Plan and is attached at Appendix 1.   
 

2.2 The 2014/15 budget is showing a surplus of (£307,760) which is due to a 
number of one off favourable factors as listed below. 
 

2.3 The major changes between the 2013/14 and the 2014/15 budgets are: 
 

Income increases and expenditure reductions: 
• Effect of rent and service charge review -£640,630 
• Fall out of premia for early debt repayment in prior years -£148,750 
• Preliminary reduction in EHL Management Fee -£100,000 
• Change in requirement for Revenue Contribution to Capital -£74,820 
• Change in provision for bad debts, see (2.4) below -£343,500 

 
Increase in Expenditure and income reductions: 

• Change from 53 week rent year to 52 weeks £263,250 
• Depreciation, in line with Business Plan to cover the future 

requirements of the Asset Management Plan £202,650 
• Contribution to Housing Regeneration Reserve £500,000 

 

2.4 An increase to the Provision for Bad Debts was included in the 2013/14 
budget to deal with the increased risk to rent collection from benefit 
changes. Based on the actual rent collection performance this risk has 
decreased, however a prudent increase over 2012/13 has still been included 
in the 2014/15 budget. 
 

2.5 The Business Plan allows for a revenue contribution to support capital 
expenditure for the three years 2013/14 to 2015/16 based on the asset 
management spending requirement peaking over these years in excess of 
the balance on the Major Repairs Reserve (MRR), until decreasing again by 
year five of the business plan. After this time surpluses begin to accumulate 
in the MRR as the cash backed depreciation allowance of £4m per year will 
start to exceed the capital spending requirements.  

Page 120



3 

2.6 The HRA debt outstanding at 31.3.13 was £36.2m rising to £38.7m by 
31.3.16 the majority of which will be external debt and at fixed interest 
rates. The increase in borrowing of £2.5m is expected to be undertaken 
mainly to support the SHEP programme. The additional interest payable 
from this borrowing will be funded from the additional rental as the 
properties are let. The Council’s treasury management advisors are 
predicting that the currently low levels of interest rates will continue into 
2014/15 and the interest budget has been prepared on this basis.  
 

2.7 Under the self financing settlement the government set a cap on total HRA 
borrowing of £42.96m. The 30year Business Plan assumes from 16/17 to 
28/29 that an average debt repayment of £2.8m per annum is funded from 
the HRA Revenue Account. This will either be used to fund the repayment of 
debt or be used to reinvest in housing properties in lieu of new borrowing.  
 

2.8 The HRA outturn for 2013/14 is expected to deliver a (£314,950) surplus, a 
positive variance of £450,400 over the original budget (3.4% of gross 
expenditure). This is mainly as a result of the decrease in the requirement of 
the provision of bad debts of £390,000 and a decrease in the amount of 
interest payable of £65,000 from the continuing lower interest rates 
anticipated last year.  
 

2.9 The HRA Business Plan is based on a policy for a minimum level of HRA 
balance of £1m to maintain a prudent level of reserve to ensure that the 
HRA remains sustainable in the longer term and is able to deal with any risks 
posed by the current economic climate.  
 

The Balances on the HRA and Reserves are as follows: 
 

 HRA MRR 

Housing 
Regeneration 
& Investment  

Reserve 

 £'000 £'000 £'000 

    

Balance at 1.4.13 2,179 2,671 298 

Surplus/(Deficit) 315   

Depreciation   3,392 530 

Major Works expenditure   -5,934   

Estimated Balance 31.3.14 2,494 129 828 

    

Surplus/(Deficit) 308   

Revenue Contribution    500 

Depreciation   3,504 603 

Major Works expenditure  -3,633 -1,094 

Estimated Balance 31.3.15 2,802 0 837 

 
These are within the HRA strategy and policy expectation of the Business 
Plan.  
 

Page 121



4 

3.0 Rent Levels for 2014/15 

3.1 On 5 December 2001, the Council agreed that housing rents would be set in 
accordance with the Governments proposals to achieve rent convergence for 
all social tenancies over a ten year period, using the government’s specified 
rent convergence formula. The timetable for convergence was subsequently 
extended. Under the HRA self-financing settlement the government has 
assumed that rent convergence is achieved in 2015/16.  
 

3.2 To avoid any large variation in the rent level from one year to the next, the 
Government proposals limited any changes to individual tenants’ rents to a 
maximum of £2 per week, plus RPI plus 0.5% each year.  
 

3.3 The RPI for September 2013 was 3.2% and this plus the 0.5% increase 
gives a formula rent increase of 3.7% for 2014/15.  
 

3.4 For 2013/14 the average rent levied over 53 weeks a year was £74.51. After 
allowing for the damping mechanism referred to in 3.2, the average rent for 
2014/15 for the properties to be retained within the HRA will be £77.89, an 
increase of 4.68 %. 
 

3.5 Previously, setting rents above government convergence limits was 
discouraged by the ‘rent rebate subsidy limitation’ rule which made the HRA 
liable for the additional Housing Benefit payments generated by excess 
rents. Following the move to self financing, the ‘limits’ rule is no longer 
relevant to local authorities and could potentially move all their properties to 
target rent simultaneously. 
 

3.6 As the majority of EBC owned properties (84%) have already reached their 
target rent, it is recommended that all void properties that are due to be re-
let are moved to target rent automatically. This will maximise the number of 
tenants that have reached rent convergence by the assumed convergence 
date of 2015/16 and increase the income to the HRA before the existing rent 
calculation formula ceases.  
 

3.7 Within the recent 2013 spending review, it was announced that social 
housing rents will increase by CPI (Consumer Price Index) +1% after 
2014/15 until 2024/25. The revised formula, which is set to run for 10 years 
starting in 2015/16, will replace the existing formula. 
 

3.8 Modelling this change into the Business Plan has identified that there will be 
little impact on the HRA, due to the Council having reached convergence by 
the new cut off date and the difference between the old and new rent 
formulae being  minimal as it amounts to less than six pence in the pound 
over twenty years.  
 

4.0 Service Charges 
 

4.1 For properties in shared blocks these charges cover common services such 
as communal heating, lighting, equipment maintenance contracts, cleaning 
and grounds maintenance. In Older Persons Sheltered Accommodation the 
charges additionally include On-Site Co-ordinators, Lifeline services, lift 

Page 122



5 

maintenance contracts, communal furniture and carpets maintenance and 
internal re-decorations. These costs should be charged separately from the 
rent in those properties to which they apply. 
 

4.2 The HRA Business Plan assumes that service costs are fully recovered 
through service charges and are not included in rents. This principle has 
been applied for 2014/15.  
 

4.3 For general needs properties in blocks the average service charge increase is 
2.75%. For Older Persons Sheltered Accommodation the average service 
charge increase is 4.83% for those properties available for let. 
 

5.0 Heating costs - Older Persons Sheltered Accommodation 

5.1 These charges are set in line with known price increases experienced in 2013 
and predicted future costs. For 2014/15, it is recommended that the average 
charge increase is 1.78%. This is an increase of 12p per week for those 
properties available to let. 
 

6.0  Water Charges 

6.1 These charges are set in line with meters being fitted to all of the retirement 
courts. For 2014/15, it is recommended that the average charge increase is 
3%. This is an increase of 10p per week for those properties available to let. 
  

7.0 Garage Rents 

7.1 Following the increase in garage rent in line with housing rents last year, 
garage void rates are slowly decreasing. The progress of this extra income 
still remains slow as the majority of repairs needed to the garage stock are 
major works requiring longer periods of time to repair and let. 
 

7.2 It is therefore recommended that Garage rents are increased in line with the 
average increase in housing rents of 4.68%.  
 

8.0 HRA Capital Programme 2014/15 to 2016/17 

8.1 The Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 2 has been prepared to 
meet the Council’s strategies, as adjusted to reflect the availability of 
resources. Total budgeted expenditure for 2014/15 is £9,771,000. 
 

8.2 The Decent Homes work is due to be completed by the end of 2013/14 and 
the remodelling of Older Persons Sheltered Accommodation by 2014/15. 
  

8.3 The major works element of the programme is in line with the asset 
management plan and the self financing business plan model. Funding is 
mainly from the Major Repairs Reserve with a small contribution from 
revenue balances as set out in 2.5 above.  
 

8.4 Cabinet on 4th September 2013, agreed a budget of £2.3m for the Support 
for Housing in Eastbourne Programme (SHEP), out of the total allowance of 
£20m HEDP programme. This has now been profiled to reflect the expected 
spending timetable and will be funded from borrowing and HCA grant.  

Page 123



6 

 

9.0 Eastbourne Homes Management Fee 

9.1 Negotiations are in progress to reduce the management fee paid to EHL for 
the year 2014/15 by up to £100,000. Should these negotiations be 
successfully concluded, the management fee will be circa £6.7m.  
 

9.2 The Management Fee covers both Operational and Administration costs as 
well as cyclical maintenance. There is currently pressure on the maintenance 
budget requirement for void properties and it therefore maybe necessary to 
introduce an element of flexibility to transfer some of the MRR capital 
funding to EHL to cover this cost. It is recommended that this decision be 
included in the delegation set out below.   
 

9.3 To formally agree the management fee Members are asked to delegate this 
responsibility to the Senior Head of Community, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Portfolio Holders for Community Services and Financial Services and 
the Financial Services Manager.  
 

10.0 Consultation 

10.1 Rent increases are subject to national policy on rent convergence. In 
December 2001 the Council adopted a policy of achieving convergence, 
based on consultation with its tenants at the time. Additional consultation 
was carried out through a meeting of the Eastbourne Homes’ Residents 
Scrutiny Panel held in January 2014.   
 

10.2 The Council is obliged to ensure that all tenants are given 28 days notice of 
any changes to their tenancy including changes to the rent they pay. 
 

11.0 Implications  

11.1 Financial and Human Resources  
 
The council has taken a pro-active approach to the implementation of the 
rent convergence policy. There are no staffing implications arising out of this 
report.  
  

11.2 Environmental 
 
Eastbourne Homes is committed to delivering energy efficiency 
improvements in its maintenance and modernisation programme to help 
reduce heating costs in all homes. 
 

11.3 Economic 
 
Eastbourne Homes will make every effort to identify tenants who may face 
additional financial hardship as a result of rent or service charge increases in 
order to offer appropriate support and advice. 
 
Anti-poverty activity by Eastbourne Homes takes place routinely throughout 
the year to maximise household income. This includes advice on benefits and 

Page 124



7 

arrears management. This targeted use of resources assists greatly in 
ensuring housing remains affordable. 
 

12.0 Conclusions 
 

12.1 The HRA Revenue Budget has been produced based on the policies set out in 
the HRA 30 year Business Plan and is showing an overall surplus of 
(£307,760) for 2014/15. This is mainly due to a number of favourable 
factors including the rent and service charge review, the change in 
requirement for the provision of bad debts and the savings  from Treasury 
Management activities on borrowing.  
 

12.2 The rent levels have been prepared in accordance with the council’s rent 
convergence policy and the self financing business plan assumptions. The 
average increase is 4.68%. 
 

12.3 Following the change to self financing in the HRA, void rents are 
recommended to move to target routinely. 
 

12.4 
 

Service charges, heating and water charges are fixed weekly amounts set at 
a level to recover the expected actual cost to be incurred for the respective 
properties in the forthcoming year. 
 

12.5 Garage rents are recommended to increase in line with the average increase 
in housing rents 4.68%. 
 

12.6 Total budgeted expenditure on the HRA Capital Programme is planned at 
£9,771,000 for 2014/15, £4,258,000 for 2015/16 and £4,195,000 for 
2016/17. The Decent Homes work is due to be completed during 2013/14 
and the remodelling of the sheltered accommodation by 2014/15. The major 
works element of the programme is in line with the asset management plan 
and the HRA business plan model.  
 

 
 

Pauline Adams 
Financial Services Manager 
 
Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
HRA 2014/15 Budget working papers held by Eastbourne Council and Eastbourne Homes 
Ltd.   
HRA Self Financing 30 year Business Plan.  
 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer listed 
above. 
 

 

Page 125



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

2013-14 2013-14
Original 

Budget

Revised 

Budget

£' 000 £'000

INCOME

(14,051) (14,051) Gross Rents (14,439)

(892) (922) Charges for Services (918)

(14,943) (14,973) GROSS INCOME (15,357)

EXPENDITURE

6,814 6,814 Management Fee 6,714

1,283 1,297 Supervision and Management 1,255

470 89 Provision for Doubtful Debts 126

3,904 3,937 Depreciation and Impairmant of Fixed Assets 4,107

468 468 Revenue Contributions to Capital Outlay 393

Statutory Contribution to the General Fund 

13 13 Rent Rebates 0

12,952 12,618 GROSS EXPENDITURE 12,595

(1,991) (2,355) NET COST OF SERVICES (2,762)

2,115 2,049 Loan Charges - Interest 1,956

(21) (9) Interest Receivable (2)

103 (315) NET OPERATING SURPLUS (808)

NIL NIL Transfer to Reserves 500

103 (315) HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (SURPLUS) / DEFICIT (308)

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT WORKING BALANCE

(2,017) (2,179) In Hand at 1st April (2,494)

103 (315) Transfer (To)/ From Working Balance (308)

(1,914) (2,494) In Hand at 31st March (2,802)

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

2014-2015

BUDGET

£' 000

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Scheme

 Approved 

Budget    

2013/14 

 Revised 

Budget 

2013/14  2014/15  2015/16  2016/17 

Managed By Eastbourne Homes

Decent Homes Works 284,000          567,900 -                    -                   -                   

Sheltered Remodelling 2,400,000       2,054,800      1,782,000 0 0

Major Works 4,350,300       3,699,600      3,183,000 3,766,000 3,703,000

Adaptations -                    -                   412,000 412,000 412,000

Environmental Improvements 80,800 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000

7,115,100 6,402,300 5,457,000 4,258,000 4,195,000 

Langney Villas 10,000            -                   -                    -                   -                   

Ratton Road 13,300            -                   -                    -                   -                   

Upper Avenue 10,000            -                   -                    -                   -                   

LA New Build 2013-15 2,930,000       -                   2,930,000       -                   -                   
Supporting Housing & Economic Progress 

Initiative (SHEP) 2,279,000       1,170,000      1,109,000       -                   -                   

46 Upperton Gardens 240,000          40,000          200,000          -                   -                   

Homelessness Change Programme 275,000          200,000         75,000            -                   -                   

Total HRA Capital Programme 12,872,400    7,812,300    9,771,000     4,258,000    4,195,000    

Funded by:

Borrowing 1,919,000       810,000         1,109,000       -                   -                   

Government Grant 416,000          416,000         -                    -                   -                   

Capital Receipts inc. RTB 2,656,800       184,000         2,406,770       -                   -                   

Major Repairs Reserve 6,581,000       5,934,200      3,633,320       4,106,970      4,195,000      

S106 Contributions 831,500          -                   798,230          -                   -                   

Revenue contributions from HRA 468,100          468,100         393,280          -                   -                   

Reserves -                    -                   1,430,400       151,030         -                   

Total Financing 12,872,400    7,812,300    9,771,000     4,258,000    4,195,000    

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2013/14 - 2016/17

P
age 129



P
age 130

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 7 

 

Body: CABINET 
 

Date: 5 February 2014 
 

Subject: Sustainable Service Delivery Update 
 

Report Of: Deputy Chief Executive 
 

Ward(s) All 
 

Purpose To update Members on the progress made within the SSDS 
programme, with particular reference to the Future Model 
Programme Plan (Phase Two) as at January 2013, this being 
one of the key projects under the Corporate Plan Sustainable 
Performance theme (Project 2 – Efficiency). 
 

Recommendation: Members are asked to: 
 

i) Note key activities and progress made against the 
Future Model Programme Plan (Phase Two). 

ii) Note key programme milestones for February 2014 – 
May 2014 

iii) To approve a budget of £15k to investigate the 
opportunities, costs and issues of developing shared 
corporate services with Lewes District Council 

 
Contact: Julian Osgathorpe, Deputy Chief Executive, Telephone 01323 

415008 or internally on extension 5008. 
julian.osgathorpe@eastbourne.gov.uk  
 
or 
 
Henry Branson, Senior Head of Infrastructure, Telephone 01323 
415155 or internally on extension 5155. 
Henry.branson@eastbourne.gov.uk  

 
1.0 Background/Introduction 

 
1.1 The Sustainable Service Delivery Strategy (SSDS) is a key response to the 

increasing cost and demand pressures facing the Council. It is a programme 
that was developed to promote a range of solutions, including internal 
transformation as well as increasing effective partnership working with other 
organisations. 
 
In July 2013 Cabinet approved the adoption and implementation of Phase 
Two of the Future Model under Option 5 of the SSDS and delegated authority 
to the DRIVE Programme Board to run the programme within the allocated 
resources. The scope of Phase Two is: 
 

• CMT/ Senior management  

• Housing 

Agenda Item 11

Page 131



Page 2 of 7 

• Revenues 

• Benefits 

• Fraud 

• Strategic performance 

• Democratic/ Civic services 

• Electoral services and local land charges 

• Community development, involvement and crime reduction 

• Tourism development marketing 

• Seafront services 

• Events  

• Sports and leisure 

• Finance – payments and income 

• Finance – procurement 

• Digital mail room 

• Customer contact activity currently carried out by Capita for 

revenues and benefits 

• Asset Management 

 
This is the first update to Cabinet on the progress of Phase Two.  
 
The Future Model Programme aims to improve service delivery whilst 
delivering savings estimated at £1.7m to £2m across the organisation. The 
current phase, Phase Two, is estimated to save £1.2m - £1.5m. 
 
The Future Model describes a new way of organising and delivering council 
services, delivering efficiencies at the same time as putting the customer at 
the heart of all we do. Further details are available in the July 2013 Cabinet 
report. 
 

2.0 Sharing Corporate Services 
 

2.1 In addition to the current activity under Phase Two of the Future Model, an 
opportunity has arisen to explore the development of shared corporate 
services with Lewes District Council. It is proposed that iESE are instructed 
to work with the Councils to develop a brief for the piece of work which 
should provide a view on the following areas with regard to any proposal: 

• Options  
• Costs 
• Benefits (financial and non-financial) 
• Risks 
• Issues 
• Likely implementation pathway 

 
The anticipated cost of this work will be capped at £15k to each council. A 
further report to Cabinet will outline the findings and recommend a way 
forward in due course. 
 
Lewes District Council approved both the initiative and the budget for this 
piece of work at their Cabinet on 6th January 2014. 
 

Page 132



Page 3 of 7 

3.0 Future Model Programme Highlights 
 

3.1 Summary of programme status 
 

 A key priority for August and September was mobilising the programme and 
ensuring that the appropriate contracts were in place. This was completed 
successfully and we will be working once more with Civica and Ignite as our 
principle implementation partners. 
 
The Phase Two project teams are largely in place and working well. 
Workshops are underway and staff are engaging well. The implementation of 
the new revenues and benefits system is the biggest technology project and 
has therefore been a key area of focus in the first two quarters, and is on 
target. 
 
The key areas of risk for the programme are: 
 

• Resources – Phase Two is a large programme, and we have some 
Phase One work to complete as well. We are placing significant 
demands on both our own staff and our partners. We are looking to 
build additional capacity into our internal Systems Support team and 
are engaged in frequent resourcing conversations with Civica and 
Ignite.  

• System integration – Civica, as our key technology partner, are fully 
committed to building the integrated set of technologies required to 
support the Future Model. Where this involves other software 
companies we are dependent on the ability and willingness of those 
companies to open up their products to integrate with Civica. 
Discussions are underway with all such companies but have not been 
concluded as yet. 

• Positive staff engagement – we continue to ask EBC staff to engage 
positively in the programme, since we cannot make the Future Model 
a success without staff input. EBC staff have the experience of Phase 
One to draw on, whereas EHL staff are new to the process and we 
need to ensure we do all we can to enable them to contribute 
effectively. 

 
3.2 Key Activities August - January 

 
 Workstream 1: Customer   

This workstream will focus on opportunities to encourage customers to 
access services online. Early planning activity for this project is now 
underway. Since the new website was launched in Phase One we have had 
more than 1,700 customers register online. 
 
Additionally, this workstream will co-ordinate the consultation activity that 
will be required with customers and stakeholder groups. 
  
Workstream 2: Business Process Create and Construct 
This workstream focuses on re-designing the services along the Future Model 
principles and then developing the technology to support the new work 
processes. 
 

Page 133



Page 4 of 7 

The project team is working well and has run a series of core workshops 
looking at some of the most important customer journeys for Phase Two. A 
‘customer journey’ describes how a service will work for both the customer 
and the different staff groups once it has been redesigned along Future 
Model principles. 
 
These workshops have been delivered on schedule. 
 
It has also been necessary to carry some work leftover from Phase One into 
the Phase Two. This work is ongoing and will be completed by March 2014. 
 
Workstream 3: Technology  
There are ten technology projects within this workstream. At a high level 
their status is as follows: 
 

• T1 Data & Records (Implementation started) 
• T2 Infrastructure Technology (Implementation started) 
• T3 Revenues & Benefits System (Implementation started) 
• T4 Serengeti Migration (Not started) 
• T5 Orchard Integration (Scoping) 
• T6 Mobile Technology (Scoping) 
• T7 Website Development (Not started) 
• T8 Land Charges Automation (Scoping) 
• T9 Electoral Registration (Scoping) 
• T10 Post Go Live Support (Not started) 

 
All of these projects are largely where we would expect at this stage of the 
programme, with the exception of T5 Orchard Integration and T9 Electoral 
Registration, where we had hoped to have moved into implementation. Both 
these projects involve system integration work and whilst discussions have 
been held with the other software suppliers, we have not yet fully defined 
the work required. 
 
Workstream 4: People 
This workstream is responsible for taking the outputs of the business process 
workshops and creating the staff structure and roles which will form part of 
the Target Operating Model (TOM). The programme plan shows consultation 
on the TOM taking place in June/July 2014.  
 
Workstream 5: Programme Management 
The DRIVE Board has approved the programme initiation document and 
programme plan, although both of these documents are ‘live’ documents and 
will evolve as the programme moves forward. 
 
Several key decisions have been made in the last quarter which will have an 
impact on the programme: 
 

• Confirmation of EHL’s involvement in Phase Two 
 
In July 2013, Cabinet approved the commencement of discussions to 
align the activities of Eastbourne Borough Council (EBC) and EHL to 
deliver customer benefits and efficiencies. These discussions have 
taken longer than anticipated but both organisations have now 

Page 134



Page 5 of 7 

reached a position of agreement on the following points: 
o All of EHL’s services will be reviewed as part of Phase Two, with 

the exception of certain key contractual relationships which 
need to remain largely as-is for now. Opportunities for 
integrating EBC and EHL teams will be explored and a set of 
high level principles will be reported to Cabinet in March. 
Tenants will then be consulted on the proposals.  

o EHL will relocate from Ivy House to 1 Grove Road by the end of 
their lease in 2015 and will work in line with EBC’s agile working 
philosophy.  

• Inclusion of the Events team in scope of the programme 
• Inclusion of the Estates and Facilities team in scope of the 

programme. 
 

Early communications activities have included a staff drop-in event in 
December to provide more information about Future Model and the Phase 
Two programme. Around 80 staff were engaged through the event, and an 
evening session was attended by 9 Councillors. 
 

3.3 Key Decisions / Deliverables February to May 
 

 The workstreams consist of a number of projects, which in turn break down 
into work packages. These workstreams, projects and work packages have 
been loaded into the Council’s performance management system, Covalent, 
to help us track progress throughout the programme. 
 
For the Business Process Create and Construct workstream we have broken 
the work into logical groups of services which we will tackle in a series of 
‘sprints’. A sprint is a short project of around 6 weeks; it will start with 
workshops to design the new processes and then move straight into building 
the new processes using the technology. This approach has been adopted to 
address some learning points from Phase One. 
 
Section 2.3 below presents an overview of the key areas of focus for the 
next quarter. It is not an exhaustive list of all work packages and 
deliverables. 
 

3.4 Next Quarter Milestones 
 

 Major deliverables that will be produced in the next period (leading to 31 
May 2014) include: 
 
Workstream 1: Customer  

• Channel Shift Plan 
• Ongoing channel shift activities 
• Detailed plan for consultation with residents and tenants 

  
Workstream 2: Business Process Create and Construct 

• Complete Phase One sprint and Go Live with scripts/processes – 
Licensing and Environmental Health 

• Complete Phase Two sprints: 
o Seafront services and events delivery unit 
o Land charges 

Page 135



Page 6 of 7 

o Electoral services 
o Revenues and associated Finance processes 

• Benefits and Housing sprints will be in progress 
 
Workstream 3: Technology  

• First data migration for revenues and benefits 
• Customer data matching 
• Define and commence housing systems integration 
• Define and commence electoral services systems integration 
• Define and commence website development 
• Define and commence migration of EHL’s Serengeti system to EBC’s 

W2 system 
 
Workstream 4: People 

• Induct EHL staff into Future Model programme 
• Launch knowledge and skills project 
• Further development of organisation design including both corporate 

management structures. EHL and EBC management to have reached 
agreement about the draft Target Operating Model and prepared for 
staff consultation 

 
Workstream 5: Programme Management 

• Oversee development of remaining project plans (largely for 
technology projects) 

• Ongoing communications activities 
• Ongoing status reporting 

 
4.0 Resource Implications 

 
4.1 Financial:  The Future Model programme is currently on budget. An 

additional budget of £15k is sought to fund the initial workstream around 
shared corporate services initiative with Lewes District Council and iESE. 
 

4.2 Staffing: As stated in 2.1 above, the demands being made on staff at 
present are considerable and we are actively looking at introducing 
additional support and staff resources where needed. 
 

5.0 Conclusion. 
 

5.1 With the continued successful implementation of the Future Model initiative, 
the Council is well on track with regard to the internal transformation 
agenda. Now, with the developing relationship with Lewes District Council we 
are beginning to see the potential for deeper shared working with a 
neighbouring authority.  
 
Members are asked to note both progress made with regard to the Future 
Model and endorse the investigation of shared services with Lewes District 
Council. 
 

Henry Branson 
Senior Head Of Infrastructure 
 

Page 136



Page 7 of 7 

 
Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 

• Future Model Programme Plan 
• Future Model Project Highlight Reports 
• Sustainable Service Delivery Strategy Programme – Implementation of the 

Future Model Phase 2 (Cabinet Paper, 10 July 2013) 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer 
listed above. 
 
 

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



BODY CABINET 
 

DATE 5 February 2014 
 

SUBJECT Eastbourne Town Centre – Update on Use of 
Compulsory Purchase Powers  
 

REPORT OF Senior Head of Development  
 

  
Ward(s) Devonshire, Meads and Upperton 

 
Purpose To update Members on the position regarding the need 

for a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) for the 
compulsory acquisition of properties and interests in 
the town centre, to facilitate the development of the 
extension to the Arndale Centre.  
 

Contact Jefferson Collard, Senior Head of Development,  
1 Grove Road, Eastbourne 
Tel no: (01323) 415240 
E-mail: jeff.collard@eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

Recommendations 1. That Cabinet note planning application 131071, 
which is to be determined by the  Council's 
planning committee, and Cabinet confirm that in 
the event that the application is granted, with or 
without modifications, the authority delegated to 
the Senior Head of Development on 6 February 
2013 to make a CPO will continue to apply. The 
authorisations previously granted provided that: 
 
Cabinet delegate to the Senior Head of 
Development, in consultation with The Chief 
Finance Officer and the Leader, authority to: 
 
(a) take all necessary steps to secure the making,   
confirmation and implementation of the CPO 
including the publication of all notices to give effect 
thereto; 
 
(b) complete an indemnity agreement with PRLP to 
provide for the reimbursement of costs incurred by 
the Borough Council in processing the CPO;  
 
c) make minor or technical amendments to the 
boundary of the delineated area, if necessary 
 
(d)  acquire all necessary interests in the 
delineated area (as may be amended) either by 
agreement or compulsorily; 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 139



 2 

(e)  negotiate with any landowner or occupier; 
 
(f)  set out the terms for the withdrawal of 
objections to the CPO;  
 
(g)  make arrangements to assist with any 
relocation as required; 
 
(h)  to confirm the CPO if granted power to do so 
by the Secretary of State; 
 
(i)  make arrangements for the presentation of the 
Borough Council's case for confirmation of the CPO 
at any public inquiry; 
 
(j)  exercise the compulsory purchase powers 
authorised by the CPO by way of general vesting 
declaration and/or notice to treat.  

 
2. In addition, that Cabinet delegate to the Senior 

Head of Development, in consultation with the 
Chief Finance Officer and The Leader, authority to 
exercise its powers of appropriation and powers 
under S237 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990, if required. 
 

3. That the revised plan at Appendix 1 is the area to 
be used to make the Compulsory Purchase Order 
(subject to any further variations).  

 

  
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 Members will recall that at the Cabinet meeting on 6 February 2013, it 

approved the making of a CPO subject to the completion of an 
indemnity agreement with PRLP to facilitate the redevelopment of the 
extension to the Arndale Centre. Cabinet authorised  officers to 
negotiate and enter into a CPO indemnity agreement with PRLP (the 
developer) to indemnify the Council against all costs and compensation 
awards associated with the Council making a CPO, and also granted 
delegations to officers to carry out all steps necessary to obtain the 
CPO. 
 

1.2 PRLP submitted a new application in December 2013 for revised 
proposals to the Arndale Centre extension which includes leisure uses.  
This application has yet to be determined by the Council's planning 
committee.  If approval is forthcoming then it is the revised scheme 
which will become the underlying scheme for the proposed CPO.   
 

1.3 Since the last report the boundary of the land needed for the 
development has been slightly adjusted. Although the scheme to be 
implemented will now include the leisure offer there is little change in 

Page 140



 3 

the land needed for the proposal. However for the avoidance of doubt 
a revised plan showing the CPO area is attached at Appendix 1.  
 

2.0 Update 
 

2.1 Following Cabinet's authorisation to proceed with the CPO process, the 
decision was referred to Full Council to be endorsed.  The Cabinet's 
decision was duly endorsed by Full Council on 20 February 2013.  
Members should note that there is no legal requirement for Full Council 
to endorse Cabinet's resolution in relation to this matter. Cabinet has 
full authority delegated to it under the Constitution. While Cabinet 
wanted to highlight to Full Council the decision it had made last time, 
however it is not necessary to do so again following this further 
Cabinet resolution.   
 

2.2 On 30 May 2013, the Section 106 Agreement was completed and 
planning permission issued for PRLP's development proposals for the 
Arndale Centre's extension, consisting of: 
 
"demolition of existing buildings to provide an extension to the existing 
shopping centre for class A1, A2, A3, A4 and A5 (retail use) at ground 
and first floors plus second floor ancillary space; a 2 storey extension 
to existing car parking deck and pedestrian access including new shop 
fronts onto Terminus Road and associated highway works." (Council 
ref 120904) 
  
The proposal is in accordance with the Council's local policy objectives 
for the redevelopment of Eastbourne Town Centre. 
 

2.3 Members are advised that on 19 December 2013,  PRLP submitted a 
revised application for an extension to the Arndale Centre, this being 
the same location as that comprised in the May 2013 permission. The 
scheme does not differ significantly from the originally approved 
scheme, other than proposing the additional leisure element of a 9 
screen cinema and 7 restaurants. This application has not yet been 
determined by the Council's planning committee.  If approval of the 
revised scheme is forthcoming then this will form PRLP's preferred 
scheme and will be the underlying scheme on which the CPO is 
promoted.  
 

2.4 Since the Cabinet's decision on 6 February 2013, the Council has also 
adopted the Eastbourne Town Centre Local Plan (November 2013) 
(TCLP). The regeneration of the town centre remains a key objective 
within the TCLP, in particular the area of land to be subject of the CPO, 
which is identified within the TCLP as Development Opportunity Site 
One (Policy TC18). The TCLP anticipates the Council will consider using 
CPO powers to enable key proposals in the TCLP.   The scheme 
proposed in the planning application referred to above at 2.3 will be 
assessed against the TCLP. 
  

2.5 Over the past year, officers have negotiated the CPO Indemnity 
Agreement with PRLP.  The CPO Indemnity Agreement is now almost 

Page 141



 4 

in an agreed form and will be entered into shortly.  Officers are 
satisfied that the CPO Indemnity Agreement secures appropriate 
indemnities from the developer to cover all relevant costs incurred by 
the Council in making and proceeding with the CPO through to 
confirmation, together with all compensation claims arising from 
acquiring land and interests pursuant to the CPO (if confirmed). 
 

2.6 Officers understand that PRLP has sought to separately negotiate with 
some of the third party landowners in order to secure land required for 
the Arndale Centre extension, by agreement.  Whilst good progress 
has been made, there remain a number of interests which have not 
been secured by private treaty and officers are satisfied that a CPO is 
required to facilitate land assembly; in the context of the regenerative 
benefits this will have for the town, there is a compelling case in the 
public interest to use its CPO powers accordingly.  Albeit PRLP will be 
encouraged by the Council to continue to negotiate with third parties 
once the CPO process commences.  Under the CPO Indemnity 
Agreement, the Council may be required to take a transfer of the land 
required for the development, which would include land presently 
owned by PRLP.  The Land would need to be appropriated for planning 
purposes in order to utilise the Council's powers under S237 the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990.  This section enables private rights in 
land, which could act as a constraint on development, to be interfered 
with where development is carried out in accordance with a planning 
permission; in this instance this will principally include the interference 
with any rights of light interests (amongst others).  The main effect of 
this section is to reduce the remedy of a third party wishing to enforce 
its right by injunction to that of compensation, thereby allowing 
development to proceed.   
 

2.7 More recently, the land referencing exercise to identify all interests and 
rights to be acquired, has been commenced on behalf of the Council.  
Requisitions for Information will be served on all occupiers, owners and 
others known to have interests in land; this requires each individual 
served, to provide to the Council information regarding the respective 
land interests.  The Schedule of Interests which will form part of the 
CPO will then be finalised to ensure that all necessary interests and 
rights are properly identified. 
 

3.0 The Key Issues in considering the use of CPO Powers 
 

3.1 Risk Management 
The identified risk management issues are:- 
 
(a) The failure to follow procedural guidelines in the making 

and seeking confirmation of the CPO or the failure of the 
Secretary of State to confirm the CPO 
The Borough Council’s risks will be managed via the existing 
strategic risk management process. Procedural risk with regard 
to the confirmation of the CPO will be minimised by the use of 
external legal and commercial advisers and working in 
partnership with a similar team employed by PRLP; 

Page 142



 5 

(b) The Council's costs exposure to the costs of the CPO 
Process and compensation claims 
The Borough Council will not be exposed to costs by proceeding 
with the CPO as the CPO will not be made until PRLP has 
entered into the CPO Indemnity Agreement referred to in 
section 5 below under which the Borough Council will be 
indemnified for any costs it incurs.  The CPO Indemnity 
Agreement is also structured to ensure that the Council's liability 
for compensation payments is minimised until such time the 
Developer has put the Council in funds (including a contingency) 
to meet such liabilities. 

 

3.2 Key benefit 
The implementation of the scheme requires the acquisition of land, 
property interests and new rights. Negotiations for the acquisition of 
these interests by PRLP are ongoing and will continue. However, it is 
clear, that if implementation of the scheme is to be achieved within a 
realistic timescale then the powers available to the Borough Council to 
compulsorily acquire these interests must be ready to be used where 
necessary. 
 

4.0 Financial Implications 
 

4.1 As the costs associated with any necessary Compulsory Purchase 
Order will be met by PRLP via the CPO Indemnity Agreement.  The 
Council already has an undertaking from PRLP to meet the costs of 
land referencing and the CPO will not be made until the CPO Indemnity 
Agreement is in place.  Accordingly, there are no financial implications 
for the Council.  
 

5.0 Human Resource Implications 
 

5.1 With the help of external specialists, existing council staff across the 
relevant services can manage the process within existing resources.  
External legal advisors have already been appointed to advise and act 
on behalf of the Council in respect of the CPO process. Their costs are 
being fully met by the developer. 
 

6.0 Human Rights 
 

6.1 The Human Rights Act 1998 prohibits public authorities from acting in 
a way which is incompatible with the European Convention on Human 
Rights. The Borough Council is therefore required to consider whether 
its actions would infringe the human rights of anyone affected by the 
making of the CPO. While certain Convention rights may be relevant to 
the CPO (such as the “right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions”) 
interference with such rights by public authorities will be justified 
where the public interest outweighs the interest of the private 
individual. It is considered that any interference with the Convention 
rights caused by the CPO will be justified and proportionate in the 
wider public interest in order to secure the economic, social, physical 
and environmental regeneration of the town centre. 

Page 143



 6 

 
7.0 Equality and Fairness 

 
7.1 It has not been possible to carry out an equality analysis prior to this 

report being prepared because the outcomes of PRLP’s private 
negotiations are, as yet, unknown.  However as almost all the property 
is in commercial use, the developer’s intention is to seek relocations 
for their businesses, or reach a settlement that has been agreed 
between the parties, so that those affected are in no worse a position 
after the development is in place. Nevertheless, it is intended to 
analyse the effects of the decision to make a CPO against equality 
when the full scope of the community that is affected is known.  The 
outcomes of the analysis will be reported through the council’s agreed 
processes and referred to Cabinet should further decision-making be 
required. 
 

8.0 Conclusion 
 

8.1 The Cabinet has already made the decision to pursue a CPO and has 

granted all appropriate authorities to officers to enable officers  to 
proceed with making the CPO and to carry out necessary related steps 

once the CPO is confirmed.  Cabinet’s decision and delegations have 
been endorsed by full Council. The purpose of this report is to note for 

the avoidance of doubt that the authorisations previously granted also 
apply in the context of PRLP's new development proposals, if approved 

in their current or substantially similar form.  Additional authority is 
sought for the Council to use its powers of appropriation and pursuant 

to S237 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, to interfere with 
any third party interests, if required. 
 

8.2 The regeneration of Eastbourne town centre has been a long standing 
ambition of the Borough Council and the local community. The 
expansion of the town’s retail offer is supported both nationally and 
locally in formal planning policy statements. Developers have now 
submitted a revised planning application for a major expansion to the 
town centre and are actively negotiating to assemble the development 
site.  
 

 
Jefferson Collard 
Senior Head of Development 
 

 
Background Papers: 
 
Report to Cabinet - 6 February 2013 
Minutes of Cabinet Meeting of 6 February 2013 
 
Report to Full Council - 20 February 2013 
Minutes of Full Council - 20 February 2013 
 
Planning application 120904  - Original application with planning permission  

Page 144



 7 

Planning Committee report - 23 August 2012 in relation to application 120904 
S106 Agreement dated 30 May 2013 for planning application 120904 
Planning Permission dated 30 May 2013 - reference 120904 
 
Planning application 131071 – new application currently being processed 
 
To inspect or obtain copies of the background paper, please refer to the contact 
officer listed above. 
 

 
 

Page 145



Appendix 1 – Revised Plans Showing the Extent of the Potential CPO  
 

• App 1a - Ground Floor 
• App 1b - First Floor 

Page 146



P
age 147



P
age 148

T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 149



P
age 150

T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
BODY: CABINET 

 

DATE: 5th February 2014 
 

SUBJECT: Eastbourne Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) –Draft 
Charging Schedule 
 

REPORT OF: Senior Head of Development 
 

Ward(s): All 

 

Purpose: To seek authority from Cabinet Members to publish the CIL Draft 
Charging Schedule for a 6 week representation period before the 
document is then submitted for Public Examination. 

 

Decision type: Budget and Policy Framework 

 

Contact: Craig Steenhoff,  Specialist Advisor (Planning) , 1 Grove Road, 
Eastbourne 
Tel no: (01323) 415345 

E-mail: craig.steenhoff@eastbourne.gov.uk 

 

Recommendation: 1. That Cabinet approve the CIL Draft Charging Schedule for 
representations to be made over a 6 week period.   

 

2. To delegate authority to the Senior Head of Development in 
consultation with the Lead Cabinet Member to make minor 
amendments before the commencement of the 6 week 
representation period. 

 

3. To delegate to the Senior Head of Development in 
consultation with the Lead Cabinet Member and the Local 
Planning Steering Group to make any necessary 
adjustments to the CIL Charging Schedule following the 
completion of the consultation before submission to the 
government inspectorate for the public examination. 

 

 
1.0 Introduction 

 

1.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) allows local authorities in England and 

Wales (defined as Charging Authorities) to raise funds from developers undertaking 
new building projects. It effectively replaces much of the existing process of 

planning obligations commonly known as 'Section 106' agreements. The primary 
use of CIL is to gain financial contributions from certain types of viable 

development to help fund new or improved strategic infrastructure required to 
support the growth identified in a local authority’s Core Strategy. CIL places a 

charge per square metre on development. It will not be the sole funding source for 
all infrastructure delivered, but will supplement other public sector revenue 

streams. 

 

Agenda Item 13

Page 151



 2 

1.2 CIL has a number of significant advantages over the current system of Section 106 
agreements, including: 

 

• Payment is non-negotiable, which helps speed up the planning process; 

• The CIL charge is transparent and predictable, meaning that applicants will 
know their CIL liability prior to submitting planning application; 

• All liable developments will contribute to the cost of infrastructure provision, 
not just large scale development; 

• In the longer term the intention is that a proportion of CIL will be available to 
spend on local infrastructure priorities; 

• From April 20151, CIL will be the main mechanism for securing developer 
contributions for infrastructure to support growth. Section 106 planning 
agreements will be significantly scaled back after this date. However, they 
will still be used for site specific contributions such as affordable housing. 

 

1.3 The money raised from CIL will be used to pay for infrastructure to support 
development, ensuring that new development bears a proportion of the cost of 

delivering the new infrastructure required. CIL can be spent on any community 
infrastructure required to support growth, provided the infrastructure is on a 

Council published Regulation 123 list. The Council’s proposed Regulation 123 
(Appendix C) infrastructure list has been published alongside the Draft Charging 

Schedule (DCS).   

  

2.0 The Charging Schedule 
 

2.1 The Council has prepared a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft Charging 
Schedule (DCS) which will be published for representations to made by the local 
community and key stakeholders. The Charging Schedule has been revised 
following changes made to the proposed charges after consultation on the 
Preliminary Draft Schedule. A summary of the representations received and 
changes made are outlined in the Consultation and Cooperation Statement which is 
a background paper to this report. The revised charges are supported by further 
evidence on development viability. The DCS sets out the general explanation of 
CIL, the background to its preparation and the methodology used to determine the 
proposed CIL rates.    

 

2.2 The DCS is supported by an evidence base which includes a detailed and refreshed 
viability assessment. The viability assessment document examines the levels of CIL 
that can be achieved across the Borough without affecting the overall viability of 
development identified in the adopted Eastbourne Core Strategy and Town Centre 
Local Plans. Only developments that are shown to be viable will be charged CIL. 

 

2.3 The DCS is also supported by a revised and up-to-date Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
and accompanying Funding Gap and Section 106 Analysis document, to 
demonstrate that there is a funding deficit between the total cost of required 
infrastructure and the infrastructure already agreed for delivery and to be financed 
by the Council, external partners and agencies. The funding gap analysis justifies 
the position of the Council to move forward with a CIL charging regime. 

 

2.4 Proposed CIL rates have been tested based on the full affordable housing 
requirements, by market value area and the requirement for Level 3/4 of the Code 

                                                 
1 To be confirmed in revised CIL Legislation, to be published soon. 

Page 152



 3 

for Sustainable Homes. This is a key priority for the Council, conforming with the 
spatial development strategy as identified in the Core Strategy Local Plan, and 
ensuring that CIL rates are viable overall. A range of typical development types 
over all use classes have been tested within the viability assessment. The 
recommended CIL charges are reasonable and have not been set at or near to the 
maximum level assessed in the viability evidence. The Council considers that the 
proposed CIL rates will be resistant to market and policy changes, given that they 
have been set at an appropriate level that is viable within the current economic 
climate and are resilient to short term changes.  They will be reviewed as 
circumstances dictate.        

 

3.0 The proposed CIL charges 
 

3.1 The CIL legislation does not allow for a differentiation between brownfield and 

greenfield land viability. Only one rate can be set for both types. Brownfield 
development forms a significant proportion of the Council’s spatial development 

strategy and therefore acts as the primary guide to setting residential CIL rates. 
The revised charge takes account of further viability testing to fully consider site 

specific abnormal costs and the reduced viability of apartment development. The 
revised charge ensures that the overall CIL rate for residential development is fair 

and robust across the whole Borough. It is not considered that the variations in 
residential sub-markets across the Borough are significant enough to justify a 

differential zone approach and as such a single rate is proposed.      

 

3.2 Only residential and retail (A1-A5 Planning Use Class) developments have been 
assessed as viable for a CIL charge. Retail viability testing showed a wide range of 

proposed costs by type, but for ease and in line with planning regulations and 
recent case law it is proposed to have one standard charge for retail development 

across all of the A1-A5 retail Planning Use Classes. No other types of development 
will be liable for a CIL payment, and therefore will be zero rated.  

 

3.3 The proposed CIL charging rates are as follows: 

 

Type of Development 
(Planning Use Class) 

CIL rate/sq. m 
for net additional 
floorspace 

Residential (C3) * 50 

Retail (A1-A5) # 80 

All other uses 0 

* Where there is a net gain in dwellings 

# Where the development is 100 sq. m. or greater. 

 

Appendix B provides a map of the CIL charging area, which includes all areas of the 
local authority outside of the designated South Downs National Park. 

 

3.4 Phasing - The Council consider that if a planning application is large enough to be 
delivered through appropriate phases, then CIL payments should be linked to these 

phases to ensure that development remains viable overall. The Council will 
negotiate relevant phasing on major applications during the determination of the 

planning application. Set phases and their relevant land use descriptions will need 
to be confirmed in an accompanying Section 106 agreement and these phasing 

stages will be linked to CIL liability. Therefore, the CIL charge will be calculated at 
each phase of the development, and will be liable for payment on commencement 

Page 153



 4 

of each relevant phase. 

 
3.5 Exemptions - The Council is not proposing to introduce an exemptions policy or 

offer exceptional circumstances relief at this stage as the proposed charges are 

considered to be robust and will not affect the overall viability of liable schemes 
across the Borough. The Council can consider whether to offer or withdraw 

exceptional circumstances relief separate to the publication of the Charging 
Schedule so may chose to at a later date if appropriate.     

 
4.0 Resource Implications 

 
4.1 

 

 

 

The Council has an agreed budget for progressing CIL through to adoption, which 

includes support by planning consultants in the preparation of viability evidence and 
attendance at the Public Examination. The Council is also in the process of working 

with Civica to fully develop CIL planning software for the Council so that on 
adoption the Council can collect, administer and allocate CIL payments towards 

infrastructure projects.        

  

4.2 

 

 

 

 

 

4.3 

 

 

 

 

 

4.4 

 

 

 

Financial  

 

There are no direct financial implications to the Council of this report.  The cost of 
the publication and publicity for the DCS will be met from within the existing service 

budget.  

 

Legal  

 

The DCS has been prepared in accordance with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) and takes account of recent case caw related to the recent examination 
of CIL Charging Schedules.  

 

Staff Resources 

 

Officers will manage the publicity and consultation arrangements for the DCS.    

4.5 Equalities and Fairness Impact Assessment 

 

A streamline assessment has been made as the CIL DCS is a technical planning 

document. The assessment demonstrates that there are no impacts on equalities 
and fairness and there are no human rights issues. 

 

5.0 Representations Stage and Next Steps 
 

5.1 In line with CIL Regulations, the Council is required to publish the DCS and invite 

representations to be made for at least a 4 week period. The Council has 
recommended a 6 week period as this is a technical planning document that will be 

targeted to specific stakeholders and infrastructure providers. The representation 
period is timetabled for Friday 14 February – 28 March 2014. A representation 

response form has been prepared which asks key questions relating to soundness 
and procedural matters. Alternatively representations can be received by letter, 

email or on the Council’s new on-line consultation portal at 
www.planningpolicyconsult@eastbourne.gov.uk. 

  

Page 154



 5 

5.2 Once representations have been received, the Council can make a decision whether 

to: 
i) submit the Charging Schedule; or 

ii) propose modifications and invite representations for a further 4 week period. 

   

The results of the consultation will be discussed with the Local Plan Steering Group, 

chaired by the Cabinet portfolio holder, and agree, if necessary, any adjustments, 
including the need for any further consultation, to the Charging Schedule as a 

result of the consultation. The Charging Schedule is then submitted to an 
independent examiner and any representations received are forwarded for 

consideration at the Public Examination. It is anticipated that the Public 
Examination could take place as early as May/June 2014.  

 

5.3 The Council will continue to formalise its procedures for collecting, spending and 

monitoring CIL, so that it can be implemented by Summer 2014. The Council is 
continuing to work closely with Civica on the development of a CIL module which 

can be added to the current APP/W2 system that is used to process planning 
applications. 

 

5.4 The Charging Schedule will be presented to Planning Committee on 4 February and 

comments will be reported verbally to Cabinet.  

 

6.0 Conclusion 
 

6.1 The DCS has been prepared based on a comprehensive assessment of development 
viability across the Borough. The proposed rates are justified by evidence and 

ensure that they do not compromise the ability for the Council to deliver its spatial 
development strategy. 

6.2 Cabinet are requested to endorse the CIL Draft Charging Schedule and give 
authority to publish the document for representations to be made over a 6 week 

period. Delegated authority is also requested for the Senior Head of Development in 
consultation with the Lead Cabinet Member to make minor amendments to the 

document before commencement of the 6 week representation period. 

  

Craig Steenhoff 

Specialist Advisor (Planning) 

Page 155



 6 

 
Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010) [as amended] 
 
National Planning Policy Framework CLG (2012) 
 
Accompanying Reports/Documents: 
 
Eastbourne Community Infrastructure Draft Charging Schedule (February 2014) 
 
Eastbourne Infrastructure Delivery Plan (Revised, February 2014) 
 
Eastbourne Infrastructure Funding Gap Analysis (Revised, February 2014) 
 
Eastbourne Draft Regulation 123 Infrastructure List (Revised, February 2014) 
 
Eastbourne CIL Viability Assessment (October 2013) 
 
Eastbourne CIL Consultation and Cooperation Statement (February 2014) 
 
 
To inspect or obtain copies of background papers please refer to the contact officer listed 
above. 

 
APPENDIX A 
 
Eastbourne Community Infrastructure Levy – Draft Charging  
Schedule (February 2014) 
 
Attached separately. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 156



 7 

 
APPENDIX B 
 
CIL Charging Area  
 
The CIL Charging Area will be all areas within the local authority boundary excluding the 
South Downs National Park, as identified below 

   
 

Page 157



 8 

APPENDIX C 
 
Regulation 123 Infrastructure List 

Page 158



 
 
 

Eastbourne Local Development Document 

 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 

Draft Charging Schedule 

 

Representation Period: 

Friday 14 February to 28 March 2014  

 

 
Specialist Advisory Team 

Customer First 

Eastbourne Borough Council 

1 Grove Road 

Eastbourne 

East Sussex 

BN21 4TW 

 

 

Tel no: (01323) 410000 

Fax:  (01323) 641842 

Text Relay: 18001 01323 410000 

 

E-Mail: planning.policy@eastbourne.gov.uk 

 

 

 

Price: £20  

 

 

Available to view and download for free at: 

www.eastbourne.gov.uk/cil 

 

 

 
 

Page 159



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 1 

 
 

 
Contents 

 
 
1. Introduction 
 
2. An Explanation of CIL 
 Development that is Liable for CIL 
 Exemptions and Relief from CIL 
 When is CIL payable? 
 Calculating the Chargeable Amount 
 
3. Evidence Base 
 
4. Proposed CIL Charging Rates and Phasing Arrangements 
 Policy CCS1: Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Rates 
 Policy CCS2: Phasing of CIL Payments 
 
5. Other Matters 
 
6. How to makes representations on the Draft Charging Schedule 
 
7. Next Steps 
 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A Calculating the Chargeable Amount 
Appendix B Consultation Response Form 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 160



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 2 

 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 Eastbourne Borough Council (The Council) has prepared a Community 

Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Draft Charging Schedule for representations to be made 
between Friday 14 February and 28 March 2014. This version of the Charging 
Schedule will be submitted for independent Public Examination and will be 
examined alongside any representations received.  
 

1.2 Changes have been made to the Charging Schedule to take account of 
representations made during the previous consultation stage1 and the resulting 
need for additional viability evidence and testing. In summary this has resulted in 
revised charges which are robust, based upon detailed viability evidence. These 
charges will not compromise the Council’s ability to deliver its spatial development 
strategy. 
 

1.3 This document sets out the general explanation of CIL, the background to its 
preparation and the methodology used to determine the proposed CIL rates.    
 

1.4 The Charging Schedule is supported by an evidence base which includes a detailed 
viability assessment. The viability assessment document examines the levels of CIL 
that can be achieved across the Borough without affecting the overall viability of 
development identified in the Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan. Only 
developments that are shown to be viable will be charged CIL. 
 

1.5 The Charging Schedule is also supported by a revised Infrastructure Delivery Plan 
and accompanying Funding Gap and Section 106 Analysis document, to 
demonstrate that there is a funding deficit between the total cost of required 
infrastructure and the infrastructure delivered or financed by the Council or external 
partners and agencies. This analysis justifies the position of the Council to move 
forward with a CIL charging regime. 
 

1.6 This document has been prepared in accordance with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as 
amended) and statutory guidance. These background documents are also available 
as part of this consultation and the following link is provided to the Communities 
and Local Governments Website: 

     https://www.gov.uk/government/policies/giving-communities-more-power-in-
planning-local-development/supporting-pages/community-infrastructure-levy 

 
1.7 This document has been shaped internally with continued engagement with 

infrastructure providers, stakeholders and Members, and was presented at the 
Council’s Cabinet on 5 February to seek authority to submit the Charging Schedule 
for representations to be made. 
 

1.8 Part of the South Downs National Park (SDNP) is located within the western part of 
the Borough. As the SDNP Authority manages growth and development within the 
SDNP, it will introduce its own CIL in due course to cover development within its 
area. Areas within Eastbourne Borough, that are designated within the SDNP 
boundary will therefore not be included in this Charging Schedule. 

 
 
 

                                                 
1  The CIL Preliminary Draft Charging schedule underwent public consultation from 19 July – 30 August 2013 

and a summary of representations can be found in the accompanying CIL Consultation and Cooperation 

Statement. 

Page 161



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 3 

 
 

2. An Explanation of CIL 
 
2.1 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) allows local authorities in England and 

Wales (defined as Charging Authorities) to raise funds from developers undertaking 
new building projects. It effectively replaces much of the existing process of 
planning obligations commonly known as 'Section 106' agreements. The primary 
use of CIL is to gain financial contributions from certain types of viable 
development to help fund new or improved strategic infrastructure required to 
support the growth identified in a local authority’s Core Strategy. For example 
strategic and local transport infrastructure would include the provision of cycle 
lanes. CIL places a charge per square metre on development. It will not be the sole 
funding source for all infrastructure delivered, but will supplement public sector 
revenue streams.  

 
2.2 CIL has a number of significant advantages over the current system of Section 106 

agreements, including: 
 

• Payment is non-negotiable, which helps speed up the planning process; 
• The CIL charge is transparent and predictable, meaning that applicants will 

know their CIL liability prior to submitting a planning application; 
• All liable developments will contribute to the cost of infrastructure provision, 

not just large scale development; 
• A proportion of CIL will be made available to allow local priorities to be 

delivered; 
• From April 20152, CIL will be the main mechanism for securing developer 

contributions for infrastructure to support growth. Section 106 planning 
agreements will be significantly scaled back after this date. 

 
2.3 The money raised from CIL will be used to pay for infrastructure to support 

development, ensuring that new development bears a proportion of the cost of 
delivering the new infrastructure required. CIL can be spent on any community 
infrastructure required to support growth, provided the infrastructure is on the 
Council’s published Regulation 123 list. The draft proposed Regulation 123 list is 
submitted alongside the Charging Schedule.    

 
Development that is Liable for CIL  

 
2.4 CIL legislation states that all new residential units, and the erection of or extensions 

to other buildings (over 100 sq. m. net additional gross internal floorspace in size) 
are liable to pay CIL. All net additional dwellings (self contained houses or flats) are 
liable regardless of their size. The floorspace of any buildings that are demolished 
as part of development proposals will be off-set against the new overall floorspace 
liability. In some instances CIL will apply to the floorspace allowed under permitted 
development as well as development for which a planning application is required. 

 
2.5 CIL is not charged on changes of use or internal alterations where there is no net 

gain in floorspace, provided that the building has been in continuous use for at least 
6 months of the 12 months preceding planning permission being granted.  
Development proposals that already have a planning permission when the CIL 
charging schedule comes into force are not liable for CIL. This includes any 
subsequent Reserved Matters applications following outline planning permission. 
However, if development proposals with planning permission are not commenced 
within a conditioned time limit, any subsequent renewal or amendment applications 

                                                 
2 To be confirmed in revised CIL Legislation, to be published soon. 

Page 162



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 4 

 
 

will be liable to CIL if by that time a CIL Charging Schedule has been adopted by 
the Council. 

 
 Exemptions and Relief from CIL 
 
2.6 The CIL Regulations set out the exemptions for paying CIL and stipulates that the 

following types of development will not be liable for CIL: 
 

• Development of less than 100 sq. m. net additional gross internal floorspace, 
unless it results in the creation of net additional dwelling(s); 

• Full relief is applied on all those parts of chargeable development that are to 
be used as social/affordable housing; 

• A registered charity landowner will receive full relief from their portion of the 
liability where the chargeable development will be used wholly or mainly for 
charitable purposes; 

• The conversion of or works to a building in lawful use that affects only the 
interior of the building; 

• Development of buildings and structures into which people do not normally 
go into or enter under limited circumstances (for example an electricity sub-
station or wind turbine); 

• Development granted planning permission before the date that CIL is 
formally adopted and built out before the expiry of the planning consent; 

• When the resulting CIL is calculated as £50 or less, then a CIL payment will 
not be charged by the Council.  

 
2.7 The Council has chosen to not apply an exceptional circumstances policy as it is felt 

that the viability charges are fair and reasonable based upon the viability of all 
proposed schemes across the Borough.  

 
2.8 Any development which the Council has identified as ‘zero rated’ within its CIL 

charging rates, at this moment in time is considered to be financially unviable. This 
takes account of evidence prepared at this moment in time, and will be subject to 
review in future years. Any changes to CIL rates by development type will be 
subject to a full review and publication/examination of a fully revised CIL Charging 
Schedule. 

 
 When is CIL Payable? 
 
2.9 Detailed guidance on the process of paying CIL will be issued by the Council in due 

course as the CIL charging schedule nears adoption. For the purposes of this 
document a general and brief outline is provided as follows. 

 
2.10 Payment of CIL is due from the date of commencement of the liable development. 

The default position is that the whole amount must be paid within 60 days of 
commencement, unless the development falls under the criteria for the Council’s 
phasing policy (Policy CCS2), under which payment can be made in installments.   

 
2.11 CIL operates on the exchange of formal notices: 
 

• The person(s) who pay CIL provide the Council with an Assumption of 
Liability Notice, required with the planning application; 

• A Liability Notice is issued by the Council along with the planning 
permission decision, stating how much CIL is payable. The responsibility to 
pay the levy lies with the local landowner and is a local land charge; 

Page 163



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 5 

 
 

• Before the development starts the developer provides the Council with a 
Commencement Notice, giving the start date;  

• The Council will then issue a Demand Notice (the bill) to ensure that 
payment is received within 60 days of commencement. 

 
Calculating the Chargeable Amount 

 
2.12 In order to calculate CIL payments due it is necessary for the following details to be 

supplied with the planning application: 
 

• The gross internal area of all buildings and their uses on the site prior to 
development (if any); 

• The gross internal area of buildings to be demolished and their uses (if any); 
and 

• The proposed gross internal area of all buildings and their uses on the site 
once the development has been completed. 

 
2.13 The Council will calculate the amount of CIL payable (‘the chargeable amount’) in 

respect of a chargeable development in accordance with the requirements and 
formulas in Regulation 40 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended). The amount 
of CIL chargeable at a given rate must be calculated by applying the prescribed 
formula as defined in the CIL Regulations and shown in Appendix A of this Charging 
Schedule.  

 
2.14 The total chargeable amount for a development scheme is equal to the sum of the 

amounts of CIL chargeable for each use (at each relevant rate) for the development 
permitted. For example if the development scheme includes both residential and 
retail elements, the chargeable amount will be calculated taking the sum of the 
relevant charges for each of these uses. 

 
2.15 The relevant rates are the rates at which CIL is chargeable (Table 1, Section 4), 

which are in effect (a) at the time planning permission first permits the chargeable 
development; and (b) in the area in which the chargeable development will be 
situated.     

 
 
3. Evidence Base 
 
3.1  CIL Regulation 14 requires that when setting CIL rates charging authorities must 

aim to strike an appropriate balance between: 
 

• The desirability of funding infrastructure (in whole or in part) from CIL; and 
• The potential effects (taken as a whole) of the imposition of CIL on the 

economic viability of development across the charging authority’s area. 
 
 This balance is a central consideration of the CIL rate setting process. 
 
3.2 The Charging Schedule is informed by the best available evidence base which 

includes Borough level viability assessments and an up-to-date Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan.  These pieces of evidence assess the infrastructure requirements and 
potential levels of CIL that can be achieved across the district by type of 
development. Only development types that are shown to be generally viable will be 
charged CIL.  In addition, evidence has been prepared to show that there will be a 
funding gap between identified public resources for infrastructure and the level of 
infrastructure that will need to be delivered in support of the growth being 

Page 164



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 6 

 
 

identified in the adopted [February 2013] Eastbourne Core Strategy Local Plan 
(‘The Core Strategy’). This evidence documentation is available for consideration in 
support of the Charging Schedule. 

 
3.3 The Core Strategy and Proposed Draft Employment Land Local Plan3 identify that a 

total of 5,022 net dwellings and 43,000 sq. m. of employment land will be delivered 
within the plan period 2006-2027. Viability evidence in support of CIL has looked in 
detail at the location of new development (both neighbourhood location and type of 
land e.g. brownfield/greenfield), the affordable housing requirements for residential 
schemes, and the typical sizes of and mixes of development coming forward to 
assess overall viability. It is considered that although there is a noticeable disparity 
between viability on brownfield and greenfield sites, current or emerging CIL 
legislation does not allow for, nor does it support this differentiation. Brownfield 
development forms a significant proportion of the Council’s spatial development 
strategy and therefore acts as the primary guide to setting residential CIL rates. 
The revised charge takes account of further viability testing to fully consider site 
specific abnormal costs and the reduced viability of apartment development. The 
revised charge ensures that the overall CIL rate for residential development is fair 
and robust across the whole Borough. It is not considered that the variations in 
residential sub-markets across the Borough are significant enough to justify a 
differential zone approach and as such a single rate is proposed.    

 

3.4 Only residential and retail (A1-A5 Planning Use Class) developments have been 
assessed as viable for a CIL charge. Retail viability testing showed a wide range of 

proposed costs by type, but for ease and in line with planning regulations and 
recent case law it is proposed to have one standard charge for retail development 

across the A1-A5 retail Planning Use Classes. No other types of development will be 
liable for a CIL payment, and therefore will be zero rated.  

 
3.5 It is important to confirm that the proposed CIL rates have been tested based on 

the full affordable housing requirement being delivered on each development 
scheme, which is 30% in low value market areas and 40% in high value market 
areas. Testing was also set at Level 3 and 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. 
This is important to ensure that CIL rates do not affect the ability to deliver 
affordable housing and sustainable development. This is a key priority for the 
Council in conformity with the spatial development strategy identified in the Core 
Strategy, and ensures that CIL rates are viable overall.   

 
3.6 It is also important that when CIL charges are recommended, that they are not set 

at or near to the maximum level assessed in the viability evidence. The Council 
consider that the proposed CIL rates (Table 1, Section 4) will be resistant to market 
and policy changes, given that they have been set at an appropriate amount that is 
viable within the current economic climate.       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
3 Public consultation is currently taking place on the Employment Land Local Plan. 

Page 165



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 7 

 
 

4. Proposed CIL Charging Rates and Phasing Arrangements 
 
4.1 The proposed CIL rates for Eastbourne are set out in Policy CCS1 ‘CIL Charging 

Rates’ below, with Table 1 setting the rates by development type and Figure 1 
identifying the zones to which the residential CIL charges apply.   

 

 

POLICY CCS1: 
Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Rates 

 
The Council has set CIL charges for residential (C3 Use Class) and retail (A1-A5 
Planning Use Classes) per square metre of net additional (gross internal 
floorspace) development as identified in Table 1, for those areas defined in 
Figure 1. These charges will apply to all liable developments as identified in the 
CIL Charging Schedule planning document.  
 

 

 

 Table 1: Proposed Charging Rates for Eastbourne Borough Council CIL  
 

Type of Development 
(Planning Use Class) 

CIL rate/sq. m 
for net additional 

floorspace 

Residential (C3) * 50 
Retail (A1-A5) # 80 
All other uses 0 

* Where there is a net gain in dwellings 

# Where the development is 100 sq. m. or greater. 

 
Figure 1: CIL Charging Area 

The CIL Charging Area will be all areas within the local authority boundary 
excluding the South Downs National Park, as identified below. 

   

Page 166



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 8 

 
 

  
 Phasing 
 
4.2 The Council consider that if a planning application is large enough to be delivered 

through appropriate phases, then CIL payments should be linked to these phases to 
ensure that development remains viable overall. The Council will negotiate relevant 
phasing on major applications during the determination of the planning application. 
Set phases and their relevant land use descriptions will need be confirmed in an 
accompanying Section 106 agreement and these phasing stages will be linked to 
CIL liability. Therefore, the CIL charge will be calculated at each phase of the 
development, and will be liable for payment on commencement of each relevant 
phase. This is confirmed in Policy CCS2 below. 

 
 

POLICY CCS2: 
Phasing of CIL Payments 

 
For major planning applications where the development scheme is phased as 
detailed in an accompanying Section 106 agreement, then CIL liability will be 
calculated for each separate phase. The phasing arrangements including 
quantum of development (net additional gross internal floorspace) delivered by 
each development type (Planning Use Class) should be clearly distinguished at 
each phase. CIL payment will be liable on commencement of each relevant 
phase.    
 

 
 
5. Other Matters 
          
5.1 The Council has prepared a Draft Regulation 123 Infrastructure List which is 

provided as an accompanying background document. This provides a list of the 
infrastructure types that the Council currently considers it is likely to apply CIL 
revenues towards. It is important to note that this list is subject to future review 
and may change before the adoption and implementation of CIL by the Council in 
Summer 2014.       

 
5.2 The Council has provided evidence on global infrastructure costs in its 

Infrastructure Delivery Plan as well as in its Funding Gap analysis for the provision 
of cross-boundary infrastructure, such as transport provision. The Council will 
continue to work closely with East Sussex County Council and Wealden District 
Council on the governance arrangements in order to implement CIL and ensure that 
CIL monies are collected in both Eastbourne and South Wealden towards the 
delivery of strategic transport infrastructure in the Eastbourne and South Wealden 
area.    

 
5.3 There will be circumstances where infrastructure identified will also be critical to 

development to our neighbouring authorities and funding streams may be available 
from these sources, including potential CIL contributions raised by neighbouring 
authorities, especially transport and education provision with Wealden District 
Council. There will also be circumstances where CIL contributions collected will be 
required to be spent outside the Borough including transport provision in Wealden. 

 
5.4 The Council will monitor the effectiveness of CIL through the Local Monitoring 

Report (normally published each year in December). This will take account of the 
economic climate and any change to the economic viability within the local area. 

Page 167



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 9 

 
 

The review of CIL charges will need to be implemented through a full review of the 
CIL Charging schedule and supporting viability evidence. A full review will be 
undertaken when necessary in future years.    

 
6. How to make a representation on the Draft Charging Schedule 
 
6.1 Eastbourne Borough Council is seeking representations from key stakeholders, 

infrastructure providers and any other interest parties or individuals on the Draft 
Charging Schedule. The representation period runs for 6 weeks from Friday 14 
February and comments/representations will be accepted up to 5pm on Friday 28 
March 2014. 

 
6.2 Representations are invited by our on-line consultation portal, email or post. Please 

use the prescribed representation response form that has been produced in 
Appendix B, or send specific comments through to:  

    
On-line consultation Portal:  www.planningpolicyconsult@eastbourne.gov.uk 

  
E-mail:  craig.steenhoff@eastbourne.gov.uk 

 
 Post: 
 CIL Consultation 

Craig Steenhoff 
Specialist Advisory Team 

 Customer First 
 Eastbourne Borough Council  
 1 Grove Road 
 Eastbourne 
 BN21 4TW 
 
6.3 Supporting documentation is available to view at www.eastbourne.gov.uk/cil or in 

hard copy by visiting the Customer Contact Centre at 1 Grove Road, Eastbourne, 
BN21 4TW. A summary of the supporting documentation is as follows: 

 
• CIL Consultation and Cooperation Statement (February 2014); 
• CIL Regulation 123 Infrastructure List (February 2014); 
• Infrastructure Delivery Plan (February 2014); 
• Infrastructure Funding Gap Analysis (February 2014); 
• CIL Viability Assessment (October 2013). 

 
6.4 Please note that representations made on this consultation cannot be treated in 

confidence. Copies of all representations received may be available to the public for 
inspection. The Council may also provide details or a summary of representations 
on its website. However, we will not publish personal information such as telephone 
numbers, email or private addresses. By submitting a representation on the Draft 
Charging Schedule you confirm that you agree to this and accept responsibility for 
your comments. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 168



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 10 

 
 

7. Next Steps 
 
7.2 Representations received on the Draft Charging Schedule will be submitted along 

with the document to the appointed examiner. Anyone submitting comments on the 
Draft Charging Schedule will have the right to be heard at the Examination.  

 
7.3 Following the Examination, the examiner will publish their report and 

recommendations. If the examiner approves the Charging Schedule the Council will 
then be able to adopt it, setting a date for CIL to commence. It is currently 
anticipated that the Charging Schedule will be brought into effect during the 
Summer of 2014.   

 
7.4 The Council will continue to formalise its procedures for collecting, spending and 

monitoring CIL, so that it can be implemented by Sumer 2014. Further information 
on this protocol will be provided on the Council’s website at: 
www.eastbourne.gov.uk/cil 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 169



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 11 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
Calculating the Chargeable Amount 
 

i) CIL charges will be calculated in accordance with CIL Regulation 40 (as 

amended).  The chargeable amount will be an amount equal to the 

aggregate of the amounts of CIL chargeable at each of the relevant rates as 

set out in the charging schedule. 

ii) The chargeable amount will be index linked using the Royal Institution of 

Chartered Surveyors’ All-in Tender Price Index figures for the year in which 

the planning permission was granted and the year in which the charging 

schedule took effect. 

iii) The amount of CIL chargeable at a given relevant rate (R) must be 

calculated by applying the following formula: 

 

 R x A x IP 

       IC 

  

Where: 

 A = the deemed net area chargeable at rate R; 

 IP = the index figure for the year in which planning permission was 
 granted; and 

 IC = the index figure for the year in which the charging schedule  containing 
rate R took effect. 

 

The value of A must be calculated by applying the following formula: 

 

 
 

Where: 
 G = the gross internal area of the chargeable development; 

GR = the gross internal area of the part of the development chargeable at 

rate R; 

E = an amount equal to the aggregate of the gross internal areas of all 

buildings which –  

a) on the day planning permission first permits the chargeable development, 

are situated on the relevant land and in lawful use; and 

b) are to be demolished before completion of the chargeable development; 

and 

KR = an amount equal to the aggregate of the gross internal area of all 

buildings (excluding any new build) on completion of the chargeable 

development which- 

a) on the day planning permission first permits the chargeable 

development, are situated on the relevant land and in lawful use;  

b) will be part of the chargeable development upon completion; and  

c) will be chargeable at rate R. 
 
 
 
 

Page 170



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 12 

 
 

Our Reference 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 
CIL Draft Charging Schedule  
Consultation Response Form 
 

Eastbourne Community Infrastructure Levy 

Draft Charging Schedule – February 2014 
 

All documentation is available to view and download for free via the Council’s website 

(www.eastbourne.gov.uk/cil). The consultation starts on Friday 14 February 2014 and any 

representations should be received by 5pm on Friday 28 March 2014.  

 

REPRESENTATION FORM 

 
Once you have completed this form, please return by post to: 

CIL Consultation     Or email to: 

Craig Steenhoff     planning.policy@eastbourne.gov.uk 

Specialist Advisory Team 

Customer First 

Eastbourne Borough Council 

1 Grove Road 

Eastbourne 

BN21 4TW 

  

Please note that you can make representations online swiftly and easily at: 

http://planningpolicyconsult@eastbourne.gov.uk 

 

YOUR DETAILS 

 

Title Mr / Mrs / Miss / Ms / Dr First Name(s)  

Surname  
 

Company/ 

Organisation 
 

Position held 
 

 
If you are responding on behalf of a 

client or landowner please provide 

their details 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Address 

 

 
Post Code  

 

Phone Number  Fax Number  

E-Mail Address  

Page 171



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 13 

 
 

YOUR REPRESENTATION 

 
Matters on which representations can be made 
 

The purpose of the Public Examination of the Draft Community Infrastructure Levy Charging 
Schedule is to consider whether it meets the following statutory tests in accordance with 
sections 212(1) and 221 of the Planning Act 2008 as amended, in that the Charging Authority 

has: 
 

(a) complied with the requirements of the Planning Act 2008 as amended and the CIL 

Regulations; 
(b) used appropriate available evidence to inform the Draft Charging Schedule; 
(c) had regard to the statutory guidance, “Charge Setting and Charging Schedule 

Procedure Guidance” March 2010. 
 
Representations must relate to these matters. Other matters maybe outside the scope of the 

examination and will be subject to the examiners judgement as to their relevance. All 
representations will be considered by the examiner as written representations. Any person or 
organisation making representations has the right to be heard in person at the examination 

should they choose to appear. The examination will take the form of a hearing under the 
direction of the examiner.    
  

1. Please indicate whether you wish to be present at the Hearing? 
 

Yes   
No    Please treat this representation as a written representation at the Examination 

 

2. Do you wish to make representations regarding matters of technical compliance 
with the Planning Act or CIL Regulations? 

 
Yes   

No   
 
Please provide details: 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 172



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 14 

 
 

 
3. Do you wish to make a representation based on the regard made to statutory 

guidance “Charge Setting and Charging Schedule Procedure Guidance” March 

2010. 
 
Yes   

No   
 
Please provide details: 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

4. Do you wish to make representations based on the evidence used to inform the 
Draft Charging Schedule? 

 

Yes   
No   
 

Please provide details: 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

5. Are there any other representations you would like to make on the Draft CIL 
Charging Schedule? (please reference section/paragraph number and add further details on 

separate sheets) 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 173



 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule [February 2014] Page 15 

 
 

NEXT STEPS 

 
Following receipt of any representations the Council will consider them and whether any 
modifications to the Draft Charging Schedule are required. Were modifications to be made, the 

Council would produce a Statement of Modifications and provide opportunity for comment 
upon them at least 4 weeks before any Examination. Those making representations have the 
right to be heard at the Examination. After Examination, subject to any modifications required, 

the Council could move forward to final adoption of the Charging Schedule   
   

 

6. Do you wish to be notified of further stages in the production of the CIL Charging 
Schedule, namely: 

 
a) the Submission of the Draft Charging Schedule to an examiner for 

Examination? 

 
Yes       No   

 

b) Publication of the recommendations of the examiner and the reason behind 
those recommendations? 

 

          Yes       No   
 

c) Approval of the Charging Schedule by the Charging authority (Eastbourne 

Borough Council) 
 

Yes       No   

 
 

 

Page 174



 
 

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 

DRAFT REGULATION 123 INFRASTRUCTURE LIST 

 

Regulation 123 of the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as amended) 

restricts the use of planning obligations for infrastructure that will be funded in 

whole or part by the Community Infrastructure Levy.  The following table 

compromises Eastbourne Borough Council’s Draft Regulation 123 List. It includes 

the infrastructure types that the Council currently considers it is likely to apply 

CIL revenues to, and such will not be secured through planning obligations. This 

is to ensure that there is no duplication between CIL and planning obligations 

secured through S106 agreements, in funding the same infrastructure projects.     

 

 
Infrastructure currently considered to benefit from the application of 
CIL funding 
 

• Strategic and Local Transport Infrastructure and facilities, excluding 
specific improvements needed to make the development acceptable in 
planning terms. These exclusions can include (but are not limited to): 

� Highways crossovers to access the site and local junctions; 
� Deceleration and turning lanes; 
� Measures to facilitate pedestrian, public transport and cyclist 

improvement and access; 
� Lighting and street furniture needed to mitigate impact of 

development; 
� Mitigation works remote from the development where the need 

for such works is identified in a Transport Assessment.  
• Education Provision; 
• Library Facilities; 
• Children’s Play Space, Open Space and Sports Playing Fields; 
• Flood Storage Infrastructure Provision and Surface Water Management 

Infrastructure. 
 

 

It is important to note that this list is subject to future review and may change 

before the adoption and implementation of CIL by the Council later in 2014. A 

final version of the Regulation 123 List will be published alongside the adopted 

CIL Charging Schedule. 

February 2014 

Page 175



Page 176

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5 

 

Body: Cabinet 
 

Date: 5 February 2014 
 

Subject: Impacts of Welfare Reform and the Council’s response. 
 

Report Of: Ian Fitzpatrick, Senior Head of Community 
 

Ward(s) All 
 

Purpose To update Cabinet on the impacts of Welfare Reform 
 

  
Recommendation: That Cabinet endorses the measures taken to support residents 

affected by Welfare Reform. 
 

Contact: Bill McCafferty, Revenues & Benefits Manager, Telephone 
(01323) 415171 or internally on extension 5171 
E-mail address bill.mccafferty@eastbourne.gov.uk  

  

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 The coalition government have introduced a series of reforms to the Welfare 

System since coming into power in. Amongst the reforms are: 
 

Date Change Numbers 

affected 

(where 

available EBC 

in brackets) 

Average weekly 

loss 

(where available 

EBC in brackets) 

Jan 2012 Under 35s only eligible for shared 

room rate of housing benefit 

 

62,500 (63) £41 (£33) 

Apr 2012 Couples with children need to work 

24 hours with at least one working 

16 to qualify for working tax credits 

 

212,000 

families 

Up to £75 

May 2012 One year time limit on contributory 

ESA 

 

700,000 by 

2015/16 

£36 

Apr 2013 Under-occupancy penalty (‘bedroom 

tax’) 

 

660,000 (407) £14 (£15.55) 

Apr 2013 Local Housing Allowance uprated by 

CPI rather than rents 

 

There were 

1.39 million 

LHA 

claimants in 

April 2013 

Notional loss 

Apr 2013 Council Tax Benefit replaced with 

local Council Tax Support schemes 

 

 

2.4 million 

(470) 

£2.65 (£4.60) 

Apr 2013 Disability Living Allowance replaced 

by Personal Independence Payment 

450,000 lose 

existing 

 

Agenda Item 14

Page 177



Page 2 of 5 

 entitlement 

by 2018, 

607,000 fewer 

than if 

DLA had 

remained 

Apr 2013 Benefits increased by 1% rather 

than CPI inflation 

 

9.6 million £3 

Apr 2013 Overall benefit cap (£350 for 

singles, £500 for others) 

 

40,000 (53) 

households 

£93 (£36) 

 
1.2 These are the biggest changes to the Welfare State since its inception and 

represent major challenges not only to those who rely on support but also on 
those services, including the Council, which support some of our most 
vulnerable residents. 
 

1.3 This report sets out some of the impacts that the raft of changes has brought 
about and updates Members on the efforts of the Council to support those 
affected. 
 

2.0 Universal Credit 
 

2.1 Universal Credit (UC) is the flagship welfare policy of the coalition 
government. Its aim is to simplify the benefits system, by bringing together 
several state benefits, including Housing Benefit, and to always make work 
pay.  
 

2.2 The introduction of UC has been beset by problems, mainly due to the 
complexity of the IT system required to administer it. The initial aim to have 
all new claims for the affected benefits to move to UC in October 2013 has 
not been met. There are currently several pilots taking place that will deal 
with the simplest type of claim i.e. single people with no dependants, no 
disabilities and no housing costs. 
 

2.3 Significant features of UC are that claimants will receive a single monthly 
payment, rather than the current system of several individual payments of 
different benefits, for example Jobseeker’s Allowance and housing benefit, at 
different times. UC, including the housing costs element (the equivalent of 
HB), will be paid directly to the claimant - at present HB is paid directly to 
the landlord for most claims in the social rented sector. 
 

2.4 The latest timetable would see UC being in place for all new claims during 
2016, with existing claims migrated to UC by the end of 2017. 
 

3.0 Spare Room Subsidy 
 

3.1 The spare room subsidy, or the ‘bedroom tax’ as it is also known, aims to 
limit the amount of housing benefit for working-age claimants who occupy 
social sector housing to the number of bedrooms the household needs. A 
similar, but not identical system, Local Housing Allowance, has been in place 
in the private rented sector for several years. 
 

3.2 Under the spare room subsidy rules, if a household have one bedroom more 
than needed their housing benefit is reduced by 14%, and by 25% if they 

Page 178



Page 3 of 5 

have more than one bedroom too many. 
 

3.3 An aim of the policy is to reduce the number of people waiting for social 
housing by freeing up properties that are under-occupied. However, a 
shortage of one and two bedroom properties means that many people 
affected by this, who may want to downsize, find that there are no smaller 
properties available.  
 

3.4 In Eastbourne 407 people have seen a reduction of, on average, £15.55 per 
week, making an annual loss of £329.1k. 
 

4.0 The Benefit Cap 
 

4.1 The Benefit Cap limits the amount of benefit that single people can get to 
£350 per week and for others to £500 per week. Certain people are exempt, 
for example those in receipt of Attendance Allowance and some benefits are 
not included in the limits.   
 

4.2 53 households are affected with losses ranging from £2.30 per week to 
£207.19 per week. 
 

5.0 Local Support for Council Tax 
 

5.1 Council Tax Benefit was replaced by local schemes of support from April 
2013. This change was accompanied by a 10% cut in funding which, for 
Eastbourne, amounted to c£1m.  
 

5.2 The Council in collaboration with the County, Police, Fire, other Districts and 
Borough implemented a scheme which had as its aims to protect the most 
vulnerable, incentivise people back into work and to meet the funding gap. 
 

5.3 After taking advantage of a transitional grant and flexibilities offered around 
certain Council Tax discounts and exemption, the scheme that the Council 
adopted affected only 470 people, who were already paying some Council 
Tax, with an average loss of only £4.60 per week. Many councils put in place 
schemes that required everyone to pay something, normally around 15% to 
20% of their liability. 
 

5.4 
 

The Council has decided to retain this scheme for 2014/15. 
 

6.0 Local Welfare Support 
 

6.1 From April 2013 local authorities assumed responsibility for some elements 
of what was the Social Fund. East Sussex County Council now has 
responsibility for administering the Crisis Loans and Community Care Grants 
elements. This is now known as Local Welfare Support and the County’s 
scheme has been named the Discretionary East Sussex Support Scheme. 
 

6.2 
 

As at the end of September, County has made the following awards to 
Eastbourne residents: 
 

• 112 awards for food and utilities (30% of awards countywide) 
• 276 awards for other item (26% of awards countywide) 

Page 179



Page 4 of 5 

 
6.3 
 

In addition, the Council has been given £70,000 to help with rent in advance 
and rent deposits and has been given authority to make awards for other 
items, within a budget of £10,000, without having to get permission from 
County.   
 

6.4 
 

Eastbourne Foodbank was awarded £5,000 towards the costs of an advocate 
to assist people with long-term problems and to speak to organisations on 
their behalf. 
 

7.0 
 

Personal Independence Payments (PIP) 
 

7.1 
 

PIPs are replacing Disability Living Allowance (DLA) for people of working 
age; the change is being implemented between October 2013 and October 
2018 and the government estimate that this will reduce the overall cost of 
this benefit by 20%. 
 

7.2 
 

In February 2013, which is the latest date for available figures, there were 
5,410 people in receipt of DLA in Eastbourne. This is up by 190 from 
February 2012. We estimate that over 1,000 people will lose entitlement by 
the time the roll-out is complete. 
 

7.3 A possible consequence of someone losing entitlement is that, if they are in 
receipt of housing benefit or council tax support, they will also see a 
reduction in help with housing costs and council tax. 
 

8.0 The Council’s response 
 
The Council has adopted a strategic approach to the challenges presented 
through the reform of the Welfare system. In brief, the Council has: 
 

• Created a Benefits and Welfare Advice Officer post using funding from 
the Department for Work and Pensions. The main objective for the 
post holder is to provide direct assistance to those affected by the 
changes. The post holder has contacted all of those people affected.  

 
• Been instrumental in securing funds through Supporting People to 

establish the East Sussex Welfare Reform Action group. This has 
provided training for advisors from many organisations, produced a 
YouTube, put in place a publicity campaign, set up a free advice 
Helpline. The group monitors the impact of the changes on a county-
wide basis,  for example rent arrears and homelessness,   
 

• Established a working group with Eastbourne Homes and the 
Jobcentre Plus focusing primarily on assisting those Eastbourne Homes 
Residents affected by the Spare Room Subsidy and the Benefits Cap. 
 

• Set up a process of reviewing both the impact of the changes and the 
effectiveness of the Council’s response. 
 

• In partnership with Lewes District Council, engaged with Future Gov 
on the development of a mobile phone App that can assist people with 
money management.  

Page 180



Page 5 of 5 

 
Maximised the effectiveness of the increased funding available from the 
Discretionary Housing Payments budget. As at the end of September, 360 
awards had been made committing £125,633 of the £256,602 budget. This 
included £17,000 to people affected by the Benefit Cap and £44,000 to those 
affected by the spare room subsidy. 
 

9.0 Consultation 
 

9.1 Not necessary. 
 

10.0 Resource Implications 
 

10.1 Financial 
 
The introduction of a local scheme of support to replace council tax benefit 
came with a 10% reduction in funding which amounted to c£1m. 
 

11.0 Anti-Poverty 
 

11.1 The changes to Welfare will put more stress on some of the most vulnerable 
members of society. The measures the Council and partners have put in 
place will go some way to mitigate the effects. 

  
12.0 Conclusion  

 
12.1 Welfare Reform continues to present many challenges to some of the most 

vulnerable members of society as well as those organisations who support 
them.  
 

12.2 
 

It is important that the Council continues to closely monitor the impacts of 
reform and to provide help and advice where it is most needed.  
 
 

12.3 It is recommended that Cabinet endorses the measures taken to support 
residents affected by Welfare Reform. 
 
 

lead officer name: Bill McCafferty 
job title: Revenues and Benefits Manager  
 

 
Background Papers: 
 
The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
None 

 
 
 

 

Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 3 

Body: Cabinet   
 

Date: 5 February 2013  
 

Subject: Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults 
 

Report Of: Senior Head of Communities 
 

Ward(s): All Wards 
 

Purpose: To update Members in relation to the Council’s approach to 
safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults. 
 

Decision Type: Adoption of the revised Policy. 
 

Recommendation: Cabinet is recommended to agree and adopt the Child and 
Vulnerable Adult Protection Policy. 
 
In addition, Cabinet is recommended to note the content of 
the East Sussex Safeguarding Annual Report and Business 
Plan 2013/14. 

 
Contact: Lucy Wooler, Snr Allocations Officer, Telephone 

01323 415333 or internally on extension 5333. 
E-mail address: Lucy.wooler@Eastbourne.gov.uk 
 

  

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 Improving the way key people and bodies safeguard and promote the 

welfare of children is crucial to improving outcomes for children and 
vulnerable adults. The Council’s policy incorporates safeguarding for the both 
children and vulnerable adults.  
 

1.2 This report also advised Cabinet on the work undertaken by the East Sussex 
Local Safeguarding Board in 2012/13 and outlines the business plan for 
2012-15.  
 

2.0 Summary of Action – Children and Vulnerable Adults Safeguarding 
Policy 
 

2.1 The first policy review was carried out in 2008/9. A further review was 
carried out in December 2012.  
 
In November 2013 a planned Internal Audit report was undertaken to 
provide both an assurance test and learning opportunity. The Audit report 
concluded that the Council’s approach was found to have: 
 
 ‘Major strengths with minor recommendations and a good example of 
internal control. Low risk.’  
 
 

2.2 Whilst the Council’s approach was found to have major strengths, 

Agenda Item 15

Page 183



Page 2 of 3 

amendments to the Council’s policy/practice have been made and the report 
seeks approval for the updated policy. In addition, an action plan has been 
developed to progress minor amendments/improvements suggested within 
the audit review. This plan is being worked on and progress will be reported 
on within the normal audit and governance cycle.  
 

2.3  
 

The Policy has been updated to incorporate minor updates and/or changes 
and is attached at attached at appendix A. Cabinet are asked to adopt the 
revised Policy.  
 

3.0 East Sussex Local Safeguarding Children’s Board Annual Report and 
Business Plan 
 

3.1 The East Sussex Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) has recently 
agreed their Annual Report and Business Plan. A copy of the report can be 
found at: 
www.eastsussex.go.uk/socialcare/aboutus/keydocuments/safeguarding.htm  
 
via East Sussex County Council’s web site.  
 

3.2 The Annual Report reflects back over the period 2012/13 and the business 
plan sets out action for the period to 2015.  
 

3.3  The key issues addressed by the LSCB in 2012/13 are highlighted in the 
report’s introduction together with the key achievements, future challenges 
and priorities for 2013/14, including: 
 

• Full engagement across agencies with the THRIVE agenda and early 
intervention 

• The Safeguarding Children Continuum of Need enabling practitioners 
from across different agencies to use a common language and 
providing clarity about thresholds for children in need and the 
importance of information about these children 

• Evidence of increased numbers of families being helped at an early 
stage, being worked with as children in need; and gradual but 
maintained reduction in numbers of children with a child protection 
plan, from 665 to 545 children during the year 

• Greatly increased investment in data collection and analysis shared 
with staff 

• Section 11 self assessments have been completed by all agencies 
with agencies fully compliant, the next step will be peer review 

• Clear evidence of changes in practice as a result of QA findings 
• Interventions supporting children who have been exposed to domestic 

abuse demonstrate changed behaviour in adults and children being 
more aware of how to keep themselves safe   

• Child sexual exploitation is recognised as requiring a well coordinated 
multiagency response  

• Missing children are given very high priority locally. Sussex Police, 
Children’s Services and Catch 22, a national charity, work effectively 
together to offer a very quick response 

• E-safety has remained highly featured on the LSCB partners’ agenda 
• The new Ofsted inspection regime sets high standards for LSCBs and 

there are increased expectations of the LSCB with no additional 
resources  

Page 184



Page 3 of 3 

• Five internal management reviews were commissioned by the LSCB 
and unusually this year has also seen East Sussex commission three 
Serious Case Reviews with a fourth commissioned in April 2013. Very 
sadly, two of these reviews are as a result of child deaths. 

 
4.0  Consultation 

 
5.1 The Local Safeguarding Children’s Board was consulted during the 

development of the Policy and during the 2012 review. 
 

6.0 Resource Implications 
 

6.1 There are no significant staffing or financial resource implications arising 
from the review of the Council’s Safeguarding Policy or S.11 Audit. 
 

7.0 Other Implications – Environmental, Human Rights, Community 
Safety 
 

7.1 The review of the Council’s Child and Vulnerable Adult Protection Policy is 
designed to ensure the policy remains robust and is implemented effectively. 
The policy is designed to ensure it covers all areas in which the council is 
involved and minimise the risks to those using Council services, resources 
and premises and to Council staff, volunteers, contractors and other 
partners. 
 

8.0 Youth and Anti-Poverty 
 

8.1 None. 
 

9.0 Conclusion 
 

9.1 Cabinet is recommended to agree and adopt the amended Child and 
Vulnerable Adult Protection Policy. 
 

In addition, Cabinet is recommended to note the East Sussex Local 
Safeguarding Children’s Board Annual Report (12/13) and Business Plan 
2013/15 
 

 Background Papers 
 

 The Background Papers used in compiling this report were as follows: 
 
• Eastbourne Borough Council Child and Vulnerable Adult Policy and 

Appendices 
 

  
 

Ian Fitzpatrick 
Senior Head of Community 
 

 
 

Page 185



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



For updated version January 2009 

Appendix A 

 

 

Eastbourne Borough Council 

 

Child & Vulnerable Adult Protection Policy 

 

1. Policy Statement 

 

Eastbourne Borough Council works to ensure that all children, 

young people and vulnerable adults coming into contact with 

the Council and its employees are protected and treated with 
respect. At the same time Eastbourne Borough Council works 

to protect its employees from the risk of unfounded 
allegations. 

 

1.1 This is done by: - 

 
• Having a clear commitment to Child & Vulnerable Adult 

Protection principles throughout the organisation, from 
Members, Senior Management, Staff, Volunteers and 

Contractors. 

 

• Making sure our staff and volunteers are carefully selected, 

trained and supervised. 

 

• Ensuring that our Contractors who have regular and direct 

contact with children, young people and vulnerable adults 

have appropriate policies and procedures in place and require 
them to comply with the Sussex Child Protection and 

Safeguarding Procedures and the Sussex multi-agency Policy 

and Procedures for Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults. 

 

• Giving parents, children, young people, vulnerable adults and 

workers information about what they can expect from us. 

 

• Letting parents, children, young people and vulnerable adults 

know how to voice any concerns they may have. 

 

Title:- Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adult 

Policy 

Version:- 2 

Date:- 6/12/2013 

Approved by:- Cabinet 21/10/2009 

Next Review:- November 2014 

Designated Lead for 

the Policy 

Ian Fitzpatrick, Senior Head Of Community 

Page 187



• Ensuring that all organisations that apply for support for 

programmes which involve children, young people or 

vulnerable adults (funding or premises etc.) have an effective 

policy and procedures in place on child and vulnerable adult 

protection. This includes all those managing any of our 

buildings or with a licence to run services from any of our 

buildings. 

 

1.2 It is essential that all staff working with children, 

young people and vulnerable adults read, understand 

and adhere to this policy. 

 

2. Context 

 

2.1 There are a minority of children, young people and vulnerable 

adults in our community who experience abuse of a physical, 

emotional/psychological, sexual, or financial nature or as a 
result of neglect. 

 

2.2 It is known that some individuals will actively seek 

employment or voluntary work with vulnerable people, 
particularly with children and young people, in order to harm 

and “control” them. People who work with children, young 
people and vulnerable adults in a voluntary capacity or as an 

employee, Contractor or other partner of the local authority 

have a role to play in protecting them from harm and 

safeguarding their welfare. This policy covers all children, 
young people and vulnerable adults.  

 

2.3 The definition of vulnerable adult refers to any person of 18 

years or over who is or may be in need of community care by 

reason of mental, physical or learning disability, age or illness 
and who is or may be unable to take care of him/herself or 

unable to protect him/herself against significant harm or 
serious exploitation which may be occasioned by actions or 

inactions of other people. 1 

 

2.4 It is also important to recognise additional vulnerability in 

terms of race, disability, religion, ethnicity or 1st language. 

Specific reference is made to these issues in Volume 2 of the 

“Sussex Child Protection and Safeguarding Procedures” and in 

Chapter 6 of the “Sussex multi-agency policy and procedures 

                                           
1 Sussex Multi-agency Policy and Procedures for Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults, 

June 2007 

2 These can be found by following the links on the Intranet - see “Safeguarding 

Children  Vulnerable Adults” 

Page 188



for safeguarding vulnerable adults”, and should be included in 

all training. 2 
 

3. Recognition of Abuse 

 

3.1 Abuse may be described as physical, emotional/psychological, 

sexual, or financial in nature or arise as a result of neglect. 

Examples of physical and behavioural indicators associated 

with each type of abuse are not included within this policy but 

can be found in ”Sussex Child Protection and Safeguarding 

Procedures” and “Sussex multi-agency policies and 

procedures for safeguarding vulnerable adults.”  

 

3.2 It is not the policy of Eastbourne Borough Council to 

encourage staff to fully investigate suspicions or 

allegations but to make all appropriate staff aware of 

the issues surrounding child and vulnerable adult 

protection and to have clear procedures in place to 
ensure that staff are aware of how and to whom any 

concerns should be reported. 
 

4 Employment Issues 

 

4.1  Recruitment and selection 
 

• Eastbourne Borough Council takes all reasonable steps to 
prevent unsuitable people working with children, young 

people and vulnerable adults. These procedures are deployed 

consistently for all staff – whether in full time, part time 
employment and whether paid or voluntary staff. 

 

• All staff (or volunteers) working with children, young people 

or vulnerable adults complete an application form. These 
forms provide information about applicants’ pasts, including 

any gaps in employment history.  
 

• At least two references should be taken up (in writing), 

including at least one assessing applicants’ previous work with 

children, young people and/or vulnerable adults and their 

suitability for working with them.  References should cover at 

least the past three years. For student leavers, appropriate 

references from Principal, Head Teacher, Head of PE would be 

acceptable. 

 

• Consent should be obtained from applicants for appropriate 

levels of Disclosure and Barring Service  disclosure to be 

sought, using the form provided. Where disclosure is needed 

for a specific role with children, young people and/or 

Page 189



vulnerable adults it must be obtained prior to commencement 

of work with them. 

 

• All candidates should demonstrate a willingness to undertake 

training relating specifically to protection issues relating to 

children, young people and vulnerable adults. 

 

• Managers must comply with corporate policies on the security 

of DBS Records and on the Rehabilitation of Offenders to 

ensure the confidentiality of information received in relation to 

applicants. 

 

4.2 Policy and Procedures 

 

Eastbourne Borough Council works to ensure that children, 

young people and vulnerable adults are protected and kept 

safe from harm. All staff involved in the provision of services 
to children, young people and vulnerable adults should know 

what to do if there are any concerns about abuse and what 

procedures / guidelines they should follow. 

 
4.3  Training 

 
All staff who regularly have direct contact with children, young 

people and/or vulnerable adults should receive training 

annually to raise their awareness of children, young people 

and vulnerable adult protection issues. They should also 
receive clear instructions on how to report concerns or 

suspicions, and training in Good Practice methods of working 
to ensure children, young people and vulnerable adults’ 

welfare, safety and protection and minimise the risk of 

unfounded allegations being made.   
 

4.4 Supervision 
 

Managers should be sensitive to any concerns about child 

and/or vulnerable adult protection and act on them in an 

appropriate and timely way within 24 hours. They should 

also offer appropriate support for those who report concerns. 

To assist managers in this role training will be undertaken 

consistent with the recommendations of the Local 

Safeguarding Children Board and the Safeguarding Adults 

Board. 

 

 

 

Page 190



5.    It is the responsibility of all those working within EBC 

or on behalf of EBC to report accidents and alleged or 

suspected incidents of child, young person and/or 

vulnerable adult abuse 

 

5.1 When to take action 

 

It is possible that staff, Members, volunteers and contractors 

may have cause for concern and wish to take action as a 

result of: 

 

• A child / young person / vulnerable adult telling them 

something has happened, whether or not they want you 

to pass on the information. 

 

• Observing physical or behavioural or any other indicators 

which cause you concern 
 

• Someone else (adult, young person or child) telling you 

their concern. 

 
5.2 5.2 Listening to the child / young / vulnerable person 

 
Staff, Volunteers, Members and Contractors are not expected 

to investigate suspected incidents but to act promptly and 

effectively in communicating the issues to child and adult 

protection professionals. However, there may be instances 
when children, young people or vulnerable adults who are 

being abused will approach staff that they trust and with 
whom they feel safe. By listening and taking seriously what 

they say, Staff, Volunteers, Members and Contractors will be 

helping them. 

 

5.3 Guidelines for listening to a child, young person or vulnerable 

adult who claims he or she has been abused: -  

 

• React calmly so as not to frighten the child, young person 

or vulnerable adult. 

 

• Tell the child, young person or vulnerable adult they are 

not to blame and that they were right to tell. 

 

• Take what the child, young person or vulnerable adult 

says seriously, recognising how difficult it was for them to 

confide in you. 

 

Page 191



• Always reassure the child, young person or vulnerable 

adult but do not make promises of confidentiality. 

 

• Make a full, detailed record of what has been said, heard 

and/or seen immediately afterwards. 

 

5.4 The next steps – if there are concerns 

 

• All staff must report any incidents or allegations to the 

designated person in charge of the area of work, or in 

their absence to a direct line manager. The person to 

report such incidents to will be identified to the member 

of staff at the start of their employment. 

 
• The manager will contact the relevant Duty and 

Assessment Team of the East Sussex County Council 

Safeguarding Unit (if within office hours or the Emergency 

Duty Team if outside of office hours.) 

 

•  The Senior Head of Community and the Head of Service 

should be informed 
The Senior Head of Community and Service Head should 

also be informed of such reports 
 

•   (Note: if preferred the concerns can be referred to 

the Senior Head of Community or Head of Audit as a 

whistle-blowing matter in order to protect 
confidentiality.)  All contact details are available at via 

Intranet (Safeguarding Children page) 
 

6 Recording Information 

 

6.1 Recording information early and accurately is very important 

and should be done without delay. 

 

6.2 Do not delay reporting by attempts to gain more information 

and remember to make a note of the person you report to in 

Social Services and follow up in writing within 24 hours 

(responsible person only). Remember your first port of call in 

all situations is your manager.  

 

6.3 Information to be contained within a report for Children’s 

Services Social Care or the Police should include the following. 

However, it is not expected that staff will attempt to get 

this information from any child or vulnerable adult 

other than that which is volunteered: 

 

Page 192



• The nature of the allegation 

 

• A description or name of child and alleged abuser’s 

name 

 

• A description of any visible bruising or other injuries 

 

• The child or vulnerable adult’s account, if he/she can 

give one, of what happened and how any bruising or 

other injuries occurred 

 

• Any times, dates, or other relevant information 

 

• A clear distinction between what is fact, opinion or 

hearsay. 

 

6.4 Important: 
 

• Reporting the matter to the Police or Social Services 

Department should NOT be delayed by attempts to 

obtain more information. 
 

• Wherever possible telephone referrals to Social Services 
Departments should be confirmed in writing within 24 

hours. It is useful to keep a record of the name and 

designation of the person telephone messages were 

given to. 
 

• Records must be securely maintained and only viewed 
by appropriate personnel, Social Services or the Police. 

 

These records will be kept securely by the Heads of Service 
and forwarded immediately to the Senior Head of 

Community. This information will be held centrally  
 

7. Allegations Against Staff/ Volunteers 

 

7.1 This may include anyone directly employed by Eastbourne 

Borough Council in a paid or voluntary capacity working with 

children and young people or vulnerable adults. 

 

7.2 However, it may be difficult for the person in charge to 

distinguish whether an allegation against a member of staff is 

due to poor working practices or abuse. However concerns 

must always be reported to the line manager or Human 

Resources. It may be one of a series of instances which, when 

put together, can cause concern. 

Page 193



 

7.3 It should be acknowledged that an allegation against any 

member of staff will generate concern amongst other staff. 

There may be difficulties in reporting colleagues but the way 

in which they are dealt with should be professional and fair 

and, above all, protect the welfare of the child, young person 

or vulnerable adult. 

 

7.4 Staff will need reassurance that they will be supported if they 

disclose information about a colleague.  

 

7.5 In the case of an investigation of abuse against a member of 

staff, there may be three types of investigation: 

• Criminal 

• Child/ adult protection 

• Disciplinary or misconduct 

 
8. What Happens Now? 

 

8.1 In the case of a child or vulnerable adult protection / criminal 

event an investigation will be led by Social Services, the Police 
and involve any relevant member of staff. Again, the main 

concern would always be for the welfare of the child, young 
person or vulnerable adult involved. 

 

8.2 The Council will implement procedures to deal with the 

outcome of any investigation including: 
 

• Advice and reassurance to the public 
 

• Media attention 

 

• Dealing with staff in the event of allegations being 

unfounded 

 

• Dealing with staff should an allegation about a staff 

member be proven 

 

9. Conclusion 

 

9.1 There are many difficult and sensitive issues involved. By 

following these guidelines, both children and vulnerable adult 

and staff are protected and incidents should be minimised. 

Should incidents occur, staff involved will be better placed to 

deal with events more competently and sensitively. 

 

Page 194



9.2 Remember the basic principles in dealing with children and 

vulnerable adults in potential abuse situation are: 

 

• Listening 

• Believing 

• Reassuring 

• Explaining 

• Reporting -Acting immediately 

• Recording 

• Getting support. 

 

10. Appendices 

 

10.1 The following appendices give further guidance on the 

application of the Child Protection Policy and the Safeguarding 

Vulnerable Adults Policy in practice: 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 – Guidance for Managers Protecting children and 

workers 

APPENDIX 2 – Guidance for Managers Supervision of Children 
APPENDIX 3 – Roles and Responsibilities 

APPENDIX 4 – Risk Assessment 
 

11.    Review of Policy 

 

 
         This policy will be reviewed annually to coincide with Service 

         And Financial Planning processes. 
 Next review November 2014 

               

          

 

Page 195



Page 196

This page is intentionally left blank



 
APPENDIX 1 

Guidance For Managers 
Protecting children and workers 

A. We can reduce likely situations for abuse of children and help protect our 
staff and volunteers from false accusations by making sure that everyone 
is aware that it is not acceptable to:- 

• Spend time alone with children away from others; 
• Take children alone in a car on journeys, however short; 
• Take children to their home. 

In exceptional circumstances where it is absolutely unavoidable that 
these things do happen, they should only occur with the full knowledge 
and consent of the Senior Head or their deputy.  

 

B. You should make it clear to all staff and volunteers in your organisation 
that they should never… 

• Engage in rough physical games including horseplay – apart from 
structured sports activities; 

• Allow or engage in inappropriate touching of any form; 
• Allow children to use inappropriate language unchallenged; 
• Make sexually suggestive comments about or to a child; 
• Let allegations a child makes go unchallenged or unrecorded; 
• Do things of a personal nature for children or vulnerable adults.  

 

 

 

 

Page 197



 2 

 
APPENDIX 2 

Guidance for Managers 
Supervision of children 

Making arrangements for the proper supervision of children is one of the most 
effective ways of minimising opportunities for children to suffer harm of any kind 
whilst taking part in organised programmes or whilst at Council facilities. 
 
Planning 

• Organisers must plan and prepare a detailed programme of 
activities for the children who are involved in the project, 
including preparing a risk assessment prior to the event. 

• Managers must ensure that all staff and volunteers have got 
required appropriate CRB clearance in place. 

• Organisers are responsible for the welfare and safety of the 
children for the whole time they are in their care. 

• Young people should not be left to their own devices when 
undertaking a supervised programme. 

• All children should be adequately supervised and engaged in 
suitable activities at all times. 

• In circumstances when planned activities are disrupted, e.g. due to 
weather conditions, then organisers should have a number of 
alternative activities planned. 

 
Supervision 

• Leaders in charge must be satisfied that those workers and adults 
who accompany group parties are fully competent to do so. 

• Children must be supervised at all times. 
• Children must not be left unsupervised at any venue whether it is 

indoors or out of doors. 
• Workers should know at all times where children are and what they 

are doing. 
• Any activity using potentially dangerous equipment should have 

constant adult supervision. 
• Children will be safer if supervised by two or more adults. 
• Dangerous behaviour by children should not be allowed.  

 
Adult/child ratios 
Level of supervision must be adequate whether at the organisation’s venue or on 
a journey/visit. Therefore, when deciding how many adults are required to 
supervise, Manager must take into consideration a range of practical matters:- 

• The number of participants in the group 
• The nature of the site/venue and of the activity involved 
• It is important that each individual supervisor knows the 

responsibilities he/she is expected to bear. 

It is for the Manager in charge to exercise his/her professional judgement 
in deciding the level of supervision taking into account the appropriate 
national guidance. Risk assessments should be carried out in advance of 
programming the activity. 

Page 198



 3 

 
APPENDIX 2 CONTINUED 

 
Guidance To Managers 

Recording allegations or suspicions of abuse 
In any case where an allegation is made, or someone in your organisation has 
concerns, a record should be made. It is good practice to draw up a checklist of 
details to note and questions you should ask yourself in making such a record 
which could include, for example: - 

• Name of child 
• Age 
• Any special factors; for example disability, cultural or language 

issues. 
• Parent’s name(s) 
• All other members of the household, whether living there 

permanently or temporarily. 
• Home address (and phone number if available) 
• Is the person making the report expressing their own concerns or 

passing on those of somebody else? If so, record details. 
• What has prompted the concerns? Include dates, times etc of any 

specific incidents. 
• Any physical signs? Behavioural signs? Indirect signs? 
• Has the child been spoken to? If so, what was said and who was 

present? Where the discussion took place is also important to note 
• Have the parents been contacted? If so, what was said? 
• Has anybody been alleged to be the abuser? If so, record details. 
• Has anyone else been consulted? If so, record details. 
• See Appendix 5  

 
Reporting Incidents or Allegations 
If a disclosure is made it must be reported in line with Section 5.4. of the 
Policy. If in doubt contact your line manager, Human Resources or Senior Head 
of Community. 
 

The course of action that will be taken: 

• Where an allegation is made against an employee, the matter will 

be investigated in accordance with the Council's disciplinary 

procedure. 

• An appropriate person will be appointed to investigate 

• An immediate evaluation will be carried out to determine if there 

needs to be a full investigation 

• The employee may be suspended in cases of a more serious nature 

• If during the investigation there are suspicions of criminal activity or 

intent, the case will be referred to the police and/or social services 

• You will be treated with sensitivity and be fully supported by the 

Council 

Page 199



 4 

 
 

 
APPENDIX 3 

 
Roles and Responsibilities 

 
Recruitment 
It is the responsibility of the Head of Service to inform the Recruitment Manager 
if an advertised post has duties that involve regular and direct contact with 
Children which will necessitate a Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Check. 
This should be clearly stated on the Recruitment Review form. 
N.B. Any staff recruited through other channels for example Agency staff where 
a DBS Check has not been carried out or staff who commence employment 
before receipt of their DBS check must not be allowed to work unaccompanied 
with Children or Vulnerable Adults  
 
Training 
On starting employment with Eastbourne Borough Council all staff who occupy 
positions where a DBS check is considered appropriate will receive child and 
vulnerable adult awareness training from their line manager &/or Human 
Resources. 
 
Divisions in the Council where regular and direct access with children and 
vulnerable adults takes place will receive Child Protection training arranged by 
the Training and Development Manager in consultation with the East Sussex 
Local Safeguarding Children’s Board. In high risk areas (Sports Centres, Leisure 
Centres) Managers must ensure that there are staff / supervisors on site at all 
times who have received bespoke Child Protection Training. 
 
Staff 
If approached to respond to the potential victim or reporting person in 
accordance with the guidelines included in Section 5 of the policy. 
 
Managers / supervisors 

• Will ensure that all new staff receive awareness training 
• Will receive child protection training 
• Will advise staff on how to deal with situations arising  
• Will provide support for the person reporting the incident 
• Contact Social Services / police 
• Will Inform the Senior Head of Community that a child protection 

incident has been reported 
• Will keep the reporting person informed of action taken 
• Will keep a written record including: 

• Date/time 
• Those present 
• Actions taken 
• Telephone / other conversations what was said/seen/done  

 
 
 

Page 200



 5 

 
 
Senior Head of Community – This post-holder is the designated lead for this 
policy. All allegations reported will be logged centrally.  
 
Head Of Corporate Development 
To ensure that the Council’s contracts include appropriate reference to the 
requirement for Child and Vulnerable Adult Protection Policies and Procedures  
 
Senior Head of Development and Environment/ Senior Head of Tourism 
& Leisure and the Senior Head of Community 
To ensure that all funding agreements to voluntary and other organisations 
include, where appropriate, a requirement for Child and Vulnerable Adult Policies 
and Procedures 
 
All Senior Heads/Chief Officers 
To ensure that Heads of Service are aware of this policy and that it is being 
complied with. 

 

Page 201



 6 

 
APPENDIX 4  

 
Risk Assessment 

 
For the purposes of this policy the type of work shown is indicative of the type of 
areas where protection of children and vulnerable adults should be considered. It is 
not intended to be comprehensive or exclusive. Managers of work areas have 
responsibility for identifying “at risk” staff & other groups 
 
High 
Risk 

Staff who enter people’s homes where Children or Vulnerable Adults 
may be 
e.g. 

• Visiting Officers Benefits, Housing Needs Staff 
• Leisure Centre & Sports Centre Staff  
• Neighbourhood Advisors 
• Contractors 
• Volunteers 

 
Low Risk Staff who work out of the office but have no direct contact with Children,  

e.g. 
• Contract inspectors 
• Planning Officers / Building Control Officers 
 

No Risk Staff who are office based and have no contact with Children or 
Vulnerable Adults 
e.g. 

• Secretarial and Administrative Staff 
 

When considering risk the same methodology should be applied to staff, contractors 
and volunteers. A record of risk and mitigating actions should be kept and fed into 
the annual Service and Financial planning process or , if more urgent, via the Head 
of Service. 
 

Page 202



 7 

 

APPENDIX 5 
 

Safeguarding Report 
 

 

Name of child 
 

 

Age 

 

 

Any special factors; for 
example disability, cultural or 
language issues. 

 

 

Parent’s name(s) 

 

 

All other members of the 
household, whether living 
there permanently or 
temporarily. 

 

 

Home address (and phone 
number if available) 

 

 

Is the person making the 
report expressing their own 
concerns or passing on those 
of somebody else? If so, 
record details. 

 

 

What has prompted the 
concerns? Include dates, times 
etc of any specific incidents. 

 

 

Any physical signs? 
Behavioural signs? Indirect 
signs? 

 

 

Has the child been spoken to? 
If so, what was said and who 
was present? Where the 
discussion took place is also 
important to note 

 

 

Have the parents been 
contacted? If so, what was 
said? 
 

 

Has anybody been alleged to 
be the abuser? If so, record 

 

Page 203



 8 

details. 
Has anyone else been 
consulted? If so, record details. 

 

 

Page 204



BODY: CABINET 
 

DATE: 5 February 2014 
 

SUBJECT: Write off of Irrecoverable Debts 
 

REPORT OF: Chief Finance Officer 

Ward(s): All 
 

Purpose: To seek Cabinet approval for the write off of debts in excess 
of £5,000 as required by Financial Procedure Rule 4.26. 
 

Contact: Pauline Adams, Financial Services Manager 
Tel 01323 415979 or internally on ext 5979 
 

Recommendations: Members are asked to approve the write off of irrecoverable 
debts as listed in the Appendix totalling £141,329.73. 
 

1.0 Introduction  
 

1.1 Financial Procedure Rule 4.26 provides delegated authority to the Chief 
Finance Officer for the write off of irrecoverable debts below £5,000. Beyond 
that limit, unless particular circumstances apply (like bankruptcy, liquidation 
etc) the approval of Cabinet is required.  
 

2.0 Write Offs 

2.1 Details of the write offs being recommended for write off by Cabinet are 
listed in the Appendix to the report with brief explanations of the 
circumstances. 
 

2.2 In all cases a number of methods of collection were attempted before the 
debts were recommended for write off.  
 

2.3 The write off does not mean that debt is not still due to the council and in 
cases where circumstances have changed the debt will be written back on 
and recovery pursued.  
 

3.0 Financial Implications 

3.1 The write offs do not have an immediate financial effect on the current 
year’s budget as the bad debt provision is greater than the write off total. 
However, the making of that provision did have a cost implication at the 
time the provision was made. The Council maintains provisions against the 
level of debts outstanding as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16

Page 205



2 

 As % of total 
debt 

Funded by 

Council Tax 48% 14% EBC with the remaining 
86% by East Sussex CC, East 
Sussex Fire and Sussex Police 

NNDR 23% 50% Central Government, 40% 
EBC, 9% East Sussex CC & 1% 
East Sussex Fire.  

HB Overpayments 77% EBC General Fund  

Sundry Debtors 9% EBC General Fund 

Housing Rents  70% EBC HRA 

 
 

4.0 Consultation 
 

4.1 Not Applicable 

5.0 Conclusion 

5.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval for the write off of irrecoverable debts in 
excess of £5,000 totalling £141,329.73 where all other methods of recovery 
have been unsuccessful and it is not deemed appropriate to pursue the debts 
further.  

 
 

Pauline Adams 
Financial Services Manager 
 
Background Papers: 
 
There were not background papers used in compiling this report 
 

 

Page 206



Agenda Item 18

Page 207

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 208

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 209

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 214

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20

Page 215

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 218

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 21

Page 219

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 220

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 22

Page 221

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 222

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 223

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of of the meeting held on 11 December 2013
	7 Corporate Performance - Quarter 3 - 2013/14 [KD]
	071 Corporate Performance Q3 2013-14 App 1 Performance
	072 Corporate Performance Q3 2013-14 App 2 GF
	073 Corporate Performance Q3 2013-14 App 3 Use of Reserves
	074 Corporate Perfromance Q3 2013-14 App 4 Capital

	8 Council Budget 2014/15 [BPF]
	081 Budget 2014-15 App 1 GF
	082 Budget 2014-15 App 2 Savings and Growth
	083 Budget 2014-15 App 3 Capital Programme 2014-17 GF

	9 Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators 2014/15 [BPF]
	10 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Revenue Budget and  Rent Setting 2014/15 and HRA Capital Programme 2013/16 [BPF]
	101 Housing Revenue Accont Budget and Rent Setting App 1 HRA Budget
	102 Housing Revenue Account Budget and Rent Setting App 2 Capital Programme

	11 Sustainable Service Delivery Update [KD]
	12 Eastbourne Town Centre - Update on Use of Compulsory Purchase Powers [KD]
	121 Town Centre CPO - App 1a - Gr Fl Plan
	122 Town Centre CPO - App 1b - First Fl Plan

	13 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) - charging schedule [KD]
	131 Community Infrastructure Levy App A Draft Charging Schedule
	132 Community Infrastructure Levy App C Regulation 123 list

	14 Impacts of Welfare Reform and the Council's Response
	15 Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults [KDGE]
	151 Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults and Children App A Policy
	152 Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults and Children Apps to Policy

	16 Write-off of Irrecoverable Debts [KD]
	18 Confidential Minutes of meeting held on 11 December 2013
	19 Small Grants to Voluntary Organisations 2014/15 [KD]
	20 Alternative Employment Procedure.
	21 Write-off of Irrecoverable Debts [KD]
	22 Towner
	221 Towner App Briefing Note Confi


